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ASL Vision & Mission
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Vision

As a leading Asia information technology services and solution
provider, we are committed to become the most trustworthy
and professional IT partner for our customers. Our services and

solutions enable our customers to achieve the strongest market
competitiveness and excellence in service.

=
{ER MR E AR IR MR RAEFER - BAIBIKA
EFHERERAREXNEMR XA ERH - RAINREE

RAREBREFPNBETISHF N - EEFP AT ISRMHE S BA
ARTS

Mission
1. Deliver innovative and comprehensive information technology

services and solutions through leading edge global technology.

2. Provide the best customer satisfaction leveraging our own proven
methodologies, best practices and extensive industry experience.

3. Expand and continually innovate our existing renowned and
highly acclaimed infrastructure services and solutions.

4. Leverage the latest proven security technology to facilitate our

"

customers to deploy “Cloud, Mobile and
solutions which are our key technology focus.
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Your Trustworthy and Professional IT Partner
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5 Focused Solutions and Services
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oo The Group has focused its solutions and services into 5 strategic areas, including Infrastructure,

WAkl SECURITY Security, Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud (as specified in a diagram on the left).
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Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE) :
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In the second half of 2014, the Group made a strategic
investment in setting up a leading-edge IT solutions center
— ACoE at the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters. Covering
approximately 10,000 square feet with 7 main areas,
ACOE is designed with multi-vendor interoperability and
is a unique platform where customers can see, touch and
feel the Group’s 5 IT focused solutions and services.
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SOLUTION THEME PARK

Showcase our focused solutions and services
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SOLUTION THEATER TIME GALLERY

For training, workshop, benchmarking and proof-  Showcase our rich history of success
of-concepts (connecting to our PowerHouse) ST AR
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PLAY HOUSE A

For meetings and networking
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INNO-CORRIDOR

Showcase the latest multi-
vendor technologies
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POWERHOUSE

A highly secure and integrated
data center, facilitating our
partners to demonstrate their
technologies
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On 9th January 2015, the Group officially opened the Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE). There were approximately 150 customers
and strategic partners celebrated the grand opening with us.
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Mr. Simon Leung, CEO of ASL introduces how to
use ASL's App to perform access control and identity
management
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Participants experience ASL's advanced identity
management solution through the new ACoE App for
registration
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Mr. Hu Liankui, a former director - N - el Oipuning o Jctmenid ot o 1
of Teamsun and the Chairman of )
ASL hosts the opening ceremony of
ACoE with ASL Conference ID App
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Guests are viewing an e-cheque A working team of ACoE celebrates the success
system which is one of the security of ACoE’s grand opening
solutions at ACoE ACoE T{EEX—RIEfTACOERK T %
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ASL at a Glance

CORPORATE OVERVIEW £ B/

e Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973
e Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”) (SHSE Stock Code: 600410)
becomes the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder in September 2009

e Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT solutions and services to customers across the
region with business operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau,
Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc.
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Revenue Net profit
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e Continued to receive significant IT solutions and services orders from public and
commercial sectors

e Continued to secure numerous sizable government or quasi-government projects

e Achieved joint success by working closely with i-Sprint

e ASL successfully obtained a number of industry-specific solutions orders with the
application of multi-vendor technologies
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e Continue to strengthen ASL's market position as a trustworthy and professional IT
partner

e Defined ASL's IT solutions and services to 5 strategic focus areas of Infrastructure,
Security, Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud (“5 Focused Solutions and Services”)

e Focus on developing its security business
e Continue to leverage intellectual property and the proven records of i-Sprint, and
ASL’s 40 plus years of solid foundation to provide world-class security solutions

e  Officially launched an IT solutions center with multi-vendor interoperability,
Automated Center of Excellence (the “ACoE"”) at Hong Kong headquarters in January
2015 for partners and customers to see, touch and feel its 5 Focused Solutions and
Services

e  Continue to customise industry-specific solutions for partners and customers by using
its 5 Focused Solutions and Services

e  Continue to build an open and dynamic environment that will enhance teamwork
and communication

e Continue to work closely with its huge network of world-leading partners, streamline
operation process as well as create greater synergies with Teamsun
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Customer Service
Excellence with
Corporate Responsibility
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IT Expioratron Tour for Secondary Students o
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F;assport Photo Taking for Elderly
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Visit Elderly Center Blood Donation Day
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Caring for the Environment
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Cloud Printing Project
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Customer Service Excellence with Corporate Responsibility
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Caring for the Employees
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BBQ Night
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Staff Drinks Night
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Quality Policy of ASL
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We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing customers
innovative, quality and integrated one-stop IT services and solutions. We aim at satisfying
our customer’s business needs through forging strategic alliance with our business partners

and the core values of the Group — “SPACT":

“S" - Strive for Excellence

Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking for ways to make further
improvement.

“P" - Problem Solving

Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to identify the core of the problems
and provide workable solutions in an honest manner.

“A" - Accountable

Be accountable for one's area of responsibilities whilst working towards the goal of the company, be
responsible for managing and following up with the work until complete success.

“C" - Courage
To change and Innovate — response timely to change and to enable the company to become efficient and
competitive. Eager to invent new ideas and new ways of work to advance in a leading position.

“T" - Teamwork
Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort & success. Willing to offer help, share

ideas and knowledge.
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ELM Computer Technologies Limited
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ISO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 3268
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Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.3 — Maturity Level 3 Rating
Industry Application and
Outsourcing Delivery Excellence Centre

Capability Maturity Model ® Integration (CMMI)
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Corporate Information

NEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon (Chief Executive Officer)
WANG Weihang

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

HU Liankui (Chairman)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YOUNG Meng Ying
LU Jiaqi
XU Peng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

YOUNG Meng Ying (Chairman)
LU Jiaqi
XU Peng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

LU Jiaqgi (Chairman)
HU Liankui
YOUNG Meng Ying

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

XU Peng (Chairman)
HU Liankui

YOUNG Meng Ying
LU Jiaqi

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon (Chairman)
WANG Weihang

WANG Yueou*

CHENG Wai Sze, Catherine*

LEE Cheuk Wai, Thomas*

SHIH Ho Sang, Dominic*

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
HU Liankui

Note:

# non-director member of the company
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

WANG Yueou
NGAN Wai Hing

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The HongKong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SOLICITORS

Jones Day
Appleby

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd
Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
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Financial Summary

MRREE

RESULTS
Ny
ES
For the year ended 31st December
BE+-A=+—HLEFE
2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mEF T =5 —T——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHExT FET FHET FHET
Revenue A 1,433,921 1,612,958 1,673,279 1,537,328
Profit before income tax PSR AR A 29,589 23,594 47,701 45,110
Income tax expense FriSfifsz (1,125) (6,314) (6,507) (294)
Profit for the year F R F 28,464 17,280 41,194 44,816
Profit for the year attributable to  FEIERRMEZSFE(L
non-controlling interests FREEH] 31 - - -
Profit for the year attributable to AR FIPEAIEE A
equity holders of the Company FERFNE T 28,495 17,280 41,194 44,816
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERAEE
At 31st December
R+=—H=+—8H
2014 2013 2012 2011
—Z—NFE —T—=F —T—_—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Total assets EEE 1,152,323 1,115,090 1,044,218 909,247
Total liabilities wafm 489,486 506,443 470,216 401,620
Equity attributable to equity RARRAREE A
holders of the Company PR 662,837 608,647 574,002 507,627
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Chairman’s Statement

ERWE

By the end of 2014, the Group further
strengthened its leading position in regional
IT and security markets by making a strategic
investment in setting up Automated Center
of Excellence (ACOE) at its Hong Kong
headquarters.
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HU Liankui Chairman

HBE X%

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”) for the
year ended 31st December 2014.

For the year ended 31st December 2014, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$1,433.9 million, a decrease of 11.1% compared to last year. Profit before
income tax was HK$29.6 million, an increase of 25.4% compared to last year.
The Group maintained a healthy financial position and its cash balance as at
31st December 2014 was approximately HK$130.4 million.

For the year under review, the Group stayed abreast of prevailing trends,
whilst remaining prudent and innovative, in order to deal with challenges. The
Group had refined its business strategies in response to market changes in
the second half of 2014, among which included setting a clear direction for
its development. The Group will continue to secure its position as a leading
information technology (“IT") systems integrator in Hong Kong in order to
become the premier security services provider. In addition, the Group will
actively promote its 5 focus areas of IT solutions and services of Infrastructure,
Security, Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud (the “5 Focused Solutions and
Services”), whilst Security is designated as the intersecting pillar among them.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &1 R&EMAR AR Annual Report 2014 F
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Being a leading IT services and solutions provider in Asia with over 40 years of
experience in systems integration and extensive domain knowledge in various
industries, ASL integrated with remarkable products in the market to provide
quality IT solutions and services. During the year, ASL continued to collaborate
with numerous world-leading partners, including HP, IBM, CheckPoint and
Cisco, to organise marketing campaigns for the 5 Focused Solutions and
Services in Hong Kong and other regions, especially we held joint seminars
with partners for security solutions and participated in well-known security
summits in the region so as to further fortify our regional reputation.

The Group will continue to work closely with i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
("i-Sprint”), an associate of the Group, to provide world-class security solutions
to customers from a wide spectrum of business sectors. In July 2014, the
Group supported i-Sprint to establish a Center of Excellence in Zhuhai, aiming
at expanding its business in Mainland China and addressing the demands of IT
security solutions from customers in the Asia-Pacific region.

It is worth noting that the Group made an investment to set up Automated
Center of Excellence (the “ACoE") at its Hong Kong headquarters at the end
of 2014, further strengthening its leading position in regional IT and security
markets. The unique center adopts advanced technologies and is designed
with multi-vendor interoperability for customers and business partners to
experience a variety of solutions provided by ASL. The ACoE fully demonstrates
ASL's professional services standards of all-rounded, multi-level and equipped
with avant-garde technology, duly carried out customer-oriented approach of
the Group and has created greater value to our customers.

With extensive application of IT in various economic areas, the demand for IT
experts is ever-increasing from different industry sectors, the financial sector in
particular, resulting in a lack of IT talents in Hong Kong. In order to attract and
retain high caliber staff, the Group has been introducing new measures and
organising diverse activities in an attempt to boost their sense of belongings,
and promote communications and synergies among teams. New measures
include casual Friday and themed drink nights. Activities organised for the staff
included bicycle day, BBQ night, work-life balance day, family movie night and
day-camping, and encouraged the staff to join the Marathon. In addition, the
Group has set up a Play House at its Hong Kong headquarters to provide a
recreation area for the staff after work. In view of favorable responses received
from our staff, it is believed that the aforesaid measures and activities will bring
positive effect to the shared values between ASL and its staff.

Annual Report 2014 44§

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

ER MBSO E AR RIS R AR R AL E
B BRRAEAEANTFNRAERER LY
ETEMNETRE  RBEESTHE LEMHE
o RIEEEEAREAIRERY - FR - 88
R HEEEHP - IBM ~ CheckPoint » Ciscos %
HRIERBHEEIE - DRIRES RE MR 5%
AREZFRST RNRBRIERETE - R
ARERAFTERABHERTFN G RSHER AN
Exrealke  NE—SEEAEEREAN
MEE -

N %= 8 B H B 44 2 &) i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
(Mi-Sprint]) I #EEE1E - AETSENTFRHE
HR—RHNLEEHAFTR - RZE—NFLA -
REEZHFi-Sprints& L TR L - AR
RS RS R D AR EFHENRIRE 2/

REROEE -

EREENR  FEER-_Z-NFFEREE
mERER I B ERF BB O ([ACOE]) @
MmE—FEEARAEEREAEANERLZ2TS
EVEEMAL o th RO RAEE R RS e
B REPEEBBHEH T BENE MR
RATRFL  EHAGRBBAPHRGRENSE
fRRTE - ACCERDRRBBERZHH - ZE
R BERMNBEZRBKE - EERAEEL
BEFPAEHENED  MRATPAEESEE -

BEEMBMBETRLEASNEZER 18
BTE(LERSRE) UEEAEMRBEATH
EkEBEE  ERMAEBENRREIATR
Z - BTRIITHBEFRERET  AE@ERHE
TETHEELERZ T ENEBNIREEIE
BR: - EER BREBERE - FIEEEE
BERERBMEBBRIE  BRPZETIED
B EHRA - EER EFRTETER  RE
EXMES  REBENHBHETL2EFHN
F o ki REBERBBRREIITET —HA
B T TERRIR IR B R 2 /9Play House © LA E
BEMLEHOESETHNIE  HEEKAD
HEFEB T 2 EAREEESS R EENTZE -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R $t &£ B AR AR



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Group is not only devoting its tireless effort in business development
and corporate culture cultivation, but also sparing no effort to take up social
responsibilities. We contributed to the society by undertaking volunteering
works, such as caring for the elderlies, nurturing teenagers and protecting the
environment, and have been awarded the “Caring Company Award” for 5
consecutive years in 2015. At the beginning of 2014, the Group visited Hong
Kong Sheng Kung Hui Nursing Home in Wong Tai Sin, where we took passport
photos for the elderlies. In April of the same year, nearly 40 secondary school
students with keen interest in IT industry participated in the “IT Exploration
Tour” organised by the Group for the purpose of providing them with
information and guidance on career development through a showcase of the
latest IT knowledge and technologies. In respect of environmental protection,
the Group has made a huge step forward in energy saving and carbon
reduction through the implementation of office cloud printing project.

Notably, to synchronise its new market position, the Group revamped its
company website at the end of 2014 to unveil the brand-new image of
ASL to the industry, investors and customers. Moreover, the Group has also
streamlined its organisational structure and reviewed the procedures, so as to
enhance its management efficiency and competitiveness. The Group believes
that the above mentioned reforms will provide favorable conditions for its
long-term development.

During the year, Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer and the Executive Director of the Company with effect from 23rd July
2014. Ms. Chan Chung Lei, Joan and Ms. Li Pik Yin resigned as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 1st July 2014 and 25th September
2014 respectively. In addition, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready (“Mr. Lai") resigned as
the Vice Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director upon his retirement
with effect from 1st July 2014. Mr. Lai had played a key role in fostering rapid
growth of the Group and threw up ideas and stimulated inspiration to the
Board during his tenure of service. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express sincere appreciation for their invaluable contributions and dedications
to the Group.

Looking ahead, we will continue to strengthen our operations through
investments, while simultaneously maintaining a stable financial position. We
will continue to be committed to delivering innovative and one-stop integrated
IT solutions to accelerate business performance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow directors &1 - KAZERE=E LRI KB HRE R~
for their dedicated services. On behalf of the Board, | would also like to thank & @ MR EXKEZ SR 2 EE T AAEBEKER
all the staff for their whole-hearted contributions to the business development Bt BI85 1 - BA TR - I RO FI6) 2
of the Group and our business partners and shareholders for their great — R4 M IRRAF R TREE R HLHF -
support during the year.

HU Liankui HEBE
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 19th March 2015 BB ZT-hF=A+NAH
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

TTHARRE

ACOE is a unique platform where customers
can see, touch and feel 5 IT strategic focuses
that ASL offers, namely Infrastructure, Security,
Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud.

ACoE%*fI?%ﬁE@ﬂ?L\ s B PEA[ABEE

FEEE - %zﬂﬁﬂﬁy%Eiﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ HY
1 :’Tﬂﬂ& RESE &, - %Umﬁ%aﬁm\
ZE - BURER @@J&iu L

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon Chief Executive Officer

EN

PR (THALH

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial results

For the year ended 31st December 2014, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company was approximately HK$28.5 million, representing an increase
of HK$11.2 million or 64.7%, compared to last year. The basic earnings per
share was 9.15 HK cents, increased by 64.9% as compared to last year. Such
increases were primarily due to the one-off gain on deemed disposal of the
Group's partial interests in a subsidiary, i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd (“i-Sprint”)
and the Group's continuous efforts in enhancing the operational efficiency
during the year.

For the year ended 31st December 2014, product sales and service revenue
were HK$805.6 million and HK$628.3 million, lower by 9.5% and 13.0%
respectively compared to last year. Product sales and service revenue
contributed 56.2% and 43.8% to total revenue respectively, compared to
55.2% and 44.8% last year.

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was HK$1,433.9 million,
lower by HK$179.0 million compared to last year. Gross profit margin was
8.0%, a decline of 1.3% compared to last year. The declines in revenue
and gross profit margin were due to a combination of factors including
increasingly acute competition of Information Technology (“IT”) market and
de-consolidation of i-Sprint’s financial results from the accounts of the Group
since 12th February 2014, following the deemed disposal of the Group's
partial interests in i-Sprint.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

With respect to other income for the year ended 31st December 2014, the
Group recorded an one-off gain of HK$44.7 million due to the deemed
disposal of the Group’s partial interests in i-Sprint. Details of the deemed
disposal are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 28th January
2014, 4th February 2014 and 12th February 2014. Following the completion of
investment from a strategic investor, i-Sprint recorded a loss for the year ended
31st December 2014 due to i-Sprint having a strategic planning on business
development, which resulted in an expected sharing of loss of associates by
the Group for the year under review.

During the year under review, a business contract of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group had been terminated, details of which are disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 19th March 2014 and 21st May 2014.
As a result, the Group had adopted a prudent approach in making provisions
for the potential financial impact that might incur. The possible impact arising
from the termination of the business contract on the Group's results for future
financial periods is subject to negotiation.

The aforesaid one-off gain and the effectiveness of operational efficiency
enhancement were partially offset by the share of loss of associates and the
prudent approach adopted on making certain provisions for the termination of
the business contract.

For the year ended 31st December 2014, orders newly secured by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,537.6 million, representing a decrease of
8.9% as compared to last year. As at 31st December 2014, the order book
balance was approximately HK$783.3 million, a decrease of 6.8% compared
to last year. The Group’s net cash stood at approximately HK$130.4 million
with a working capital ratio of 1.68:1. The Group maintained a healthy balance
sheet and outstanding borrowings amounted to approximately HK$42.0
million as at 31st December 2014. The above comparative amounts excluded
orders, cash and cash equivalents and short-term borrowings of disposal group
classified as held for sale.

Business Review

Despite the fact that the business environment remained challenging in
2014, we strived to stand out ourselves and continued receiving significant IT
solutions and services orders from public and commercial sectors, exemplifying
a proud past of 40 plus years of strong foundation which cultivates a diverse
pool of IT expertise that meets customer’s needs. During the year under
review, the Group continued to secure numerous sizable government or quasi-
government projects. It is worth noting that the Company has been awarded a
long-term managed services tender for providing a 5 years personal computer
support services to a statutory body who has been our long-standing customer.
The awarded tender is synchronised with the Group’s direction with service
provisions in compliance with international standards while expanding services
business.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
TBHREERE

In the aspect of solutions business, the Group is pleased with the joint success
achieved by working closely with i-Sprint, an associate of the Company and
a regional leader in Identity, Credential and Access Management (ICAM)
solution services, in securing increasingly significant deals from security
intensive financial institutions and major customers in Asia. Our joint success
also expanded to the education sector by garnering security deals with two
renowned universities.

Leveraging our strong domain expertise, the Group successfully obtained a
number of industry-specific solutions orders with the application of multi-
vendor technologies, including the provision of business intelligence solutions
and services for one of the world’s leading independent aircraft engineering
and maintenance groups, a large-scale revamp of a point-of-sales system
for an international clothing company and the implementation of a core IT
network for a new building of a non-profit-making private hospital in Hong
Kong.

Outlook and Prospects

To deal with the market challenges and strengthen our market position as
a trustworthy and professional IT partner, the Group focused its efforts on
refining and implementing new strategies in the second half of 2014. Notably,
we have defined our IT solutions and services to 5 strategic focus areas of
Infrastructure, Security, Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud (“5 Focused
Solutions and Services”). Infrastructure is positioned as the foundation for our
business, while Security is identified as the intersecting pillar and core focus
among them.

The convergence of cloud computing, social and mobile technologies
together with the challenges in managing and safeguarding big data create
great potential markets for security business. According to a recent study of
International Data Corporation (IDC), the overall Asia/Pacific (excluding Japan)
IT security market would increase at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
of 11.4% to US$6.2 billion in 2017.

We will continue securing our leading position in systems integration in Hong
Kong while focusing on developing our security business which will be one of
our strategic growth areas.

Winning together with i-Sprint not only signified the Group’s investment in
i-Sprint is successful, but also its expansion strategy is on the right track. In
the early 2015, we have already been in close discussion with our partners
and customers in using application software (Apps) embedded with i-Sprint's
products and received positive feedbacks. The Company will continue to
leverage intellectual property and the proven records of i-Sprint, and our 40
plus years of solid foundation to provide world-class security solutions. In
addition, we will invest to enhance our security business operation.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

To further strengthen its leading position in regional IT and security markets,
the Group made a strategic investment by officially launching a leading-
edge IT solutions center, Automated Center of Excellence (the “ACoE") at
its Hong Kong headquarters on 9th January 2015. Covering approximately
10,000 square feet with 7 main areas, the ACoE is designed with multi-
vendor interoperability for partners and customers to experience the aforesaid
5 Focused Solutions and Services. It can also be served as a comprehensive
business center, offering a professional business environment for meetings,
products and solutions demonstrations, proof-of-concept, trainings, workshops
and seminars using the latest technologies. The Group believes that the ACoE
is a unique platform to provide an impressive and informative experience to
partners and customers by offering an opportunity to see, touch and feel the
integrated solutions we offer.

In addition, the Group foresees that the growth momentum in industries such
as retail, healthcare and aviation will continue and the demand for products
and solutions from them will remain strong in foreseeable future. Hence, the
Group will continue to customise industry-specific solutions for partners and
customers by using our 5 Focused Solutions and Services.

IT is a service-oriented business and greatly relies on high quality personnel. As
such, we keep building an open and dynamic environment that will enhance
teamwork and communication as well as to equip and drive our employees to
innovate in order to provide the best service to our regional customers.

Looking ahead, we will continue to work closely with our huge network of
world-leading partners, streamline our operation process as well as create
greater synergies with our ultimate holding company, Beijing Teamsun
Technology Co., Ltd. With the refined strategic focuses, invested facilities and
enhanced talent pool, the Group believes that the stage is ready for us to
move up the value chain and to seek new growth opportunities.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2014, the Group's total assets of HK$1,152.3 million
were financed by current liabilities of HK$446.3 million, non-current liabilities
of HK$43.2 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$662.8 million. The Group
had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.68:1.

As at 31st December 2014, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facility from banks of approximately HK$310.8 million (2013: HK$310.0
million). The Group had pledged leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in an aggregate amount of HK$309.9 million (2013: HK$267.4
million) and restricted bank deposits of approximately HK$0.8 million (2013:
HK$0.1 million) for banking facilities and performance bonds granted to the
Group respectively. The performance bonds issued by the Group to customers
as security of contracts were approximately HK$46.5 million as at 31st
December 2014 (2013: HK$44.0 million). The Group's gearing ratio (total
borrowings over total equity) was 6.3% as at 31st December 2014 (2013:
8.1%), the calculated gearing ratio excluded short-term borrowings of disposal
group classified as held for sale.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
TBHREERE

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources
and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group
include trust receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans.
The interest rates of most of them are fixed by reference to the respective
countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars (“USD"). The short-term
bank borrowings, excluding short-term borrowings of disposal group classified
as held for sale, are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign
exchange exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long
as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to link HKD to USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rates and therefore no related hedging financial
instrument was applied during the year ended 31st December 2014 (2013:
same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2014, bank deposits held as security for banking facilities
and performance bonds amounted to approximately HK$0.8 million (2013:
HK$0.1 million). As at 31st December 2014, performance bonds of HK$46.5
million (2013: HK$44.0 million) had been issued by the bank on behalf of the
Group to customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$44.5 million as at 31st December 2014
(2013: HK$44.5 million). The amount utilised against goods supplied as at
31st December 2014 which was secured by the corporate guarantee was
approximately HK$0.3 million (2013: HK$1.1 million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2014, the Group had contracted capital commitments
amounting to approximately HK$1.2 million (2013: nil).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 23.6%
and 8.0%, respectively, of the Group'’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 39.0% and
9.5%, respectively, of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2014 did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &1 R&EMAR AR Annual Report 2014 F

ERBBUR

AREEZ 2ERLE - RARNBERMRITREZ
FERERN - AREAHAZRITAEBREE
AEBREN BEWEODER B MEHE
Ko RERERZNEREN B EBRBER ZRT
REFREETE - RITFERETENET(TET R
X[ REA - BEIEE(TREDBRE
TEREZ BEMNEMER) ABTTRENL -

N LB

AEBRDMz W REEZRAEERBLRE
7T WA BRRITRRBT —E# BRI
B - BIARSE B PAR 2 S TTMNE R 7k F
BERSEN BE_T-HF+-_A=1t—AL
FE UESAEXNS 2R - FEit I EEH
ERRE AT A(ZE—=F : {EA)

FREE

BARITERAERRRITRERBHREZS
EHR T —UE+ = f=+—H#%)/A800,000/ 7T
(ZZ—=% : 100,000/ L) e R=ZZE—MNF+=
A=+—8 " afRIREAEELTEFIERASE
H IR 2 B IR 3B 5 46,500,0008 L (=T —=
F + 44,000,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE—NE&E+-—A=+—8 AEHEHZIE
AR EEHES S 2D RYERY A44,500,000
BT (ZZ — =4 : 44,500,000 7T) - R-F
—mE+=A=+—8 EREERAQFER
{EIE I 2 BB S S 2 £ 549/5300,00078 70 ( =
T—=4 : 1,100,000/ 7C) °

BAREE
RZZE—MOFE+=-A=+—0  AEEDTHH
EARFEIEL]1,200,0008T0( ZF—=4F ) ©

FEEFRHER
HE-_T-NNFE+_A=+—HILFE ¥kEA
AREFRGEABPZEEEIROEAEER
WA Z23.6%18.0% o KM kR AMEE
AZBEES NG EEABETE239.0% K
9.5% o

HEZZ-—WF+_A=+—HILFE  £QF
ZEE BREIZBMBALMRRUREERAES
ZR5% ARIBETRNE)RGEENAEE 2R
REPHUER 2 Fas



Chief Executive Officer's Statement

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2014, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,284
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan, Macau, Thailand,
Singapore and Malaysia. The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, working experience and the prevailing market conditions.
Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include
mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share options
scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28th May 2015
to 2nd June 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27th May 2015.
The final dividend warrants will be despatched on or before 16th June 2015.

2015 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on 20th
May 2015, and the register of members of the Company will be closed from
15th May 2015 to 20th May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 14th May 2015.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2014, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
annual results.

By Order of the Board
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19th March 2015
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Activity Highlights

SEENTEER

FEB —R

ASL partners with Juniper to

n participate in “The 5th BankTech
Executive Summit 2014".
ASLEF)uniper— R 2 £2[ The
5th BankTech Executive Summit
2014] °

APR A
ASL receives a “Web Accessibility
Recognition Scheme Gold Award”
for second consecutive years.
ASUBEE — FRERERNES
ARt -

JUN XA

a ASL showcases mobile and
security solutions at “The 3rd
China (Guangzhou) International
Finance Expo”.
ASLIA[ = A B () R &
ARG e BB |[RABBLEZS
FRIRF R o
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JUN XA
ASL introduces how QlikView's
n intelligent application can analyse
patrons’ spending pattern and
behavior on gaming, hospitality
and catering services.
ASLTT B 20 {AT 35 1BQlik View &S AE FE
ARERX - DITEENEY - 18
NAERIRTS LEVHE KT AR -

JUN <A
ASL enlightens customers on
OpenStack solutions for building
private and public clouds.
ASLRER % % = 6 B 7 F OpenStack
R RN ILE R AEER
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JUN XA
ASL, Cisco, Citrix and NetApp
a jointly organise an executive
luncheon to introduce data center
with virtualisation.
ASL ~ Cisco * Citrix &2 NetApp—[A]

BIRTRABTES  NHREER
LR L ©
JUL £A

ASL Thailand joins “The 13th Cyber

Defense Initiative Conference 2014
(CDIC 2014)" to demonstrate
advanced security solutions.
ASLZEEI 2 8] The 13th Cyber
Defense Initiative Conference —
[CDIC 20140 IR R E MY 22 2
RITER °

JUL AR
ASL Taiwan showcases integrated
security solutions at “IDC Asia/
Pacific CIO Summit 2014".
ASLEER[IDCEXRECIORN &R
E2014 R TRGEREMRFR ©

R



JUuL £A

As the largest single shareholder of

u i-Sprint, ASL supports the opening
of i-Sprint’s Hong Kong branch
office to meet regional customer
demand in security solutions.
YERI-Sprintic AR B — R
ASLZ F5i-SprintiR & FEE 75 A A
UmRBARFE 7 2R 5
GEES

JUL/AUG £B,I\R

m ASL brings customers to take part
in the opening ceremony of
"Center of Excellence” and the
large-scale “2014 Authentication
Technology and information
Security Summit” of i-Sprint in
Zhuhai.
ASLEE P 20Ni-Sprint A R/ H)
[0 IR A 2014%F
HOREINEREALZES
g ] o

SEP 1A
ASL keeps a keen pulse on today's

m IT world to promote mobile and
security solutions at the EMC
Forum 2014.
ASLEBLR S &Rt R AV AR
B 2014 EMCarig it EE B E)
RLEFRTER o

OoCcT +A
ASL, i-Sprint and HP co-organise a

m workshop to share the security
solutions and strategies to cater
the trend of mobile commerce and
cloud computing.
ASLER-Sprint X HP& 3 T &
DESHBOHENB i
R R RRTT R MREE

NoV +—A

a ASL shares the latest business
analytics solutions during ASL-
Oracle Executive Breakfast.
ASLFRASL-OraclefTHRA B R EE
DESINEBDOITRRTE -
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Activity Highlights
EETER

NoOV +—A
ELM receives “Hong Kong's Most

m Valuable Companies Award 2015
in recognition of its proven market
expertise and best business
practices over the years.
ELMEE[2015B B A BERE
R | BT EZFROTIHER
MREEBEE -

DEC +=A
ASL sets up a Play House at Shatin
headquarters to provide an open
and dynamic environment for staff.
ASLFY 428D 3% 37 Play House -
RETRE—EMKREZ T
B -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R $t &£ B AR AR



Major Contracts Secured in the Year

EAﬁﬁqF)ﬂEZEEA,%’J

HONG KONG CUSTOMER
BRER

SCOPE OF WORK
BRHEE

A statutory body
—EEHE

A statutory body
—IETERE

Renowned universities

EHARE

One of the oldest banks in
Mainland China

o B Pt L R — R SE SRS AR RTT

A financial institution

— T REE

A subsidiary of one of the leading consumer
finance services companies in Japan
—RRNAREBEREM N 2 HERERBE A
Gl PN

A Hong Kong-based full-service
commercial bank

—REREBNGAERERIT

An entertainment company

;l 4% 7\ j

One of the world’s leading independent
aircraft engineering and maintenance groups
PREP —KAEEMA B IRETER
HEEE

An international clothing company

— MR B AR X F)

A non-profit-making private hospital
in Hong Kong
TR —RIEEFLKELR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

Provision of personal computer support and related services for
approximately 20,000 devices

RAEA B STR RAARIARTS - W E 20,0006 K

Provision of a 5 years personal computer support services

RESMAFNEAERSIERE

Provision of security solution

REREERTER

Provision of security solution

REZEZHRTR

Provision of relocation services of information technology equipment

REEMPH R BB RY

Provision of i-Sprint’s single sign-on replacement solution

RAE-Sprint BB SR RBR AR

Provision of i-Sprint’s authentication and management solution
FREI-SprintiR F L B IR AR 77 52

Provision of a document management solution

REEERRRS R

Provision of business intelligence solutions and services

TR R AR R MR

A large-scale revamp of a point-of-sales system
REPHHERZFEITREIEH T

Implementation of a core IT network for the new building of
the hospital
REPHNEHABREZOEMBEAER
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OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
"INEF

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFTEZERSH

SCOPE OF WORK
BRHE

A well-known international serviced apartment
in Mainland China

—RHBEZFLNERDEERBAAE

An international clothing brand

in Mainland China

e Gl B e Nl

A Beijing branch of one of the largest real
estate developers in Hong Kong

—HKEABRAMEHREHILRD AT

A wholly-owned subsidiary in Mainland China
of one the largest independent

local bank in Hong Kong
—REBRABILAMIRITH
2EHEEWBHEAR

One of the tier 1 consumer banks in Taiwan
BERANEESRIRITZ—

A bank with more than one hundred years of
history in Taiwan

B BB A FELAIRT

A catholic university in Taiwan

BE—FRERAS

A renowned commercial bank in Thailand
R —KRERRTT

A leading Singapore bank
— KRBT FT IR ERTT

Provision of hotel management system solution
REWBEBEERSERT R

Design and implementation of email system upgrade

REETHH RSB RNRETNERE

Provision of IT project management and outsourcing service in Beijing
REFICRD R AR EAREIRR EIEMINIIRTS

Provision of IT infrastructure

REEMAPHRER RIE

Provision of professional services for Oracle database migration

RftOracle B REBR M Z X ARTS

Provision of authentication system for Internet banking
REH LRTRIRERBES

Provision of HDS compute system for server virtualisation

RRAHHDS T E IR & LA

Provision of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix authentication security products
FRAi-Sprint AccessMatrix H 1058 % & E M

Provision of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix authentication security solutions with
services deployment in three countries in Asia Pacific
IRAEi-Sprint AccessMatrix D RELZEHRTER
= [ERIR 80t B B iR A 20 AR TS

REPHRNEAREA
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSHEEAERT

|

Mr. LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BITES

Mr. LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
RERKE

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Leung, aged 54, has been an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 2009 and 2014 respectively.
Since 2011, Mr. Leung was appointed as
a senior advisor acting on behalf of the
Company with Beijing Teamsun Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the Company’s ultimate
holding company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and subsequently has became
a director of Teamsun in March 2014. He
is currently an executive director of Pansky
Technology Corporation Ltd., a subsidiary of
Teamsun, a director and the co-founder of
AsiaSoft Company Limited (“AsiaSoft”) and
was the chief executive officer of AsiaSoft. Prior
to AsiaSoft’s establishment in 2007, Mr. Leung
had spent 17 years with Sun Microsystems Inc.,
a company listed on NASDAQ (Stock Code:
JAVA) (“SUN") in the Greater China region.
He was the managing director (Greater China)
and a corporate director for SUN. Prior to
joining SUN, Mr. Leung held several finance
and/or sales positions in companies such as
Wang Pacific Limited, Unisys China Limited,
Philip Morris Asia Inc. and Exxon Chemical
Asia Pacific Ltd. Mr. Leung is also the chairman
and/or a director of a subsidiary and certain
associates of the Company which include the
chairmanship of i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
(“i-Sprint”). Mr. Leung has been appointed
as an adjunct professor of Beijing Institute of
Technology, Zhuhai since July 2014. Mr. Leung
holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business
Computer Method and a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the California
State University, Long Beach, the United States
of America.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & ) R &£ B AR A A

THER

ok BERTWNE - DRIE_ZTTNFR
T -OFREERQRRITEE RITRE
HoREAR T —FHREZTAREARD
RN EFBHER G T2 AR R REE
A& A BlE RE B R AR B R A B ([ 255
KRS MER - MR —MNFE= AR
BEBRRIZES - BEAEBRKRZHE
RAIRABHEBER AR ZHITES + AsiaSoft
Company Limited ([ AsiaSoft ] ) % = 3 2[R 8 9%
ARG EBAsiaSoft Z TR, - R=ZTZT L
F R AsiaSoftAl + B ERRNETER Eh
A A]Sun Microsystems Inc. (B& {3 L5% : JAVA)
(TSUND) R ERER 4 o FEESUNZ
APEEEREIEREEER - JBESUNAT -
REEDRIREMARAR - EFRFH
ARG - 35S B HTT N & E K Exxon
Chemical Asia Pacific Ltd. 5% KA & T % (&
MR, SIHERA - BREENARAR—HE
MEBARRETHERBZERR HES -
B4Ei-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd([i-Sprint]) 2 &
B REAEA-ZT—NFLtAREZAALR
BITRBHRTERMFEMAIT - REERBEE
AN RERIRORELE 2 TRHEKIEE
BB R TEEIRET S -
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Mr. WANG Weihang
B3

Mr. WANG Weihang
THmEE

Mr. Wang, aged 48, has been a Director
of the Company since 2009 and was re-
designated from a Non-Executive Director to
an Executive Director in May 2014. Mr. Wang
is currently the chairman and president, and
a director of Teamsun and the sole director
of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong
Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s immediate
holding company. Hong Kong Teamsun
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamsun.
Prior to re-designation as the chairman and
president of Teamsun, Mr. Wang was the
general manager of Teamsun, and the vice
chairman and general manager of the first
board of directors of Teamsun. Mr. Wang
holds an Executive Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and a Master’s Degree in Semi-Conductor
Materials and Microelectronic Technology from
the Information and Electronic Engineering
Department of Zhejiang University in the PRC.
Mr. Wang was awarded as 7 B & {4 /25 24
%% (China Software Industry Outstanding
Entrepreneur Laureate®) and B @i {4 E %
&) A ¥ (China Software Industry Prestige
Award Laureate#) by China Software Industry
Association in 2009. He was also awarded the
“Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese
Brand Award” in 2011.

EEAE  BFENT\ - B-FTAFREE
AARER  WHR_T—NFRABRFRITE
ERERNTES - TAEBRREBRAN 2 E
ERFEANER  TRAADAZERZERA
REBRREHR (FE) AR AR ([EBEBER
R E—EE - BBEBRKDEBRURE
BrzBHRANBLRR - RAETREBRKZ
EERFEER - TREREBRK Z KR
RE-EERGRERERFELE - TEER
BHEARAMB((HE])BERSBERE S
RERABTEERBELENM - ARPEINT
ARBEREEFTIRBRPE 2L E IR0
MEFRMBELEMN - TERER_ZTNFE
PEBETEGERE PR EERBAE
REPEBUEXDIAY - RIR-F——
FRRE PRSI A -



Mr. HU Liankui
B E L

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FYITES

Mr. HU Liankui
SHEAE S

Chairman

Mr. Hu, aged 64, has been a Non-Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company
since 2009. He is currently the chairman of
Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd.
Mr. Hu was the chairman and a director of
Teamsun. Prior to his re-designation as the
chairman of Teamsun, he was the chairman
of the first board of directors of Teamsun.
Mr. Hu is currently an independent director of
China Distance Education Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. Mr. Hu is also a director of the
Company’s subsidiary. Mr. Hu holds a Master’s
Degree in Management Engineering from
Tsinghua University in the PRC.

£

BASEA - WE AT A-TTAFRMIE
ARBZIFNTEREREE - WRBIERE
BISRRHX AR ATNESER - HEEBREER
AREEERES - RETREBARERR
Al - RAREBAKNE -EESREER - 5
ERRBERERYE (ARHANERBOE S
RO M) ZBIESE - HELERARAR
—MBRARZES - HREFATREERS
e BB TIRE L2 -

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. YOUNG Meng Ying
BERLE

Ms. YOUNG Meng Ying
BRBZt

Ms. Young, aged 57, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since
2009. Ms. Young is currently a director of
Pine Link Business Advisory Limited and Sun &
Young Business Advisory Limited. She worked
for Barclays Bank PLC as a senior trust officer in
1992 and founded Lynch Consultancy Limited,
a boutique business advisory/consultancy firm
specialised in pre-IPO or pre-merger corporate
restructuring in 2000. Ms. Young holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration
Management from the University of South
Australia in Australia and a Master’s Degree
in Practising Accounting from the Monash
University in Australia. Ms. Young is a certified
public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a certified
practicing accountant of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

Bt BRERTER  BZTTNFREE
RABZBULIRITESE - X TR ANLE
BEELAERAF RFERAELAERARE
F o FER AN _FABEREKBITZSM
EREE  RZZTTFAWBRAERAME
ERRAMA AR EAMMA L 2 £7550,
BERARBEERARAR - HrTHAR
MFERR SRS THERE T2 KRN
Monash University#8 2% 2 $h 2 & 5118+ 247 -
BETRABEGHMAG ZRESER - BN
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ESNEREEAE[BMN

Mr. LU Jiaqi
EERELE

Mr. LU Jiaqi
EEBELE

Mr. Lu, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2009.
Mr. Lu is currently the chairman and managing
director of Pearl River Distribution Limited.
He previously worked for China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and Modern
Advance Company Limited in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering
from Huazhong Institute of Technology
(currently known as Huazhong University of
Science and Technology) in the PRC and a
Master’s Degree in Management Engineering
from Tsinghua University in the PRC.

BESed - WENTERE  B-_TTAFEHNE
ARRZBIFPTES - ERERRRIIT
BERHER AR ERRFLLE - RREE
BERNER(EE)ERARMEREFEE
BRAR - EEEFAREERTER(RE
REPRRAR)RBEZ TRABLEMN - B
R BEFERRRE 2 BB TR 2L -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENSNEREAER

Ms. XU Peng
HEZt

Ms. XU Peng
wEzt

Ms. Xu, aged 58, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 2009. Ms. Xu is a PRC lawyer, currently
a lawyer* of Lantai Partners in Beijing, a
committee member of the 11th and 12th
National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Chaoyang
District of Beijing, a supervisor in the eighth
session of Beijing Municipal Lawyers Association,
a vice president of Beijing Chaoyang District
Lawyers Association, a council member of the
1st China Behavior Law Association, a supervisor
of Beijing Information Industry Association and
a legal adviser of Chaoyang District People’s
Government of Beijing Municipality. Ms. Xu was
also the officer and partner of Beijing Hengde
Law Firm. Ms. Xu received her education at the
Civil, Commercial and Economic Law School
of the China University of Political Science and
Law and completed #% % 5 2 A 70 A4 872
(the postgraduate program of economic law#)
in 2009.

Rt BEL+H\5 - BZETAFREE
ARBZBIFERITESR - LT TP EE
Bh - BRI RE AR EEEE - FEA
RBUaHA SRR TRAEES T —ERk+=
EZEgZ8  F/\ELRMEMHEES
IRTHERE - EEMHEReR - PR
RHEREEER  ERERBEEMTEERIER
mHBRARBMERER - R LhE R
REBEMEBAIERABA - LN
EENEEFRBERBREEEESRESE
KFEBEEMITERIE ©
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Mr. WANG Yueou
FEBXE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SEEEAE

Mr. WANG Yueou
TEBEE

Chief Financial Officer and

Joint Company Secretary

Mr. Wang, aged 40, joined the Group in 2011
and was the financial controller of the Group.
He has been the Chief Financial Officer and
the Joint Company Secretary of the Company
since 2013 and 2014 respectively. He is
currently a director of certain subsidiaries and
an associate of the Company which includes
the directorship of i-Sprint, the chief financial
officer and a director of Carnation Software
Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was
the chief financial officer and a board secretary
of Guangzhou Headway Technology Co Ltd,
and a regional finance manager (China) of
Wistron Information Technology & Services
Corporation. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from
Jinan University, a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from University of Wales, United
Kingdom and an Executive Master's Degree in
Business Administration from Research Institute
of Tsinghua University.

MBBERBEEATRE

FoeAk  BEM+m  R_T——FMEAE
EREAAEEVSBLEE - HRla=F
—ZFR T -HFRHEAR A ML
REEARME - TERERARARE THE
AEIR—HEBERF ZESE - BIE-Sprint2
EF - ERBERKMEAREMATE T
BRARZUMHBERESE - THhELBREN
EERBARRAIZ M HRERETGWE -
AR 2 BB AR D B IR A R) 2 Bl & i 75 45
Bo TEARAEMASEE ZHRGHEL
2y - BEBBTAREE THEREELTS
i - URBERBMERBE . SREEAE
THEREL S -
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Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BERELE

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEELYE

Joint Company Secretary

Mr. Ngan, aged 43, joined the Company in
2009 and is a finance manager of the Group.
He has been the Joint Company Secretary of
the Company since 2014. Mr. Ngan holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Financial Administration
(major in accounting) from University of New
England, Australia and is a certified public
accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a certified practicing
accountant of CPA Australia.

BEQRARE

B REN+ =5 RFTAFNARA
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
HEENSREEAEBN

Notes:

1. Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready resigned as an Executive Director of the Company and the Vice Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors with effect
from 1st July 2014 upon his retirement.

2. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry resigned as an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 23rd July 2014.
3. Ms. Chan Chung Lei, Joan resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1st July 2014.

4. Ms. Li Pik Yin appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1st July 2014 and resigned as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 25th September 2014.

# For identification purpose only

* The job title of the principal partner of Lantai Partners in Beijing has been corrected to a lawyer of Lantai Partners in Beijing.

Rt

1. BEEEERRMBEARATRITEERALTNERGRITR BT —NFLA—HEER -

2. IPKMAABREARRMTESRIORESR  B-T-NFLA-T=AREEN -

3. BRPEXLIBHEARRZARWE BT -HFLtA—HEER -

4. FEBLIRZERARRZAFANE B -F—WFLA-RAREN: UBREARRZATANE B2 NFAA-THHRER -
# EXE Rl

* IERMARMEBAEESY ANBBRIE ERIL RS EMEHAEE -
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERERE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying
and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its
business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles and
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions, save and except for code provisions A.4.1 and D.1.4,
details of which are explained below. The Company regularly monitors and
reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure these continue to meet
the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (the
“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the
Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to
capital and overall corporate structure, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to
the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its
business needs.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two Executive
Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon (Chief Executive Officer)!
Mr. Wang Weihang?

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Hu Liankui (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Young Meng Ying

Mr. Lu Jiaqi

Ms. Xu Peng

Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 23rd July 2014.

2. Mr. Wang Weihang was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 23rd May 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Composition (Continued)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 23 of this
annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules and is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a
wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and
affairs of the Company, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all the Non-Executive
Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are
available and accessible on the Company’s website at http:/Awww.asl.com.hk.
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http://www1.asl.com.hk/

THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board established a
Nomination Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board at least annually, identify suitable candidates to the Board, and
to make recommendations on any matters in relation to the appointment and
re-appointment of members of the Board. Appointment of new Directors is
reserved for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with
a diverse range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge
necessary to oversee the Group's business development, strategies, operations,
challenges and opportunities. The Nomination Committee takes into account
of that person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to the
Company before making any recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process, with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
("AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall
be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors shall be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although all Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at AGM of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that issuers should have formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment. Although the Company did not have formal letters of
appointment for all Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of references have set out the work scope of
the Board committees and delegation were made by the Board in respect of
the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) in such Board committees.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Weihang and Ms.
Young Meng Ying will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly
appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors
are arranged where necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Company had organised a
training session in August 2014 on boardroom strategies in risk management
and disclosure of inside information requirements. The training session was
conducted by a professional institute with presentation and briefing materials.
All the Directors have attended the above training session.

Insurance Cover for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.
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THE BOARD (Continued) =3 {05
Attendance Records of Directors and Committee BREERZEEREHFERDE
members
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance RN REFHEAL
The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional &EE@REFETFTEHRTONALE  WEREEE
meetings on other occasions as needed. RN EMEERTEIMNIGE o
During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Board held five meetings. HE-_Z-NF+-_A=Z+—BLFE B2F2

HBTRREE -

EEREETNFF+A=+—HLFE
meetings of Board committees and/or the general meeting of the Company THARARIEEeRHETZEeNes R/
held during the year ended 31st December 2014 are set out below: SRR A G 2 BRI L FE ek s T

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings,

$8 o

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship
RESZRBALE BETERRY

Remuneration Audit Nomination Management Investment 2014 AGM
Board Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee = —Z—M&
Name of Director Y EE22 FMZEEE ENEEE REZET EEZEE REREE RREFAE
Executive Directors YTEE
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon' PN 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 212 17 0n
TEA TEA TEA
Wang Weihang? T4 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 33 1 1"
NER NER NER
Lai Yam Ting, Ready? e 33 N/A N/A N/A 171 171 171
A T T
Hui Wing Choy, Henry* ok A 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 1" 1" 1"
TEA TEA TEA
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Hu Liankui® il 5/5 33 N/A 22 N/A N/A 17N
A T T
Independent Non-Executive ~ BIUFHTES
Directors
Young Meng Ying Cr 5/5 33 4/4 22 N/A N/A 71
T TiEA
Lu Jiagi Bexn 5/5 33 4/4 2R N/A N/A ”n
TEA TEA
Xu Peng fhig 5/5 N/A 4/4 22 N/A N/A 1"
TEA A A
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THE BOARD (continued)

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
members (Continued)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)
Notes:

1. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 23rd July 2014. He was also appointed as the chairman
of the Management Committee of the Company with effect from 23rd May 2014.

2. Mr. Wang Weihang was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 23rd May 2014. He also ceased
to be the chairman but remains as a member of the Management Committee of
the Company with effect from the same date.

3. Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready resigned as an Executive Director of the Company and the
Vice Chairman of the Board upon his retirement and ceased to be a member of the
Management Committee and the Investment Committee with effect from 1st July
2014.

4. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry resigned as the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 23rd July 2014. He also ceased to be
a member of the Management Committee and the Investment Committee with
effect from 23rd May 2014.

5. Mr. Hu Liankui was appointed as a member of the Investment Committee of the
Company with effect from 23rd May 2014.

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting
with the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended
31st December 2014.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and
Board committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as
agreed) before each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R EEAR A Annual Report 2014 4§

BEE
BREERZEEREHETHE®)

BRNUREFHEAB(E)
Bff%E

1. REXREECDRZARARRNTHER - BEZF
—VFEELtAZT=AREN - BFHEEZEAR
AREBZEGXE BT NFRA=-+=
AABAERK o

2. EHRMEECHARRFATEETHERNITE
= B-Z-WNERA *+*EI£$§£Z Eﬁilit@
B RATBEEFAAREREZES RRENE

3. ?E*E‘L?EEE%WW%‘%EZK NEIMITEERER
U TBRARAEEZEGRRER
AT -MFEER-HRER -

4. FOKMEARMEAARTHRERERITES 8
“E-MFEA-TZHRER - WA TERAE
RAEBRREGNREREGRE BTN

FREA-+=AREY -

5. MEMELLECEZTAARRREZEENKE -
BE-T-NERA-+=BER -

B EREAETESHE -
BRESEERERIN  H —mFE+—A

=+—RLFE - %$§IFE@3F$}1 TER(E
BB IEMTER) ERTEFRFENBER TR

///\_";u§°

SERERARER
THEESSHEMBTEHNBELRTE  UEE
ZEELREE  THRIZESFZERZAS
IR EHRBIARIUEZERETHEEE - 210
EnEFeeRkABTZEeSE  —Re8

HEIBEBA o

EREREESNMHERMAAR  ZERAUSZ
ﬁﬂ@EAR§$@§E§Yﬁ\$§T§E\@’;‘E%%Eﬁ
AR =B (B ENHMRER) TR THEE
- UBAESEARAZEABER R BURR -
%?&%iﬁﬂ‘%ﬁifﬁ EEEhEEENAIRE

ZRERNBEBESRERE -

ERERARTNKRER - MARNZAEBEE
BRERIXATRSRERNEAFENME - A
REESRRBELEERRTRE 2B



THE BOARD (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
by the Board and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written
resolution. The Company's Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Hu
Liankui and Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive
Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes
for the Board's approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective on 30th August 2013.
All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors. Two of them
are women. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The Board
is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
gender, professional background and skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and/or are
available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to
time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hu Liankui,
Ms. Young Meng Ying and Mr. Lu Jiagi. Mr. Lu Jiaqi is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management
and share options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and other
related matters. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman
of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2014. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed
the Executive Directors’ remuneration package (including their service
agreements) and the Group’s share option scheme.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision
B.1.5, the annual remuneration of members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31st December 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$) Number of individual

Nil — HK$1,000,000 2

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng,
among them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Ms. Young Meng Ying is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor
or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial

reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2014. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed
the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and
management response;

(c)  the corporate governance matters;

(d)  the matters in relation to the internal control, risk management systems
and internal audit; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice during the year
ended 31st December 2014.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2014 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hu Liankui, Ms.
Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng. Ms. Xu Peng is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@)  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

() toaccess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2014. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed
the following:

(@)  the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(b)  the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

() to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election
of Directors who were due to retire at the AGM, the re-designation of an
Non-Executive Director to a Executive Director and the appointment of
the Chief Executive Officer;

(d)  the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties; and

(e) to make recommendation to the Board about changes of the
composition of the Management Committee and the Investment
Committee.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and four senior executives, namely Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon, Mr. Wang
Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou, Ms. Cheng Wai Sze, Catherine, Mr. Lee Cheuk
Wai, Thomas and Mr. Shih Ho Sang, Dominic. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon is
the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and
reviewing the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and
making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the
Group. The Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required
to discuss the related issues.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon, Mr. Wang
Weihang and Mr. Hu Liankui. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and
evaluating existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company,
and making recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets
as and when required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31st December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its
corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
is responsible for corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board,;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e)  toreview the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2014.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant
information which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements.

AUDITOR'’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 57 to 58 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
the existing external auditor of the Company, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31st December 2014 amounted to
HK$950,000 and HK$476,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review
the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority designed to achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant rules and regulations. The system is designated to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Company’s objectives.

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of internal control system of the Group. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. The Board is in particular considered the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
AGMs and other general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and
the Chairmen of all Board committees or their delegate will make themselves
available at each AGM to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
Company's procedures in providing the shareholders with clear communication
and easy access to information about the Company.

The 2014 AGM was held on 21st May 2014. The notice of 2014 AGM was
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2014 AGM.

The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee or their delegate, and the Company’s
external auditor has attended the 2014 AGM to answer questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election
of individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions
put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural
matters) are taken by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition
by Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company may convene a special general meeting (“SGM") by written
requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by
the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the
Company to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which
is intended to be moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in
respect of any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a general
meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date

of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b)  not less than 100 shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders (Continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and unless the Company otherwise
resolves, the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
15th Floor, Topsail Plaza,

11 On Sum Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998
Fax: (852) 2608 6585
Email: asl_info@asl.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, a full time employee of the Company, who is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the Board on
governance matters and also facilitates induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed.

Ms. Chan Chung Lei, Joan (“Ms. Chan") resigned as the Company Secretary
with effect from 1st July 2014. Ms. Li Pik Yin (“Ms. Li”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary in place of Ms. Chan with effect from the same date.

Ms. Li resigned as the Company Secretary with effect from 25th September
2014. The Company appointed Mr. Wang Yueou (“Mr. Wang”) and Mr. Ngan
Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan") were then appointed as Joint Company Secretaries of
the Company in place of Ms. Li with effect from the same date. As announced
by the Company on 24th September 2014, Mr. Wang did not possess the
qualifications of company secretary as required under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has applied, and the Stock Exchange has granted, waiver
from strict compliance with Rules 3.28 with respect to the appointment of
Mr. Wang as the Company’s Joint Company Secretary from 25th September
2014 to 24th September 2017 (the “Waiver Period”) on the conditions that:
(i) Mr. Wang will be assisted by Mr. Ngan during the Waiver Period and the
waiver will be revoked immediately if and when Mr. Ngan ceases to be a Joint
Company Secretary of the Company; and (ii) the Company will notify the Stock
Exchange at the end of the Waiver Period for the Stock Exchange to re-visit the
situation. Since his appointment as the Company’s Joint Company Secretary,
Mr. Wang has gained the relevant experience in the course of discharging
his duties with the professional assistance of Mr. Ngan and has undertaken
training courses to enhance his knowledge of this area. The Company has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan has undertaken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31st
December 2014.

On behalf of the Board

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19th March 2015
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Directors’ Report

ESEHE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Note 49 and 23, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2014 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 59 and 60 of the annual report respectively.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2.5 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December 2014. The proposed dividend will
be paid to the shareholders on the register of members on 2nd June 2015,
amounting to approximately HK$7,797,000, and the remaining profit be
retained for the year ended 31st December 2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 28th May 2015
to 2nd June 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27th May 2015.
The final dividend warrants will be despatched on or before 16th June 2015.

2015 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on 20th
May 2015, and the register of members of the Company will be closed from
15th May 2015 to 20th May 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 14th May 2015.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st December
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
64 to 65 of the annual report.

As at 31st December 2014, the Group's special reserve and retained earnings
totaled approximately HK$335,114,000 (2013: HK$312,633,000).

The Company'’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at
31st December 2014 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling
approximately HK$95,996,000 (2013: HK$95,457,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Group spent approximately
HK$10,952,000 (2013: HK$4,295,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December
2014 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 23.6%
and 8.0%, respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 39.0% and
9.5%, respectively, of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2014 did a Director,
an associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2014 in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2014 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
Wang Weihang
(re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an Executive
Director with effect from 23rd May 2014)
Lai Yam Ting, Ready
(retired with effect from 1st July 2014)
Hui Wing Choy, Henry
(resigned with effect from 23rd July 2014)

Non-Executive Director
Hu Liankui

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Young Meng Ying
Lu Jiaqi
Xu Peng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr. Wang Weihang and Ms.
Young Meng Ying will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the Non-Executive Directors is the period up to
his/her retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the changes in information of Directors of the Company are set
out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon has been appointed as an adjunct professor of
Beijing Institute of Technology, Zhuhai since July 2014.

Ms. Xu Peng has been appointed as a legal advisor of Chaoyang District
People’s Government of Beijing Municipality during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Group engaged AsiaSoft
Services Limited, a subsidiary of AsiaSoft Company Limited (“AsiaSoft”), for
the provision of certain services (including software engineering outsourcing
services, other information technology related services and rental services), and
an approximate total fee of HK$5,513,000 was paid or payable by the Group
for such services. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon, a Director of the Company,
was considered interested in such transactions by virtue of his directorship and
his disclosed shareholding in AsiaSoft.

Other than as disclosed in the above and the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” below, no contracts of
significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31st December 2014 or at any time during the year ended 31st
December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

EERmRERK 2 ER

BRI EMHRAESI0FRE  REBEE-F
—E+-—A=1t—BLFERN  UTES
R RERIERNEREEXEEREF
KA R A KBRS EBRE T < EFTHEE

R HFFIFEIIMT

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st
December 2014, the following Directors were considered to have interests in
the businesses which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out
below:

Name of Director

E=pR

Name of the entities which
were considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group
RRARESEEERBRD
THBHHT ERAR

Description of businesses of

the entities which were considered
to compete or likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group
HARREEEEBBRS
ARBRHRT 2 B2 £ T

Nature of Director's
interest in the entities

ESRUSER BENE

Hu Liankui'

il

Wang Weihang?

T

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
("Teamsun”)

EREBREBBERNBER AR
([EBARK])

Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co.

Ltd.
EREBEAMBARAA

Subsidiaries of Teamsun

Information technology product service,
application software development, value-
added distribution and system integration

EAMRERRSE - RRARAZHRE
BESHRFRES

Information technology related
TRERRHR

Information technology related

(excluding Teamsun Technology (HK)

Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun"))
EBRN L MBAT

(TREEBRIE (B8) R

([BBZEBRK]))

Teamsun

EBRK

Hong Kong Teamsun

BEEBAK

Subsidiaries of Teamsun

EBRKLHBRF

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)
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Information technology product service,
application software development, value-
added distribution and system integration

BRMBERRE - BEREATTESE
BENHEIERES

Window company of Teamsun in Hong Kong
and mainly provides administrative support
to the clients of Teamsun in the PRC and
Hong Kong

ERRKEEAEOLA  TERNEBRK
ZEFREREBRITHIR

Information technology related

REERR
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Chairman and director

E=R%ER

Chairman
IR

Director

B

Vice chairman and president, director
and substantial shareholder

BESRREY EFRIERR

Sole director

H-E%F

Director

E=



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS (continued)

Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

EERmRERK2ER @)

Name of the entities which
were considered to compete or

Description of businesses of
the entities which were considered

likely to compete with to compete or likely to compete

the businesses of the Group with the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's
Name of Director BRERAEEEBERD BREBRFEEERERD interest in the entities
E ] THERRF ERER THERRT BB FBHT ESRZSER ERNE
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon®  Teamsun Information technology product service, Director

application software development, value-
added distribution and system integration

ZiENe EBERK BARBERRYE  EREARMHRE £ &=
ENHREREA
Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd. (a Information technology related Director
wholly owned subsidiary of Teamsun)
RABHRERRA EBXKZ IEEERRE £
2EREMBRA)
AsiaSoft and its subsidiaries Information technology related Director and/or substantial
shareholder
AsiaSoft R Efff B A7) TEEERRE B/ SFERR
Notes: Bfi5E
1. Mr. Hu Liankui resigned as a director and the chairman of Teamsun upon his 1. A E S AR LRMBITEBAKEERHE

retirement with effect from 14th March 2014. = H-T—NFE=A+HBERER -

2. Mr. Wang Weihang was re-designated from the vice chairman to the chairman of 2. FH#MELCHEBAKSEETEHNTAES
Teamsun with effect from 14th March 2014. He also ceased to be a substantial R -BZF—MNF=ATMOHEBER - BT
shareholder of Teamsun but remains to hold 62,937,446 shares of Teamsun, BREBRAKMZEIERE  HMBHEER KK
representing approximately 9.81% of the issued share capital of Teamsun, with 62,937,446 X AR 1 + (HZERE R 2 B BITIRAL
effect from 23rd December 2014. 981% ' BT —MF+-_A=-+=BEK

3. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon was appointed as a director of Teamsun with effect 3. REXAHECESTAEBARZEE - F
from 14th March 2014. —PUE= B+ H AR o

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid HREZTEBUNR LM AFRIZETENINLIES
companies, and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is IR HEEE - AEE BN Lt AR 2%
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from,  FA R FEFEAFREHER -

the businesses of the aforesaid companies.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions

of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to

EEZ RO RERRAD 2 ER

RZT—NFEF+_A=+—H BEBERAQAFE
ZITBABRARE REFAAEEE(ERRE
F RGN FHFRBEEA ) EXVED) 2 &K
7 BERNDRESPHEEM@ *E'JJ% A5 RHE
f'm1§U§|%XV*|3%7&8’\4 BHERAT LB
Em ok (BREREREF PR |z<1§UZ7ﬁ?‘§ 1632
&”‘{fw&%ﬁ%%&ﬁﬂgﬁn&ﬁﬁ) (b) IR 45 E

%&H\:@E%WUQQSZ fﬁyanE/\‘EZﬂ*Xﬁﬁ}lZi‘fﬁE

be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant i} Z 4z RAA © k(c *ETFJ:I‘D??ETT/\?%LTT
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers #4532 5 E’]E/ #HIJ(H%_’EW,H\lJJ);,E%ﬂ@ZK
(the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange — REtZFr 228 KR ([ES 217D &E Eﬁﬂﬁ@
("Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows: 2R DT ¢
(a) Shares () 13
Approximate
% of
Personal Family ~ Corporate shareholding
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total IRRERAN
NEER £ B AL KR A Hity st BAL
Teamsun, the ultimate holding Hu Liankui 17,824,054 - - - 17,824,054 2.78%
company of the Company il
EBXK - AAAZ
RIRERRA Wang Weihang 62,937,446 - - - 62,937,446 9.81%
T
(b) Underlying shares () MR 5
Personal Family Corporate
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total
ARHBH Bz A RS ARER Hit st
Automated Systems Holdings Limited  Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 1,020,000° - - - 1,020,000
EEESE S YN RER
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 2,239,748 - - - 2,239,748

("i-Sprint”), an associate of the RiEN
Company
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

(i-Sprint) ) + AR 2B A7
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

(b) Underlying shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company, further details of which
are set out in section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

2. Restricted share units confer rights to holders receiving existing ordinary
shares of i-Sprint, an associate of the Company, upon vesting at no
consideration pursuant to an employee share ownership plan adopted by
Superguard Global Holdings Limited (“Superguard”) on 28th January 2014.
Superguard is a special purpose vehicle set up, among other things, to hold
the award shares on trust for the benefit of the participants of the aforesaid
plan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2014, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company held any Directors’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 8th August
2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any employee
and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Scheme expired
on 7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can no longer grant any further
share options under the Scheme. However, all share options granted prior to
7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect. Details of the Scheme are
set out in Note 41(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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EESHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) B ER Bl

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options 7N &2 BEIRENEZ R 2 S8 T ¢

during the year:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

ROBBRERFRTIRE
Granted  Exercised lapsed  Cancelled At 31st
At 1st during during during during December Date
January 2014 the year the year the year the year 2014 of grant Exercise Exercise
Participants RZ2-WE Re-dlassification REE REE REE REE R-Z-ME RbERE period price
28% -A-8 ENDE RS R R%MH hE# t-A=t-H k] LR T
HKS
B
Directors
gz
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 510,000 - - - - - 510,000 19.3.2012 19.3.201310%183.2022 1.09
RiEN 510,000 - - - - - 510000 252012 2.5.201310%1.5.2022 1.12
1,020,000 - - - - - 1,020,000
Hui Wing Choy, Henry2 690,000 (690,000) - - - - - 1932012 193.201310%183.2022 1.09
kR 1,919,000 (1,919,000) - - - - - 252012 25201310%152022 1.12
2,609,000 (2,609,000) - - - - -
Other employees 4,260,000 690,000 - (60,0008 (780,000) - 3710000 1932012 19.3.201310%183.2022 1.09
HihES 3,666,000 1,919,000 - - (1,656,000 - 3929000 252012 25201310%152022 1.12
7,926,000 2,609,000 - (460,000)  (2,436,000) - 7,639,000
Total 11,555,000 - - (460,000)  (2,436,000) - 8,659,000
aft
Notes: Bf%E
1. All of the above options have been or will be vested equally on each of the first, 1.  EFilFTEEREEEREARLBHNE— &

second and third anniversaries of the date of grant, except for the options granted
on 2nd May 2012 which will also be vested immediately in full in the event of a
special dividend of the Company being declared.

2. Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from 2.

23rd July 2014.

3. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately 3.

before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$1.30.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme"” above, at no time during
the year ended 31st December 2014 was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) During the year ended 31st December 2014, the Group entered into
the following transactions with its fellow subsidiaries, holding company
and ultimate holding company which constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under the

Listing Rules:

Set out below are the Continuing Connected Transactions which
occurred during the year ended 31st December 2014 pursuant to a
supply agreement and a distributor agreement entered into between
Teamsun and the Company on 21st March 2013.

Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

EERERNHES ZER

B EXEEZ iy RARRR D 2 s | I BB A
FTEIPTREEESN  ART] - HEAERAR - [
EMBARSMBARNBE_T—OF+=-A
=t+— A LEFEREARRBEEDEAZEE
HEARBZEZAREBEARASEMEME
AEREZ BN E S TR o

N REBE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—RLFE
W AEBEEFERMBRR  ERAFR
RESER A RETBRE L TR AERISE
BERS ([FHERERS N 2ZX5MT

TREIMBBEEBAKERARAR T —=
F=AZ+— BRI Z R R0 3 1
BREBETNFET-_A=+T—HIFE
PHEIT 2 FERIER 5 -

Name of company Description of the transactions Amount
yNCIEE X5zt Ll
HK$’'000
TET
Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contracts 1,604
HERERAK REEFBEREOXNZ 2
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contracts 696
REBEFBIRBAE ORI 2 05
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contracts 224
REBE IR A HOWEZ © 5
Hong Kong Teamsun Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contracts 9
BBEBRK REEFRRGE KK Z 58
Asiasoft Securities Ltd Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contracts 358
I RUKHEE MR AR AT REEFBIRFBE ORI 2 25
Beijing TongMap Information Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contracts 40
Technology Co., Ltd.
IR REREE SR AR AT REBEFBIRBE O 2 05
ITMS Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contracts 858

R QLR BRAT

REBERRBE DN 2 25
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

m

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

(Continued)

The above Continuing Connected Transactions are subject to various
annual cap amounts disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24th
April 2013. Capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the aforesaid circular unless specified
otherwise.

The Company’s Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740, “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the
Group above in accordance with Rule14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that the above Continuing Connected
Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i)  either on normal commercial terms or, where there were no
sufficient comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(ili)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

On 28th January 2014, the Company, ASL Security Solutions Limited
("ASL Security”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), i-Sprint,
Great Ally Investments Limited (the “Investor”), Top Realm Global
Limited (“Top Realm”) and Superguard Global Holdings Limited
(“Superguard”) entered into a share subscription agreement pursuant
to which the Investor subscribed for 118,973,914 new i-Sprint’s shares
(the “Subscription”). The completion of the Subscription is conditional
upon the fulfillment of all the conditions precedents by the parties to the
agreement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

@)

(Continued)

On the same date, ASL Security, i-Sprint, Top Realm and Superguard
entered into a deed of share gift and trust pursuant to which ASL
Security transferred at nil consideration 9.44% and 7.90% of the then
issued share capital of i-Sprint to Top Realm and Superguard for the
purpose of new employee share ownership plans (the “New ESOP")
to be adopted by Top Realm and Superguard respectively (the “Share
Transfer”). Both Top Realm and Superguard are special purpose vehicles
set up, among other things, to hold the award shares on trust for the
benefit of the participants of the New ESOP.

The Subscription and the Share Transfer constituted a disclosable
transaction. Since the primary purpose of Superguard is to hold the
relevant award shares as trustee for the benefit of the participants of the
New ESOP to be adopted by Superguard, which include Mr. Leung Tat
Kwong, Simon (a Director of the Company, the chairman and a director
of i-Sprint and certain of its subsidiaries) (“Mr. Leung”), Mr. Ching Wai
Keung (a director of i-Sprint and certain of its subsidiaries) (“Mr. Ching")
and Mr. Chia Soon Fatt (a director of certain subsidiaries of i-Sprint) (“Mr.
Chia”) and Mr. Tang Wai Loong (a director of a subsidiary of i-Sprint)
(“Mr. Tang"), Superguard is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of Superguard being deemed an associate of Mr. Leung, Mr.
Ching, Mr. Chia and Mr. Tang. Accordingly, the share transfer to
Superguard constituted a connected transaction of the Company which
was subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

On 28th January 2014, in view of the New ESOP and the proposed pre-
IPO Incentive Scheme, each of the participants of the ESOP adopted on
10th July 2013 executed a cancellation letter consenting to the absolute
cancellation of the ESOP. The cancellation letters are conditional upon
the Completion of the Subscription. The Completion took place on
12th February 2014 and i-Sprint has ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 28th January 2014, 4th February 2014 and 12th February 2014
respectively. Capitalised terms used in the section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the aforesaid announcements unless
specified otherwise.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every person
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO were

FERR

K=B-mFE+=A=+—H  RELFEER
TEAHARFM - TIALAATEERTE
TRABBRINRAR T Z RIS ARBIR
RIS B OBV B2 B35 BARNAR
A B AR ¢

as follows:
Number of ordinary shares Percentage of
Name of shareholder of the Company held issued share capital
REREHE RARFEZEBERROEE %
Direct interest Deemed interest ERITREAZ
HiEER WRBER BTk
Hong Kong Teamsun 208,792,996 - 66.95
BABER R
Teamsun - 208,792,996' 66.95
R
Note: PfsT -
1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun 1. EBRAKNREBEBRARKE L BITR AT

and was therefore deemed to be interested in the 208,792,996 shares in which
Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2014, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2014, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed
securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws,
or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st
December 2014, except as noted below:

a)  with respect to Code provision A.4.1, all Non-Executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws; and

b)  with respect to Code provision D.1.4, the Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors. However, the
terms of references have set out the work scope of the Board committees
and delegation made by the Board in respect of the responsibilities of
the Non-Executive Directors in such Board committees.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31st December 2014.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st December
2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2014. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the
management the continuing connected transactions, connected transactions,
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review
of the annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing,
financial reporting and internal control matters.

AUDITOR

In July 2012, the Company’s former auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned
as auditor of the Company, and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was
appointed as Auditor of the Company. Apart from this, there has been no
change of Auditor of the Company in any of the three preceding years. A
resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-
appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19th March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BENHR S

° Grant Thornton
#[E

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRGEBERDE

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 59 to 166, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31st December 2014, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR R 2 Gl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

19th March 2015

Shaw Chi Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P04834
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Consolidated Income Statement

e E

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue WA 7 1,433,921 1,612,958
Cost of goods sold HEKAR (732,265) (811,281)
Cost of services rendered IRAARIE 2 B AR (587,406) (651,179)
Other income EAbUA 8 5,277 6,351
Other gain/(loss), net HuFas/ (518) 9 43,165 (2,084)
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment B{HREMEZ
properties NRrEERS 21 6,658 6,600
Selling expenses HEEH (70,354) (71,160)
Administrative expenses THEA (46,945) (66,956)
Finance income BT A 10 925 1,415
Finance costs BTN 11 (1,414) (1,633)
Share of results of associates e NI E S 23 (21,973) 563
Profit before income tax FRETS B ADERI 12 29,589 23,594
Income tax expense Fris®imx 16 (1,125) (6,314)
Profit for the year FRER 28,464 17,280
Attributable to: FEqh -
Equity holders of the Company RARRAFEEA 28,495 17,280
Non-controlling interests EErl g (31) -
28,464 17,280
HK cents HK cents
Bl AL
Earnings per share attributable to RATREFEA
equity holders of the Company ERSRER
Basic and diluted EARR S 19 9.15 5.55
The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated HNEETEE 1668 2 Bz A IR

financial statements.

Annual Report 2014 & #§

RZDAIHRELSD

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4t =B AR AR




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SmEEHEBER

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—2-AmEF =E—=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TR

Profit for the year FERER 28,464 17,280

Other comprehensive income/(loss): Ht 2wz (EiE) :

Items that will not be reclassified HEM{TawE fze
subsequently to profit or loss: BammEE -
Revaluation surplus of leasehold land and HELTH R
buildings BFEHhAH 20(a) 42,482 40,004
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation ~— FHE + i MIEFEH
surplus of leasehold land and buildings REREE ZIRIERIE 40 (7,010) (6,600)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently — H &SRR EHIEE

to profit or loss: BmAyEE -
Exchange differences on translation of MEGINETES 2
overseas operations EHER (2,448) (2,201)
Reclassification adjustment of translation HEH B A AR
reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries i R BSIAE 33 (451) -
Share of other comprehensive loss of FEIGEEE AT
associates HivzmEsiE 23 (202) -
Total comprehensive income FREMEBEEE
for the year 60,835 48,483
Attributable to: FEAS -
Equity holders of the Company RATREFEEA 60,866 48,483
Non-controlling interests iR R (31) -
60,835 48,483
The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated BNEETEF 1668 2 MR A M TSR
financial statements. K2 RAIHRE S
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

hEEERER

As at 31st December 2014 R-ZE—ME+_-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-0OF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R RRE 20(a) 278,485 236,823
Investment properties TEME 21 50,200 43,000
Intangible assets mEAE 22(a) 4,018 5,906
Goodwill EES 22(a) - -
Interests in associates kNl e 23 63,569 877
Finance lease receivables el R E T E A 28 5,184 12,932
Deferred income tax assets IRIEPTISTE B 40 3,345 320
404,801 299,858
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 26 125,239 124,225
Trade receivables JEWE Z5RIA 27 179,417 210,963
Finance lease receivables FEY Rl & AE & R IE 28 10,015 18,055
Other receivables, deposits and HEWEIE « Ee &
prepayments TERFRIE 29 24,521 16,999
Amounts due from customers for AR ITRRENEFPHRIE
contract work 30 271,058 241,928
Tax recoverable AT e R TE 6,052 4,152
Restricted bank deposits PR HIERITFR 31 781 48
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRSHEY 31 130,439 114,661
747,522 731,031
Assets of disposal group classified DERFEHEZ
as held for sale HEMARIZ EE 32 - 84,201
747,522 815,232
Total assets HEE 1,152,323 1,115,090
Equity attributable to equity EABREIFEA
holders of the Company EinrEz
Share capital (&N 34 31,186 31,140
Share premium 1w ERR 105,528 104,947
Reserves & 35(a) 526,123 472,560
Total equity AR 662,837 608,647

HNFTEH 166 B Z M B A M TH R
RZ A HBRAD -

The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEEEAREX

As at 31st December 2014 R-ZE—ME+_-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHBE 40 43,228 35,458
43,228 35,458
Current liabilities RESE
Trade payables FERE 5308 36 228,632 224,208
Other payables and accruals H BT RIE R ERT B A 37 56,479 47,262
Receipts in advance TEY 38 118,004 115,356
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRS B & 1,143 2,972
Short-term borrowings EEEE 39 42,000 49,257
446,258 439,055
Liabilities of disposal group classified DERFEHEZ
as held for sale HEMARIzaE 32 - 31,930
446,258 470,985
Total liabilities weE 489,486 506,443
Total equity and liabilities HERRAE 1,152,323 1,115,090
Net current assets RBEEFE 301,264 344,247
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 706,065 644,105
HU Liankui LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
= RENR
Director Director
EF =
The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated HNFEETEE 1668 2 Bk A IR
financial statements. FR2Z R ERES ©
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Balance Sheet

BEEEX

As at 31st December 2014 R-ZE—ME+_-A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF —=—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R RRE 20(b) 1,235 422
Intangible assets mEE 22(b) = 500
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARZIZE 25 1 1
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTIAE 40 623 290
1,859 1,213
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, deposits and HthEWRIA - ke &k
prepayments TEfT B 29 232,737 237,713
Tax recoverable EplqEp 258 -
Cash and cash equivalents R NIRSZEEY 31 3,421 1,120
236,416 238,833
Total assets waE 238,275 240,046
Equity attributable to equity ERATREFEA
holders of the Company FEfhRER
Share capital &N 34 31,186 31,140
Share premium f& 155 (B RR 105,528 104,947
Reserves 5 35(b) 98,256 97,929
Total equity ks 234,970 234,016
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals HERRIE R EETE A 37 3,305 6,030
3,305 6,030
Total liabilities FER=T 3,305 6,030
Total equity and liabilities BEZRAE 238,275 240,046
Net current assets REBEETFE 233,111 232,803
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 234,970 234,016
HU Liankui LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
tREE RER
Director Director
BE EF

HNFETEH 166 B Z M B A MR
RZ A HBRAD -

The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE—T—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

Share-
based
Special  Property payment
Share reserve  revaluation Teserve Non-
Share  premium (Note () eserve  Translation ) Retained controlling
capital ; LB reserve 53 eamings IEE
e : ) B EXGRE BE RER SRR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 f HK§'000  HK$'000
Ter  Tér Tt TR TEn ThL BT BT TATL
At 1st January 2013 W=E-=£-A-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 120,770 4,406 1,916 216473 574,002 - 574,002
Comprehensive income: 2HkE:
Profit for the year Epgfl - - - - - - 17280 17280 -
Other comprehensive Efh2EkE/
income/(loss): (E8):
Revaluation surplus of leasehold land ~ EE+36 %
and buildings BFEMRS - - - 40004 - - - 000 - 0004
Deferred taxation arising from RELHRETER
revaluation surplus of leasehold land ~ BgAZ A7
and buildings e - - - (6,600) . - - (6,600) - (6,600)
Exchange differences on ranslation of ~ £E &£ 2
Overseas operations Eizg - - - - - - Q) -
Total comprehensive income EREEREAE
for the year - - - 33404 (2,201) - 17280 48,483 - 48483
Transactions with owners: HEEAZRE
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends RUAERE - - - - - - 5 5 - 5
Final dividend for the year ended 31st  FEEZ-5——F
December 2012 (Note 17) T-A=1+-H
HEEZRERE
(W317) - - - - - - (15570 (15,570) - (15,570)
Recognition of equity-settled share- ~ HALAR (35
based payments BB AR - - - - - 1,721 - 1,721 - 1727
Lapse of share options tranferred to~ EEZRERFZ
retained eamings RigE - - - - - (%) 9% - - -
Total transactions with owners ~ EEEAZRZEE - - - - - 1632 (154700 (13839 - (1383%)
At 315t December 2013 R=E-=%
+-A=t-H 31,140 104,947 34350 154,174 2,205 3,548 218,283 608,647 - 608,647
The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated BN ETEE 166 B 2 MBS M5
financial statements. RZTAI S RE D
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GaERPER

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE-_ZT—NE&+_A=+—HILFE

Special  Property
Share reserve  revaluation

Share-

based

payment
reserve Non-

Share  premium  (Note(i)  reserve Translaton  B\Rf3%  Retained controlling Total

capital RHRE  NEER
R& EEER (WG fife
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
Téx TEm  TEr TEn

reserve  EWFfT  eamings Total interests equity
EiGfE fife  REEA E FoREE  SEGE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén TR TEn Tén TEn TEn

At 1t January 2014 W-8-DmE-A-A 31,140 104,947 34,350 154,174 2,205 3,548 278,283 608,647 - 608,647
Comprehensive income: 2l
Profit for the year FRigH - - - - - - 28495 2849% (31) 28464
Other comprehensive 12 ERE/

income/(loss): (B8
Revaluation surplus of leasehold land ~ TE T3k

and buidings BFERES = = - s - - - - am
Deferred taxation arising from RETIRIETER

revaluation surplus of leasehold BHELZ

land and buildings EILRE = = - (100 = = - (100 - (1010
Exchange differences on tranglation ~ #Zi550£K 2

of overseas operations ErzE - - - - M = - (48 - M
Redlassfication adjustment of HENBARBES

translation reserve upon disposal falE 2 B33

of subsidiaries (Note 33) (M&33) = = = - (451) - - (451) - (a51)
Share of other comprehensive EEBERAEMEE

Jogs of associates (Note 23) BB(hE2) - - - - (202) = = (202) = (20)
Total comprehensive income FREEREAE

for the year - - - 35472 (3,101) - 28,495 60,866 31 60,835
Transactions with owners: HEEAZRE:
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends ~~ JRURERS = = - - - - 3 3 - 3
Issue of ordinary shares upon TR

exercise of share options B LaR 4 581 = - = (126) = 501 - 501
Recognition of equity-settled share- TR E

based payments EERAZRR - = = s = 1,825 - 1825 - 1825
Lapse of share options transferred ~ ERZREEF|Z

to retained eamings SERE - - - - - (302) 302 - - -
Non-controlling interests arising R

from share transfer (Note 33) () - - - - = = = = 9,005 9,005
Disposal of subsiciaries HENBAA

(Note 33) (M&33) = = = - - (6% (6319 (9005 (8974  (17.979)
Total transactions with owners ~ HEFA 2R BHE 46 581 - - - (1289)  (6014)  (6,676) 31 (6,645)
At 315t December 2014 RZB-RE

+-A=1-8 31,186 105,528 34,350 189,646 (896) 2,259 300,764 662,837 - 662,837
Note: MiRE
(i) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the () REEZBRRHEER —ANEERRERG

nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997.

The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nv_\é EE, ﬁ)‘ﬁ % %

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #E=—F—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Operating activities

R

2014
—g-mE

HK$°000
FTET

2013

HK$'000
THAT

Cash from/(used in) operations stk WA (ZH) 42 40,687 (3,204)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EAEFIEEH (7,832) (6,626)
Overseas tax refund/(paid) REL(BEA)EINE 694 (618)
Tax refund REIFIE 10 1M1
Net cash from/(used in) REEK BB

operating activities (ZH)H%sE 33,559 (10,337)
Investing activities REED
Settlement of remaining consideration on  #EWENB AR 24T

acquisition of subsidiaries RE - (8,255)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal of HEMBRAREARS

subsidiaries e HER 33 (12,567) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE Y% - BE Mi&E (10,952) (4,295)
Additions to intangible assets NEBEEE 22(a) (153) (7,237)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant  HEWE « BEK

and equipment BABFTIS A 207 424
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets & & & & TS 208 1,727 -
Interest received B2 UAILE 8 69 156
Dividends received from associates B A FWELZ AR S 23 582 486
Net cash used in investing activities REFEB 2RI HTFE (21,087) (18,721)
Financing activities RMEER
Proceeds from short-term borrowings B EAEIE 30,000 168,192
Repayment of short-term borrowings BiEEHEE (37.257) (111,968)
Proceeds from issuing shares IR PTERIE 501 -
Interest paid EASALE (1.414) (1,633)
Dividends paid BEIRE = (15,570)
Net cash (used in)/from RETHZ2RE(XH),

financing activities WA B (8,170) 39,021
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & RIRSZEY 2 HNFEE 4,302 9,963
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ¥ 2#H4 RESZEY

of the year 126,158 116,677
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEFEREE) 2 & (21) (482)

130,439 126,158

Included in disposal group classified BRFADEARELE Y

as held for sale B = (11,497)
Cash and cash equivalents FR2FE RREEEY

at the end of the year 130,439 114,661

HNFETEH 166 B Z M B A MR
TR HREL D

The notes on pages 67 to 166 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”). At 31st December 2014, its
immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong
Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate
holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd., a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its shares
are listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC (“Teamsun”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon'’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of
its major associates and subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 and 49
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 19th March 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") and the applicable disclosure requirements of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and
the comparative period.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except that the leasehold land and buildings and
investment properties are stated at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Annual Report 2014 & #§

—RER

RARRBREAMK LA —RZHER
RAF - HRODEEBHERSMARAD
AI(TEEZZFT]) £ e R —NF+ = A
=+—H  HEBEERARAREBKLZ
FERRKER(BB)BERRA([ESEBX
B ) - EREER AR RN FEARLME
([ B )RS RE RS R E EEEH S
Fr BT 2 b REB R BHE R (5 AR A A
([ZEBERK]) - RAGZFAMPERLEE
& B 2 k9 Bl & Canon s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda
BEFFD B D15 ERFES 15

RRBREREIERA R MR R R E R
BTHEMBAR  EFXEHEARHBARZ
FEERZFBEDRIFINRMHFE23K%49 -

B BRI - RAMBEERTIABT(T
B 2Y - RV BRRCEESS([E
Eg )R -RF=A T BIERE -

R EE

RRRARPRFER LB G H
BRERBEEVBRELE RAEERTF]
GOI(5E328 ) 2 BRRERERE -

RAMBIREREE LR AELERR -
HE T RBF AR ENELZ AR EBED
ARAIBRSD -

BRSBTS RS2 B AN RE
Sk AETHRES T - EFERER
KB P A ) B 1 A K o
I B SRR S B R 2 B 3
EMEBEAZBREMA - HERHES
B -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 Z &L E AR AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1st January 2014:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs, and interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, which are effective for the Group's financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2014:

° HKAS 32 (Amendments), “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”. The amendments clarify the application
of certain offsetting criteria in HKAS 32, including the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off’ and that some gross settlement systems may be
considered equivalent to net settlement. The amendments
have been applied retrospectively in accordance with their
transitional provisions. As the Group does not currently
present any of its financial assets and financial liabilities
on a net basis using the provisions of HKAS 32, these
amendments had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements for any period presented.

o Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011), "Investment Entities”. The amendments include the
definition of ‘investment entity’ and provide an exception
to the consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10. Investment
entities are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them.
The amendments also set out disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The amendments do not have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements as the Company is
not an investment entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1st January 2014: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36, “Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets. The amendments clarify the
requirements to disclose the recoverable amount of an
asset (or cash generating unit) whenever an impairment loss
has been recognised or reversed in the period. In addition,
they introduce several new disclosures required to be made
when the recoverable amount of the impaired asset (or
cash generating unit) is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendments have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has not
recognised or reversed an impairment loss of non-financial
assets during the year.

Amendments to HKAS 39, “Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting”. The amendments
allow hedge accounting to continue in a situation where
a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging
instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a central
counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, if specific
conditions are met. The amendments had no material effect
on the consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have any derivatives.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, “Levies”. The interpretation provides
guidance on when a liability to pay a levy imposed by
governments, other than income taxes, should be recognised
and clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The
interpretation had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements as it is consistent with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & ) R &£ B AR A A

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations

issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1st January 2014 and have not been
early adopted:

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain
new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected to
have impact on the Group's accounting policies is provided below.

. HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial instruments”. HKFRS 9 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2018 and will replace HKAS 39 in its entirety. The new
standard introduces changes to HKAS 39's guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Under
HKFRS 9, each financial asset is classified into one of three
main classification categories: amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial
assets is driven by cash flow characteristics and the business
model in which an asset is held. An entity may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument that is not held for
trading.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1st January 2014 and have not been
early adopted: (Continued)

Most of the HKAS 39's requirements for financial liabilities
were carried forward unchanged to HKFRS 9. The
requirements related to the fair value option for financial
liabilities have however been changed to address own credit
risk. Where an entity chooses to measure its own debt at
fair value, HKFRS 9 requires the amount of the change in
fair value due to changes in the entity’s own credit risk to be
presented in other comprehensive income, unless effect of
changes in the liability’s credit risk would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all
gains or losses on that liability are to be presented in profit or
loss.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment model
that will require more timely recognition of expected credit
losses. Specifically, entities are required to account for
expected credit losses from when financial instruments are
first recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected losses
on a more timely basis.

HKFRS 9 also provides new guidance on the application of
hedge accounting. The new hedge accounting models retain
the three types of hedge accounting and the requirements of
formal designation and documentation of hedge accounting
relationships. The new hedge accounting requirements look
to align hedge accounting more closely with entities’ risk
management activities by increasing the eligibility of both
hedged items and hedging instruments and introducing
a more principles-based approach to assessing hedge
effectiveness.

Annual Report 2014 44§

(b) R=B—m&E—F—AMEKZ
BB B B SR AR B R A W
EARBIRRRA 2 T EA -
VT$&%E )

BETTERIFEIFR A RE

i’] T TR EE BRI RE A
RBIZE9%k - A - B MARE
NRhEEEEEZHTEENRA
HEAGZEERR - MWE
BURAREBEAZEEAFEER
BIBR AR EERFEIRRTE
BERZERAFZERKE
MER AR EEEHE 2 SER
E2EKm2Y - RIFBERE
%J—L M E) 2 LB ENTIEX

B BRT IR AR S IER R
ﬂﬁEEi M ZEEEZRE
BBz 25 -

BRMBREEREIRSER
HMIESEBER O REES - B
R EREEREEBRIELE
kA 2 H#ER - AEmE - B
AHEERMIAERMRREL
ZEHEEREEIRLIZE R
B ERERBRBRAERFR 2
HAE TR -

BTG E R F TR TR
%%Tiqﬂﬁéf?%{ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%l o ¥

GEHEXNRE =B ST
)SZIEﬁ DG M RC e R AT RAR
LT o DR GEREE TS
BN RIE B B h T A Y
FEIRE - Yol EERERAZ
A BE et AEEERR
EEZRAREEES - KmaTHE
AR o

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R $t &£ B AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TS ERR M

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1st January 2014 and have not been
early adopted: (Continued)

The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 9 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1st January 2018.

° HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
HKFRS 15 presents new requirements for the recognition
of revenue, replacing HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts”, and several revenue related
Interpretations. The new standard establishes a control-based
revenue recognition model and provides additional guidance
in many areas not covered in detail under existing HKFRSs,
including how to account for arrangements with multiple
performance obligations, variable pricing, customer refund
rights, supplier repurchase options, and other common
complexities.

The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 15's full impact and intends
to adopt HKFRS 15 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1st January 2017.

The adoption of other new and amended HKFRSs that are not yet
effective would be expected to have no material impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a charge to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling
interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance
sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated income
statement or consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(b) Interests in associates (Continued)

(0

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of
an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or
joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as
held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of
the investment) is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for using
the equity method. The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in the
Group losing significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained
interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with HKAS
39 unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a
joint venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment once classified
as held for sale are not amortised or depreciated.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board that makes strategic
decisions.
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(e) Foreign currency translation

0]

(ii)

(ii)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HKD or
HK$), which is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
presented are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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e SRR ML

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) Group companies (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, loss of joint control over a joint venture
that includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of
that operation attributable to the Group are reclassified to
profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously
been attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised,
but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property,
plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and buildings,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to
the consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment

is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost or

revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term
of the lease or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

10%-33/;%

20%

16%/5%-50%

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Computer and office equipment

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs capitalised during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant
and equipment when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained
earnings.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment
property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at each
balance sheet date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation
of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

() Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the
net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwiill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the
consolidated income statement as incurred. Costs that are
directly attributable to development activities are recognised
as intangible assets provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

(@)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

(b)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

() the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the direct costs incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct costs
include employee costs incurred on development activities
along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful life of 3 to 4 years.
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(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

0

(iii) ~ Customer relationships and software technology
The acquired customer relationships and software technology
in a business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the expected
life of the assets, as follows:
Customer relationship 5 years

Software technology 5 years

(iv)  Club memberships
Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated at
cost less any identified impairment loss and are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they may be impaired.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(j) Financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets and
financial liabilities acquired at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets into loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that have maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-
current assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “amounts
due from customers for contract work”, “finance lease
receivables”, “restricted bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” as set out in the consolidated balance sheet.

(i) Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include “trade payables”,
“other payables” and “short-term borrowings” which are
recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—Z

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. A
financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying
amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

(m) Trade and other receivables

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & ) R &£ B AR A A

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR ML

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the places/countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Annual Report 2014 44§

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

RERREEEY
ERARSRERA  REeRHLS
BEYREFERS - REHRN=E
ASARZF R RITZ BAF KK
RITHEX -

BN E S RER B RN RE

e & 5 30A B Ah FE A IR B
BERBEAETAHEABAZERR
IR 2 R RE A o HFRIBR —F A
R(RREREBBHAN(WRE))F
H ENBESRBEREMENTIES
WAOBERRBERE - NAGUIERH
BEZ7 -

& 5508 R A A SRIBF 4%

AR BERT - BB RERFIEE
SR AE R o
B HA R B PS80

< H F) 5 08 32 M B2 4 B AR KR FE 75
B BIADNREFARBERMER - HE
ke R rE R A EREERRE
RZBEAB@ERI - EUBERT
MRS B ESRA B EmRaE
AR FER

()  ENEIRTE#

BIERPT S B FA S AR A B 2 Y &8
REVRHEENR 2 EEREE
FERBUMAFTE M, BIRR4EE
RORMBEERD 2TERE
EAE - EREEHRERBE
BPIRE LR Z BT R
B WIS TR
HEBEHRAEBIE -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R $t &£ B AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TS ERR M

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(q) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

(r) Provisions and financial guarantee contract

0]

(ii)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e., the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group based on its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers
(generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and customer
acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the costs incurred for
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than installation services
and maintenance services, is recognised as revenue by reference
to the stage of completion, provided that the revenue, the costs
incurred and the estimated costs to completion can be measured
reliably. Stage of completion is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction. Provision is made for foreseeable losses as
soon as they are anticipated by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the consolidated balance sheet, as a
liability, as receipts in advance. The balances will be recognised as
revenue when earned.

Installation services are generally provided incidentally to the sale
of a product, in which case they are recognised upon satisfactory

installation and customer acceptance.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest
income over the period of the lease so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of return of the outstanding
net investment in the leases for each accounting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans for all qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme and other
defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group's contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution
retirement benefit plans.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.
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(v)

—mEF-A=tHILFEE

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
the consolidated income statement on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

Government grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are set-off with relevant expenses. Government subsidies

relating to income is presented at gross under “Other income” in
the consolidated income statement.

(w) Share-based payment

(x)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) 4= E AR A7)

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to
the fair value of shares and share options granted at the grant date
and expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the shares
and share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payment reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of shares and share options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

When the shares or share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Annual Report 2014 3

(v)

(w)

(x)

BUFRRG

BT B A B R AR A AT MR e AR 5
I 75 32 B P P 7 B8 MR 1R B T LA TERR
W%FEZ%§H$E@ﬁ i
8 RELHIRA ZRN RS BER
AT IARERR BWA°W§FW$W$
SEENEEZHE - DREEZR
EEFR - HiRFEBERITER
NEEBEZAERFHNBRET AR
T LARERR o

RPN EE A 2 B X2 (R 7R SR (B 18 2 BRT
R B ARRR SRS - EEBUTERG
HEZWARGEEREAEBR
AJ—TELRREZD -

LA 3 BEM X4 2 FRE

PR s BRI 2 AR BETIZERE N
BB REREZ AR EE
MEE - NERERGRBIAAXE
AR Z Rt kBRI AR
AR BB 8y - A At
MNIBFEERR AR RERE SR

REFEZEBE - NEEEFTAEEH

R E 2 IR REREE R 2k

.ﬁ‘ ° ﬁaﬁ“ﬁiflﬁft‘ﬂg,ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁ)z%’iﬂ
REFEBRREER - WEHURN A

B R VE L AR o

B RN BB B IR PO MK

WREm B BIDARITEE - BIBAER AR
MRERINREER 2 EHER
ERERF -

HH

HASEEER —BARXFEEL K
IR ZEHAKNLZEOREEREE
HZIREEN G EF AN ERE
PASRER S SRk — R B R Bl R
BB es —BHE BRETT
FEIAHEZELHNEEAR HE
% M HZELEEREAEEN
BRI o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) Leases (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment

property.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 3. FEEHBE e

(x) Leases (Continued) x) B
(i) Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor (i) WRIEMEHVIERHMAE LS
BE
When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks BEEERERMEHEOHELE &
and rewards of ownership are transferred out to customers. ARz ERRERNEERT R
When assets are leased out under finance leases, the present P -EEERBEREMOEL
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. i HEREZIREBEIALIE

YA o

(y) Dividend distribution (y) BREDIK
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised MAR B R ERIRS 2 BN AR R
as a liability in the Group’s and Company'’s financial statements in R EE(WER)HERMNIRE 2 F
the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company's EREAREBRARNT ZWEHREKP
shareholders or directors, where appropriate. EREaE -
(z) Related parties (z) BAEAT
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@ MBIUATAL  BlsZATEZA
related to the Group if that person: TR EE A RGE
(1) has control or joint control over the Group; (1) HAEEEEZHIELHE
[ IR
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or (2) HAEEBEEATE
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the ) AAREEZFAEE &R
Group or the Group's parent. Al EEEEKE -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); or

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.

Annual Report 2014 44§

3. FESTHHE®)
(z) BEAL@®

(b) 1

HERNA NGRS - AE

REEARRE -

m

REANLZEHTyiER
HIR BT S
ERE -

ZEREASEER %
Bz B RR (BIRAFE
MEARRRARMEAF

RULFEARRE)
—RERBAS BB ZH
BRAHAELE(HS
—ERMEEEETKE
REZHBERR LA LR
ESN

MEEBGRRA-—F=7
ZaREhE

—HEBRF =T

=
=4
BERE M —EER

SRR 2K

R@MBEMAA TS ERE
BEAFXERRER(HE
BZBRRDZIEEERE

T =Ie

XA O
N X

ALTHEZR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B8 Z &L E AR AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TS ERR M

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,

management has made the following accounting judgements:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of the collectability
of those receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the realisation of any repayment pattern
promised. If the financial conditions of these customers were
to deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which
the Group operates. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Capitalisation of development expenditure

Development expenditure are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and development
expenditure in Note 3(h)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to apply careful judgement when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for
development costs have been met. Judgements are based
on the best information available at each balance sheet date.
In addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new software, products or knowhow are
continuously monitored by the Company’s management.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &1 R&EMAR AR Annual Report 2014 F

() KMEEEEHREENER
EHEL]
RIRAAE BB - B
R A @I

() EWEZHERAMERTEZ
TRER
REEEWE 5B K E A EWR
FIAZ BBEERTIAS ZE R
FRIB AT B M 2 5T R B TR
B2 HIERETE - HEZFRIK
IR BRI MR R 2R
REHAH  BESLEPZEAH
BB BN - AR AE
EAHEREABEER - i
FEPZHMBMAEZE - BIRTRE
FEEIMNERE -

(i) AriEH
REBAERNREBEEREZ
BVERR NS - EEEPT
SURERST2EREEREZ
Hg - REEXBRETHEES
REETEE RMEHIB 2R 5 Kat
g - AEEKIEE T HE I HER
MERIMAIR 2 (et M RE R TE BT
BETHEZAME - WEFER
ZREBRGHERAN T LER 2
BAR - MEMERBZEEN
EEZFEZFEHR MR
BE -

(i) FIEFAZENE
IR TR A B ME M
(i8R BT BB S 2 & T
HBETNERE - EREBETER
FTERNMez ©ERHEZEHE
PURTE R B & FERAZHER
HE - BREHETIREREEE
AR &EBEMIEL - it
Sh - ARRERE S FEEE—
PIERE T - EmERiA
B2 NEDEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #EZ—ZF—WF+_A=+—HLFE

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below:

0]

(ii)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(s),
the Group uses the percentage of completion (the "POC")
method to determine the appropriate revenues to be
recognised from rendering of services (other than installation
service and maintenance services). The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the actual costs incurred up to
the balance sheet date as a percentage of total estimated
costs of completion. When the outcome of a POC contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it will be probably
recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties, leasehold land and
buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair values estimated. In making
its estimates, the Group considers the information from
the valuations of investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the market comparison approach. Had the Group
used different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings would be
different and thus may have an impact to the consolidated
income statement.

At 31st December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group's
leasehold land and building and investment properties
carried at revalued amount/fair value were HK$259,650,000
(2013: HK$224,400,000) and HK$50,200,000 (2013:
HK$43,000,000) respectively.

Annual Report 2014 44§

(b) fEEFFREMERZRIR

REBERBBRERZ G RER -
BAaEE  MESs At E L EAR
ZEBRERER - FEEREREH
TEMBFEEzEERAB ZREE
EREAFR Z AR wAT -

() HastERR
IRIEE3(s) Pt 2 & AT S
AEBERATIBD EREE
RHERB (TBERKRSE R
ERRTS) B ERER 2 B8 e -
TILPIZEHEEERILEE
2 BERBAME T T 2 fhaT 4R
AzBOHEE - BExTHEDL
B 2 AERA g LAR 5 77 Ak
it WEERAHRAEERE
1 FIBE AT U L2 1B TN HERR.

(i) KEYX HELHWREFTZMHE
(=]
RAREBEZFEREREOES
NEME ARG 2 BT
B - MR=BEER - NEHE
BeiteRE AR 2 ANE
EffEtESBER - PMELEEE
REEE E B IMNEFEAER A
MIGLBEETZREYE - H
S+ RBTFHEMSER - i
AEBERTRZMEETE &
EYE MHETMEBTFZAR
BESEMEA  mMitraEE
FRATREBINHE -

R_BE—NF+—_A=+—8 -
REERE T RIEFUARIEE
MEREGSE DR EEVR
2 BREE S Bl 4259,650,000 7%
Jo( =T — =14 : 224,400,000/
JT) 50,200,000 T (=T —=
F : 43,000,000/ 7T) °

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R $t &£ B AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RIS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

4,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)  Estimated impairment of interests in associates

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The Group’s approach in determining the recoverable
amount of interests in associates (Note 23) is the fair value
less costs of disposal which is based on the price by reference
to similar transaction. No impairment is required for the year
ended 31st December 2014.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and
retained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Directors of the Company prepare the annual
budget taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on the
proposed annual budget, the Directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues, short-term borrowings and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. EXEREE®
As at 31st December 2014, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 6.3% R-ZZE—WFE+-_A=+—H A&EEZ
(2013: 8.1%), which is within the range of management’s expectation BEBEEELE R A63%(ZE—=F
and was calculated as follows: 8.1%) * NFFEERE v TBHEE - Wik
TEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHIT
Short-term borrowings (excluding EHBEECTEREsEAR
short-term borrowings of disposal BIEREZHEHEMZ
group classified as held for sale) EHEE) 42,000 49,257
Total equity aEm 662,837 608,647
Debt-to-equity ratio BRI 6.3% 8.1%
There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk REBERERRRZIERF R &N
management during the year. &

E‘I:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. KA BREERAAEE

VALUE MEASUREMENT =
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk REE 2 EBRE L RAMEEE - Ti5RER
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and (RIEINER XFERR) - EERR KR
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses By ERE o ANEE  BERRERBR ST
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise BT EEATRR 2 £ ETS - WEHBE RS
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. B BRRER 2EETFZERE K -
(a) Market risk (a) MEEK
()  Foreign exchange risk (i) MER
The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and NGB ERE 2 W e B HE 2 R
United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange exposure FER/BITRET  WEBRFR
to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long TR — B ST
as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special BMABGR @ BIREE AT
Administrative Region to peg the HKD to the USD remains TT 2 NG [BL R K S G HE R ECAY o
in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations HEZZF—MFE+-_A=+—H
in exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging IEFE - WEEBAEREE 2R
financial instrument was applied during the year ended 31st R - AL A FE R AR A S 2
December 2014 (2013: same). TE(ZZ—=%F:EA) -
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z —ZF—MF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. IBEKBEERAABES
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(@) Market risk (Continued) (a) TEEAERE)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation in HKD variable interest
rate on bank deposits, bank balances and short-term bank
borrowings denominated in HKD. The Group currently does
not have any interest rate hedging policy.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances and short-term borrowings, at the
balance sheet date and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments
that have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the
year ended 31st December 2014 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$243,000 (2013: HK$105,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate short-term borrowings, bank deposits and
bank balances.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, as well as
credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables
and committed transactions. The Group only places deposits in
reputable banks and financial institutions and manages its credit
risk associated with trade receivable through the application of
credit approvals, credit rating and monitoring procedures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HEZ=F

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue trade receivables.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade receivables, bank balances and deposits, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (Note 24) in the consolidated
balance sheet after deducting any impairment provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board, which has built a liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows
as a significant source of liquidity.

The table below shows the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities analysing into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal to their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—Z

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.

BEEBEERER A AEER

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FBHERBS )
Non-derivative FTEEMEE On demand
financial liabilities or within Over Carrying
1 year 1 year Total amount
BRERD
R—FR BiB—F st IREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET FHExT FHET
At 31st December 2014 R-ES—ME
+=A=+—~
- Group —REH
Trade payables JENE S R0E 228,632 - 228,632 228,632
Other payables HAith RN ROE 15,967 - 15,967 15,967
Short-term borrowings EEEE 42,000 - 42,000 42,000
286,599 - 286,599 286,599
At 31st December 2013 R-B—=%F
+=A=+-8
- Group —AKE
Trade payables FERTE 5308 224,208 - 224,208 224,208
Other payables Eﬁﬂf‘éﬁm 7,926 - 7,926 7,926
Short-term borrowings EHEE 49,257 - 49,257 49,257
281,391 - 281,391 281,391
At 31st December 2014 R-ZE—NEF
+=A=+-8
- Company e YN
Other payables H b e 0B 256 - 256 256
256 - 256 256
At 31st December 2013 R=-B—=F
+=BA=+—H
- Company — AT
Other payables HAith e R0E 175 - 175 175
175 - 175 175

AEHERBEZLZHET - MWERZR
HEFHEITERT - AR AEEEN
2 & BE 4G o

The maximum amounts the Company could be forced to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee are set out
in Note 46.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement

() Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets
The following table presents the Group’s properties
measured at fair value on a recurring basis categorised into
the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13,
“Fair Value Measurement”:

3 Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement dates.

3 Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet with Level 1, and
not using unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

3 Level 3: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

6. MBEBEERRAAEER

=)

(d) AREEFE
() =@MEERTHEAEBEIAAEE
mREBESILEE - HUREERR
IRz ERMEERSRARZE
E{EEE AR BERE

(i) FE@MEEZAAEE
TREJREEIZEHEEEN
AREEFEZNE /=
BEAnBEBR(CEEREEY
BRELEBNE 13RI 2 BEFT

£

e F-E:UE-—EBAE
SHEZAREE - RAR
FAEEXBENRFERE
Jh BT 5 R R S B (E

5

o F_EB:UFE_EBwAMA
AAECAREE BEE
ANEZ A BRELRNE
—E@MAE BEEHAE
WARERATATERE2H
& TR BRZEBAGR
WETISBEUEAELE 2
EPNER

e FEZE:ERIUEHEHR
BIFEZBABNUGFEZ

ARfEE-

At 31st December 2014
R=®-mE+=A=+-8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—E F_E E=E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Group TEE
Recurring fair value REEDIAEE
measurement T2

Investment properties (Note 21) &2 (Mf3521)
Leasehold land and buildings ~ FAE it RIEF
(Note 20) (Ffg5E20)

TR FEx FEx FEX

= = 50,200 50,200

- - 259,650 259,650

= = 309,850 309,850

Annual Report 2014 & #§

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4t =B AR AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

BERREERAAEBES
=

(d) 2AEEE®)

FEMBEZ AR BEM)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued) (ii)

At 31st December 2013
RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H—=E =l = HEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FAT FAT
Group AEM
Recurring fair value REEDIAEE
measurement E
Investment properties (Note 21) & Z (F3E21) - - 43,000 43,000
Leasehold land and buildings ~ FA&+ih RIEF
(Note 20) (M#5£20) - - 224,400 224,400
- - 267,400 267,400
During the year ended 31st December 2014 and 2013, there REBE-ZT-—NFER-_T—=F

were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4 =B AR AR

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties were stated at valuations made at 31st December
2014 and 2013 by an independent professional valuer at
market value basis which is determined by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuation
performed by independent valuers for the financial reporting
purposes. Discussion of valuation processes and results
are held at least once every year, which is in line with the
Group’s annual reporting date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques

HERR

6. BEAREERAALEBES
B

(d) DAEETE®E
(i) BEE=FABEHBHER

Unobservable input

Investment properties

Market comparison

- Hong Kong approach
&M%
— & MG B

Leasehold land and buildings Market comparison

— Hong Kong approach
HE L RETF
&% MG LB

The fair value of investment properties and leasehold land
and buildings located in Hong Kong is determined using

market comparison approach by reference to recent sales

price of comparable properties on a price per square foot

basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
quality and floor of the Group's buildings compared to the
recent sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will
result in a higher fair value measurement.
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Premium on quality of 0.5% to 5%

the buildings

EFEEHE 0.5% % 5%

Premium on quality of 0.5% to 5%
the buildings
BFEEHE 0.5% % 5%
UREBZREMEREE L
REF2RABEDERT ST
BE2EZERRAFROA LR
XV HRZHEBERMET -
WiRAEEYELE RIEREIEL
& WAEEARSNAREE
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HEEAREERAALEES

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) AREEHEE
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (il BEE=EBAAL BEHENEH
(Continued) (%)
The movements during the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—E—mE+-—A=+—H
and 31st December 2013 in the balance of these Level 3 fair R-—E—=&£+-A=+—HIF
value measurements are as follows: EESE=EALEENEESY
ZHWT
Leasehold
Investment land and
properties buildings Total
HE+it
REMF kEgF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
At 1st January 2013 R-B—=F
—A—H 36,400 189,900 226,300
Depreciation charge rEMKR - (5,504) (5,504)
Fair value gain N EENE 6,600 - 6,600
Surplus on revaluation shA%K - 40,004 40,004
At 31st December 2013 R-B—=F
+=BA=+—H 43,000 224,400 267,400
At 1st January 2014 N-E—NFE
—HB—H 43,000 224,400 267,400
Depreciation charge WEMGK - (6,690) (6,690)
Fair value gain DR EEKZE 6,658 - 6,658
Surplus on revaluation BHAK - 42,482 42,482
Transfer g 542 (542) -
At 31st December 2014 R-E—mE
+=A=+—H 50,200 259,650 309,850
Fair value gain of investment properties is recognised in REMEN DR BERENES
the line item “fair value gain on revaluation of investment BRI ERREMELR
properties” on the face of the consolidated income BEYE TBE R @R -
statement.
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land and buildings are HE T REF 2 EMBHNE
recognised in “property revaluation reserve” under other b2 E R VX EEFEEE
comprehensive income. B R -
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and allowances, and

revenue from service contracts, and is analysed as follows:

7. WAKRZERER

WA T EAREBERINAE P EE M (3
BRERTH) RRERBEEHKRAZER
Koz FEE - AT

2014 2013

—Z—MmF ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Sales of goods HEE M 805,602 890,469
Revenue from service contracts REREE L2 WA 628,319 722,489
1,433,921 1,612,958

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board.
The Board reviews the Group's internal reporting in order to assess the
performance and allocate resources. The Board has determined the
operating segments based on the Group's internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2013: two) operating divisions
— Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information
Technology Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its primary segment information to the chief
operating decision maker. The business nature of each segment is
disclosed as follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions and managed services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—Z

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Year ended 31st December 2014

—mE+-A=+—HILFE

7. WARDEER @)

FZEEBZDMERZINMT

BZE-Z-NE+=-A=1+—HILLEE

IT Products IT Services Total Group

EMNBEER EMNERE BEAREE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FET

Revenue from external customers REINDE P Z WA 805,602 628,319 1,433,921

Intersegment revenue D EPREUA 51,959 22,241 74,200

Segment revenue 2 EBUTA 857,561 650,560 1,508,121

Reportable segment profit A ERE DB R 19,281 26,255 45,536

Reportable segment assets AIREDBEE 304,441 316,909 621,350

Reportable segment liabilities AmESHEE 237,243 130,643 367,886

Segment depreciation DEITE 1,317 8,292 9,609

Segment amortisation 7 EB N - 988 988
Additions to property, NEME -

plant and equipment BRE I 625 7,549 8,174

Additions to intangible assets REBRVEE - 153 153

Year ended 31st December 2013 HE-T—=F+-A=+—HIFE

IT Products IT Services Total Group

BB ER  ABHERE BT AEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET FHET

Revenue from external customers REINDE P Z WA 890,469 722,489 1,612,958

Intersegment revenue S SRR A 28,182 30,238 58,420

Segment revenue DEBUA 918,651 752,727 1,671,378

Reportable segment profit A S D EEF] 31,903 49,617 81,520

Reportable segment assets REDEEE 325,471 305,971 631,442

Reportable segment liabilities AmESHEE 214,365 134,999 349,364

Segment depreciation DETE 1,483 10,448 11,931

Segment amortisation B EH - 3,116 3,116
Additions to property, NEWME

plant and equipment B 235 3,267 3,502

Additions to intangible assets NEBFEE - 7,237 7,237
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—Z

(a) Segment accounting policies

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Performance
is measured based on segment profit that is used by the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance. Income tax expense is
not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are
allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before income tax, excluding
unallocated other income, other gain or loss, net, share of
results of associates, gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, unallocated depreciation for property, plant
and equipment that are used for all segments, fair value gain
on revaluation of investment properties, finance costs and other
unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and
other general administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred
income tax assets, unallocated restricted bank deposits, unallocated
cash and cash equivalents, unallocated corporate assets (mainly
include property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and part of intangible assets that are used by all segments,
prepayments, deposits and tax recoverable) and assets of disposal
group classified as held for sale.

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities,
deferred income tax liabilities, unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly include accrued charges of the head office and short-term
borrowings) and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZ= —T—F+_—_A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARTDEBER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment (b) AIHREZDHBYA - BEE - &
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREENHE
Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities ARG ZHEBA - 1B BERE
are reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the BREAEE XERBEERBAR
Group as follows: YWEENT ¢
Revenue 2014 2013
—E—mF —TE—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Reportable segment revenue A EHRE D EPUA 1,508,121 1,671,378
Elimination of intersegment revenue s o 2B A (74,200) (58,420)
Revenue per consolidated income statement 7454 1825851 3R AU 1,433,921 1,612,958
Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit 7 BB AIR B A DA F B UCER
mark-up.
Profit or loss 2014 2013
—EB—F —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Reportable segment profit RIS 5 #B s A 45,536 81,520
Unallocated amounts: ROBLFIE
Unallocated other income RO BEEMBA 4,340 5,524
Unallocated other gain/(loss), net ROBCEMFEYE(EIE) 43,385 (2,017)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHREMEZ
investment properties N EEKE 6,658 6,600
Unallocated loss on disposals of property, APELEEDE  BEN
plant and equipment B B (68) (6)
Unallocated depreciation AOEITE (5,410) (5,398)
Share of results of associates it NCIE (21,973) 563
Finance costs BITSRR (1,414) (1,633)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOMATFEZ (41,465) (61,559)
Profit before income tax per RERAER Jiﬁﬁ']
consolidated income statement BR PSR A 29,589 23,594
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

e U ERRME

—MET-A=t—RILFE

7. WARDEBER @)

(b) ATHEZIBKUA - BFE &
ERGEENYHER®E)

2014 2013
—mE —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Reportable segment assets EDEEE 621,350 631,442
Unallocated assets: ROBAE
Interests in associates /NS b 63,569 877
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTIE E 3,345 320
Unallocated restricted bank deposits ROFZRBERITIER 781 48
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents RAOMBEE KRS EEY 130,439 114,661
Unallocated corporate assets ROBAREE 332,839 283,541
1,152,323 1,030,889
Assets of disposal group classified PEAREREZ
as held for sale HERREE = 84,201
Total assets per consolidated Rira EEBBERYIRN
balance sheet BERE 1,152,323 1,115,090
Liabilities 2014 2013
—E—mF i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Reportable segment liabilities AlFREDEPAE 367,886 349,364
Unallocated liabilities: ROBALE :
Current income tax liabilities BUERFT1SHI & & 1,143 2,972
Deferred income tax liabilities }ELFE SHARE 43,228 35,458
Unallocated corporate liabilities ANBARIAE 77,229 86,719
489,486 474,513
Liabilities of disposal group classified PIEABELEZ
as held for sale HEHRR 2 BE = 31,930
Total liabilities per consolidated Rira EEBBERTIRN
balance sheet BERE 489,486 506,443

The Group’s businesses and segment assets are all located in
the respective place of domicile of the relevant group entities
which include Hong Kong, China, Macau, Singapore, Taiwan and

Thailand.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEHER #)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment (b) AHREZDBYA - BF &
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERSBENHER®)
(Continued)
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEE ZWA SHFRBEE
Place of domicile P 2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —Z—= —E-mE ==
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$"000 HK$°000
FET FAT FExT T
Hong Kong & 1,268,410 1,350,839 394,603 284,663
China L 14,066 67,894 418 692
Macau SR P 70,957 55,983 894 925
Singapore EAmlIE 2,550 49,645 = -
Taiwan =y 47,881 52,619 136 20
Thailand =E 29,882 28,909 221 306
Others Hih 175 7,069 — -

1,433,921 1,612,958 396,272 286,606

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Httlg A

2014 2013
—B—F —FT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Sundry income FIBHWA 1,814 1,961
Interest on bank deposits WITHFEHFNE 69 156

Rental income from investment REHFREYZE ZBSBA
properties (Note 21) (M43E21) 2,609 2,594
Rental income from sublease REEAZASRA 159 -
Government grants BT R AL = 827
Others HAth 626 813
5,277 6,351
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—Z

9. OTHER GAIN/(LOSS), NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. HttFWE

e U ERRME

—MET-A=t—RILFE

(E1R)

recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values (2013: same).

11. FINANCE COSTS

2014 2013
—m& —E—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Deferred consideration payable FERTRERE
— Fair value loss —RAEEERE = (16)
Exchange loss, net ME N E1E 2 FE (2,365) (2,218)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) B 2 Az e (M 3E33) 44,666 -
Gain on disposals of intangible assets (Note 42) HE R A E 2 W (M3142) 827 -
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE BEREREZ
plant and equipment (Note 42) Wezs (FiEE42) 37 150
43,165 (2,084)
10. FINANCE INCOME 10. A FE A
Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial W AIR SR E R 1 BEREREREWR

BMEEERRRERNBEEN T —=

F 48R o

11. Bt

R A

2014 2013
et Sl ko2 —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHIT

Interest on loan from the immediate ERERAREFRFE
holding company - 125
Interest on loan from a fellow subsidiary —HRRMEBARERFE = 12

Interest on short-term bank borrowings wholly AR—FNBEEREY

repayable within one year EERITIEER R 636 1,103
Other interest expenses HEFa 778 393
1,414 1,633
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration:
Current year

Underprovision in respect of prior year
Depreciation and amortisation:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets (included in cost of
services rendered)
Directors’ remuneration (Note 14)

Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’

remuneration) (Note 13)

Inventories written off

Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Office premises
Computer equipment

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables (Note 27)

Provision for impairment of amounts due from
customers for contract work

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (Note 27)

(Reversal of provision)/Provision for
obsolete inventories

12. BRFT G B AT R

B P45 B A& R T A8 #0BR (R A) T3

B8 -
2014 2013
—E-mF ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fox FHT
ZEATEN S -
REE 1,456 1,758
BAEFERETTE 41 3
WrEREH
W WE kR 15,019 17,329
A E (R IR IR
BR#%S .2 B AN ) 988 3,116
EEMe (H:E14) 5,670 10,734
EERAFALZ(TEE
EEZE) (FIFE13) 421,683 475,118
MEFE 5,952 -
REHEERS
PAEYE 8,360 9,328
B 209 -
FEWE 5 SR B
(fF7%27) 12 562
AHTRENEFFIE
BERE 7,303 -
EWE B IE 2 RE
R e (F=E27) (328) (175)
(BEEm), B (154) 303

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

B.EEERIAI(TEEES
<)

2014 2013

—E—mEF —E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Salaries and other benefits e REMET 392,022 439,412
Performance related incentive bonus FIRB . EEIEA 17,100 22,687
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses ARG (7 R S A 2 B 1,644 1,125
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFFEI AR 10,917 11,894
421,683 475,118

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4 =B AR AR

Annual Report 2014 &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e U ERRME

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14. EEM &€
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=fF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Fees Lok 552 594
Other emoluments: Hipfig -
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,218 7,188
Performance related incentive bonus TR SR 1,452 1,822
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREFIETEIfER 305 528
Equity-settled share-based AR mERE N2
payment expenses 53 143 602
5,670 10,734
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2013: nine) AARBNFENNCL(ZF—=F : Ifu)
directors were as follows: EEZESWT

Year ended 31st December 2014
HE-Z-OFE+-A=t-HLEFE
Performance
related
incentive  Retirement Equity-settled
Salaries bonus benefit  share-based

and other (Note a) scheme payment
benefits ~ &HBFMZ contributions expenses
Fees ¥eR RETA BUEN SIRORER Total
Name of director kA HftER (Mizta) STEMR XfIeRX fam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TAT TAT

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon* (Note b) izt (Hiato) - 2,693 2,032 28 48 5,001
Wang Weihang T 50 - = = - 50
Hu Liankui pasliinES 70 = - - - 70
Young Meng Ying BEE 170 - - - - 170
Lu Jiaqi [z 140 - = = = 140
Xu Peng (3 122 = - - - 172
Lai Yam Ting, Ready (Note ¢) BEE(ftiEc) = 494 - 8 - 502
Hui Wing Choy, Henry (Note d) FoKE (k) - 1,258 - 173 95 1,526

552 4,445 2,032 409 143 7,581
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 14. EEME )

Year ended 31st December 2013

B FTZA=+—HIFE
Performance
related
incentive Retirement  Equity-settled
Salaries bonus benefit share-based
and other (Note a) scheme payment
benefits #5ABMz  contributions expenses
Fees 3 3 Y Total
Name of director ik A g (Bizka) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL AL THL AL
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon* (Note b) 2+ (fifiEh) - 2,328 1,040 190 415 3973
Wang Weihang T 50 - - - - 50
Hu Liankui = 70 - - - - 70
Young Meng Ying BaE 182 - - - - 182
Lu Jiaqi S5 152 - - - - 152
Xu Peng i 140 - - - - 140
Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEE - 1,260 131 15 - 1,406
Hui Wing Choy, Henry ] - 3,464 651 309 170 4,594
Lau Ming Chi, Edward (Note ) BIs2E (Miste) - 136 - 14 17 167
594 7,188 1,822 528 602 10,734
Notes: [
(@)  The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a percentage of (a) RIREMZEBITCLALNRAEBFE G2
profit for the year of the Group. BAALETE -
(b)  Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (b) RENCERZTAARRTRES 8=
of the Company with effect from 23rd July 2014. T—FLAZ+=BRER
(©  Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready resigned as an Executive Director of the Company (0 MELLERURTMBERATNNITES A
with effect from 1st July 2014 upon his retirement. ZE-NELA—BEER -
(d)  Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry resigned as an Executive Director of the Company (d) FFKFEEBRIRAQRRNTESE 82
with effect from 23rd July 2014. —mEEAZF=BEER -
(e)  Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward resigned as an Executive Director of the Company () BIREXABFEIARTNTESE BT

with effect from 1st February 2013.

The amount disclosed above included HK$1,292,000 recognised by i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd (“i-Sprint”) from the date when it became associate and
HK$619,000 borne by the ultimate holding company (2013: nil) which is not
recognised in these financial statements.

During the year ended 31st December 2014, no remuneration has been
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group and no directors have waived any remuneration (2013:

nil).
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 15. EEEaHZER
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one RZZB-—NF+-A=+—8 FRARAER
director (2013: two directors) as at 31st December 2014, details of BH7IEERE—R(ZE—=F : WB)E
whose remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. The remuneration T OREZMEFBORN EXHIFE14E -
of the remaining four (2013: three) highest paid individuals for the year FREBNEZ(ZE—=F : ZR)Z&:aH
were as follows: EEZMESFBMT -
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 5,544 3,740
Performance related incentive bonus FIRBE EEIEA 3,127 3,500
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFTEIHEK 251 191
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses AR 17 AR S A 2 B - 82
8,922 7,513
Their remunerations were within the following bands: REZMEN T TIIEE :

Number of individuals

EAH
2014
—E-—mEF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001t %
2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ L2
2,500,000/ 7T 4 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ %
3,000,000/ 7T - 2
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

16. FISHiAX

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Current taxation: BIHATIA -
Hong Kong profits tax BEENEH 4,198 4,331
Overseas taxation TBHNGITE 229 984
(Over)Under-provision in respect of BEFE (BEEE),
prior years: BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH (78) (184)
Overseas taxation TBSMIIR (957) 615
3,392 5,746
Deferred taxation (Note 40): IRIERITE (P 7E40) -
Current year NEE (2,267) 568
Income tax expense FriS Rk 1,125 6,314

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries and

regions in which the Group operates.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE —Z—MFE+-A=+—RHIFE

16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

16. TR @

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

AREEERRASH AT F 2 IR R A E AR
BHERGNZIMEFEREEEZE RS
BMIERMT

2014 2013
—E—mEF —F =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Profit before income tax R P AS A5 A 29,589 23,594
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2013: 1Z&BFIEHHX16.5%
16.5%) AEZBE(CE—=4:

16.5%) 4,882 3,893
Tax effects of; MBHE
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ERB T E A HBZ

i 1,885 2,427
Income not taxable for tax purpose AR T E T ERRZ

LON (8,532) (2,856)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations 1&g 9MNEEFTER 2~

TR Rz 8 (675) (562)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ FIBEEE 2,640 1,294
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years BAEEE(BERE),

BT E (1,035) 431
Others Eih 1,960 1,687
Income tax expense FriSfifsE 1,125 6,314

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 3.8% (2013: 26.8%).
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE —ZT—MFE+ A =+—HIFE

17. DIVIDENDS 17. R E
2014 2013
—ZT-NF —T—=4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTExT FHT
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERBD IR AL -
during the year:
Final dividend in respect of the year ended Hz—T——F
31st December 2012 of 5.0 HK cents +TZA=Zt+—HIEFEZ
per share RHEARR S A% 5.08 0L = 15,570
Dividends proposed: BORARE.
Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE-ZT—NF
31st December 2014 of 2.5 HK cents +TZR=+—BLFEZ
per share (Note a) REARR B &Rk 2. 57810
(Pif5ta) 7,797 -

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share for the year ended 31st December
2014. Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, the proposed dividend will be paid on or before 16th
June 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 2nd June 2015 (2013: nil).

Note:

(@)  The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2014, as
referred to above, is calculated on the basis of 311,863,000 ordinary shares
in issue as at 31st December 2014 and at a final dividend of 2.5 HK cents
per share. The actual amount of final dividend payable in respect of the year
ended 31st December 2014 will be subject to the actual number of ordinary
shares in issue on the record date, which is expected to be on 2nd June
2015.

18. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 18.
OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profits attributable to equity holders of the
Company, a profit of approximately HK$234,000 (2013: a loss of
HK$359,000) has been dealt with in the Company’s financial statements.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's profit for the year:

Amount of consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to  AZRA BB FEHRE NRIE 2~

EFERTRERERE_T—F T A
=t+—RLEFEZREREG/R2581 -
FRRNEEBRBEFAS LR - %8
IEE R B —REFRNATRARZANK
MNFPR-ZE-—AFRAZBRIARFERE
ZafzBE(ZT—=F  §)

() LiEBE—Z-—NF+-_A=1+—RHLFE
ZERARAREIIRER T —NF+=A
=-+—H311,863,000% & 217 L @A K &
KPR EEFR25BUAE -BHE-T—1T
F+Z A=+ ALLFERRN 2 RGBS
ERSEBERTRREAMGERZA A
CE-REANAZBE)EDBTEER BE
HEME -

RABRAEFE AEAERF

AABIRAFFE ARG RBFP - RmFL
234,000 7L (== — =4 : E518%47359,000
PEIT) ERANA RIS SRR BRI o

bt e FEEARNRF RGN Z B8R

2013
T

HK$'000
TR

equity holders dealt with IRAFEE AFEIE

in the Company'’s financial statements AR (BE)&5E 234 (359)
Final dividend from a subsidiary attributable to the £ A1t R IR 3R B — R

profits of the previous financial year, approved B B8 A ) — B8

and paid during the year FE RNz RERE = 18,000
Company'’s profit for the year (Note 35(b)) AR RVE AN (HT5E35(0) 234 17,641
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE-_ZT—NE&+_A=+—HILFE

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE 19. BRER|
ARABRAFEABESREAARBEER
FIDBEARRBIRATE ARG F A REF
28,495,0005%71(:;= —= + 17,280,000
BT ) R E R NRE IR E311,431,0000%
(ZZE—=4 :311,403,000% )5t & -

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to equity holders of the Company is based on the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company of HK$28,495,000 (2013:
HK$17,280,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
311,431,000 shares (2013: 311,403,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December 2014 is
the same as the basic earnings per share as there is no dilutive effect of
potential ordinary shares outstanding (2013: same).

BE-FT-—MF+A=+—AILEE 5
REERHSREARNIAR - BEEETH
B EEERRAH(— =7 : 8R) -

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 20 ¥ - BMERSZHE -—X&E
GROUP AND COMPANY ) & NN
(@) Group (a) #&EE
Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture and office
buildings and Motor  equipment  Construction
BETHR fixtures vehicles B in progress
BT GRREE RE FRIR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THL BT TATL THL BT
At 1st January 2013 W=%-=%-5-H
Cost or valuation WA GE 189,900 29,645 2,146 120,775 - 342,466
Accumulated depreciation Zi7E - (24,945) (2,006) (103,761) - (130,712)
Net book amount FEFE 189,900 4,700 140 17,014 - 211,754
Year ended 31st December 2013 ~ BZ=Z-=F
TZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HNEETE 189,900 4,700 140 17,014 - 211,754
Additions "E - 616 - 2,624 1,055 4,295
Disposals e - 9) - (265) - (274)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 17 & o 515 (5,504) (1,873) (53) (9,899) - (17,329)
Exchange realignment EX AR - (17) (6) (29 - (52)
Reclassified to disposal group classified  E# A BZHEABIENLE
as held for sale (Note 32) 7RI (HE3)) - (619) - (956) - (1,579)
Revaluation surplus EffR% 40,004 - - - - 40,004
Closing net book amount HREETE 224,400 2,798 81 8,489 1,055 236,823
At 31st December 2013 R-B-Z&
+ZB=1+-H
Cost or valuation KAS(GE 224,400 29,086 1,887 117,860 1,055 374,288
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (26,289) (1,806)  (109,371) - (137469)
Net book amount FEFE 224,400 2,798 81 8,489 1,055 236,823
Comprising: af:
At cost B - 29,086 1,887 117,860 1,055 149,888
At valuation e 224,400 - - - - 224,400
224,400 29,086 1,887 117,860 1,055 374,288
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 20 ¥ - BERZRE L&
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) RAR AT )
(@) Group (Continued) (a) A&EE®)

Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture and office

buildings and Motor  equipment Construction
HELHR fixtures vehicles EHK  inprogress Total

BF HBHRKE RE BAERRE  ERIR st
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thx TR TR ThxT TR Thx

At 1st January 2014 W=Z-mF-5-A

Cost or valuation BASEE 224,400 29,086 1,887 117,860 1,055 374,288

Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - (26,288) (1,806) (109,371) - (137,465)
Net book amount FEFE 224,400 2,798 81 8,489 1,055 236,823

Year ended 31st December 2014 HE-E-mE

TZA=T-ALEE

Opening net book amount BNEEE 224,400 2,798 81 8,489 1,055 236,823
Additions HE = 918 1,198 11,195 1771 15,088
Disposals firf - (163) - (W] - (170)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRR - - - (161) - (161)
Depreciation and amortisation charge  #7& RS IIR: (6,690) (1,082) (164) (7,083) - (15,019)
Exchange realignment EH AR - (7) 1 (10) - (16)
Revaluation surplus EJRT4 42,482 - - - = 42,482
Transfer to investment properties BRETRENE

(Note 21) (FzE21) (542) = = = = (542)
Transfers 2 - - - 2,832 (2,832) -
Closing net book amount HRREFE 259,650 2,464 1,116 15,255 - 278,485
At 31st December 2014 RZB-mF

+=A=+-H

Cost or valuation KA HE 259,650 27,939 1,483 125,568 - 414,640
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (25,475) 367)  (110313) - (136,155)
Net book amount REFE 259,650 2,464 1,116 15,255 - 278,485
Comprising: af:

At cost KA = 27,939 1,483 125,568 - 154,990

At valuation & 259,650 - - - - 259,650

259,650 27,939 1,483 125,568 - 414,640
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HEZ—F—MNF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

20. 1% - RERRE -—FTKEE
¥ UNCIIE)

(@) Group (Continued)

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were stated as valuations
made at 31st December 2014 and 2013. The leasehold land
and buildings were last revalued by an independent professional
valuer, at 31st December 2014 and 2013, at market value basis
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to
a revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes of
approximately HK$35,472,000 (2013: HK$33,404,000) which has
been credited to the property revaluation reserve. Details of fair
value measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

As at 31st December 2014, if the leasehold land and buildings
had not been revalued, they would have been included in
these consolidated financial statements at historical cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortisation, of approximately
HK$46,004,000 (2013: HK$48,365,000).

The Group's interest in leasehold land represents finance lease
payments held in Hong Kong between 10 to 50 years.

Depreciation and amortisation of the Group's property, plant
and equipment have been charged to the consolidated income
statement as follows:

REBHAE L REF RN -
—mMER-ZE-=F+-A=+—H
ZIEENE - S Lt RIEFRE—
REBVEEMEMR_Z—NFR
—E-CFE+-_A=Z+—BEmER
EBETER  H2EMB LA
MELHPRHZEHNETE - BEFE
NMREREEMSHEEEEMHR
#4#4935,472,0008 T (=T — =4 :
33,404,00077C) * WEF ARYEE
BEEE - D EEFEFBFEHIIRM
#E6(d) °

R-E—WE+-_A=+—8 " ¥
HELtHWREFARERS  HE
RIEL KA R ITE R #
#746,004,000 T (—ZF — = F :
48,365,000/ 70 ) T AL F iR & M5
ig °

AEBREEL W RREREER
BN F10E0F 2 BEREN -

REEZME  BERRBZNER
BIHD IR A RERT R -

2014 2013

—E-IF =T—=F

HK$000 HK$'000

FHERT FHT

Cost of services rendered TR RS 2 B 9,520 9,924
Selling expenses HEER 1,906 2,007
Administrative expenses THER 3,593 5,398
15,019 17,329

As at 31st December 2014, the Group had pledged leasehold land
and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$259,650,000 (2013:
HK$224,400,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
as mentioned in Note 47.
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WK 47 R - R =B —mF+=
A=+—8B A&SEEHEREDS
¥259,650,000/ 8 L (ZFE — =4 :
224,400,000/% 70 ) 2 & Lt K iE
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 20. W% BERRE-&~%
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) RADN T o
(b) Company (b) &2
Computer
Furniture and office
and Motor  equipment
fixtures vehicles ERK Total
RRREE RE BOAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHAT FHT
At 1st January 2013 W-Z-=F—-H—H
Cost [P 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (1,442) (1,750) (14) (3,206)
Net book amount BREFE 548 - 10 558
Year ended 31st December 2013 HBE-ZT—=F
+-RA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYRREFE 548 - 10 558
Additions NE 235 - 25 260
Depreciation charge FEMR (390) - (6) (396)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 393 - 29 422
At 31st December 2013 R-B-—=&
+=A=t-A
Cost [P 2,225 1,603 49 3,877
Accumulated depreciation e (1,832) (1,603) (20) (3,455)
Net book amount BREDH(E 393 - 29 422
At 1st January 2014 R-Z-mFE—-A—H
Cost B 2,225 1,603 49 3,877
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (1,832) (1,603) (20) (3,455)
Net book amount BREFE 393 - 29 422
Year ended 31st December 2014 EHZE-Z—NF
+=-A=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYEREFE 393 - 29 422
Additions NE 12 1,199 38 1,249
Disposals HE (163) = = (163)
Depreciation charge FEMR (144) (120) 9 (273)
Closing net book amount HRBREFE 98 1,079 58 1,235
At 31st December 2014 R-E—mE
+=A=t-8
Cost (B9 860 1,199 85 2,144
Accumulated depreciation e (762) (120) (27) (909)
Net book amount REFE 98 1,079 58 1,235
Depreciation expense of HK$273,000 (2013: HK$396,000) has HrER X 273,008 T (T — =4 :
been charged to “administrative expenses”. 396,000 7T) BRI 1TIE E A IRk -
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE-_ZT—NE&+_A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

21. RENE-FKE

2014

—E—mF
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT

At valuation B

At 1st January wn—H—H 43,000 36,400
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EREWE - BB LR 542 -
Fair value gain NN 6,658 6,600
At 31st December R+—-—A=+—H 50,200 43,000

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income

statement:

AT BB RERA B R R

2014 2013
—ZT-NF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Rental income (Note 8) AU A (FTzE8) 2,609 2,594
Direct operating expense arising from investment ~ EAFES WA Z IR EWERT
properties that generate rental income EEZHEEGERY 302 283

The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by an
independent professional valuer at 31st December 2014 and 2013
at market value basis, which is determined by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. Details of fair value
measurement are set out in Note 6(d).

The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows:

REBZREMERE —NBBYSEME
MR —NFR_F—=F+=ZA=+—
AiEmEEEEETER - H2ETS LR
BYELERH 2 EBRETE - DA BENE
FHIEE N HIEE6() ©

REBEREEMEZEEDTNT

2014 2013
—=2-mF —F—=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
In Hong Kong, held on: NEBRE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 HE 50,200 43,000

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are set out in Note 45.

As at 31st December 2014, the Group had pledged investment properties

with a carrying amount of HK$50,200,000 (2013: HK$43,000,000) to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 47.
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RN A EBORE  RARERS
HRERHA MRS -

W A7 R —UFE+ = A=+—
H - A& E B R E 2 5850,200,000%
JTL(=Z—=4F : 43,000,000/ 7C) 2 &)
¥ DESETASEEZBITHE -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4t =B AR AR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE—T—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL - 22 B EEREE - FAEER
GROUP AND COMPANY PN
(a) Group (a) =5&H
Goodwil Intangible assets
e EVAE
Deferred
development
cost Club Customer Software
EE  memberships  relationships  technology Total
A efes KPBE S ] ELE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT L T BT ‘ T
At 1st January 2013 W=%-=%-5-H
Cost A 36,247 3,60 900 5,127 6,954 16,241
Accumulated amortisation and EHE e
impairment - (195) - (1,795) (2,434) (4,424)
Net book amount FEFE 36,247 3,065 900 3332 4,520 11,817

Year ended 31st December 2013 Hz-E-=%

TZAZT-HLEEE
Opening net book amount HOEEEE 36,247 3,065 900 3332 4,520 11,817
Additions NE - 7,237 - - - 7237
Amortisation B - (753) - (1,003) (1,360) (3,116)
Exchange realignment fE 5 3% (1,247) 17) - (101) (139) (357)
Reclassified to disposal group ENDBEENEARBE
dlassified as held for sale &z ER
(Note 32) (M#32) (35,000) (4,426) - (2,228) (3,021) (9,675)
Closing net book amount BRREEE - 5,006 900 - - 5,906
At 31st December 2013 R-B-=%
+=A=t-H
Cost KA - 5,006 900 - - 5906
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EETRE
impairment - - - - - -
Net book amount FHFE - 5,006 900 - - 5,906
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE-_ZT—NE&+_A=+—HILFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL - 2. BEEEREE-XEEK
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) ARAT] )
(@) Group (Continued) (a) A&EE®)

Gooduwiill Intangible assets
BE EVEE
Deferred
development
cost Club  Customer Software

L memberships relationships  technology Total
BRAA  eMERE  EFBE  BHEGH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TiEx TiEx TiEgn TiERn TiEx

At 1st January 2014 W=%-mE-F-A
Cost KA - 5,006 900 - - 5,906
Accumulated amortisation and ZHBHEIAE
impairment - - - - - -
Net book amount EEFE - 5,006 900 - - 5,906

Year ended 31st December 2014 BZ2-8-ME

+ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net ook amount HEEEE - 5,006 900 - - 5,906
Additions HhE - 153 - - - 153
Disposals e - - (900) - - (900)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (182) - - - (182)
Amortisation B - (988) - - - (988)
Exchange realignment 5B - 29 - - - 29
Closing net book amount HRERFE - 4,018 - - - 4,018
At 315t December 2014 R=Z-mF
+-A=1-H
Cost A - 5,006 - - - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and ZABELRE
impairment - (988) - - - (988)
Net book amount RETE = 4,018 = = = 4,018
During the year ended 31st December 2014, amortisation of RBE_ZE-—HF+ZR=+—HIF
approximately HK$988,000 (2013: HK$3,116,000) has been fE - B $549988,0008 L (T —=4F :
charged to “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated income 3,116,000 7T) ERNiR A Bm R 2 [ 1Rtk
statement. T2 R [ IR ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE—T—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(b) Company

At 1st January 2013,
31st December 2013 and

NN )
(b) AT

R-ZB—=F—H—18-
—E-=%+ZA=+—HRK

2. BREEREE -AEERK

Club
memberships

-zl ¢
HK$'000
THET

1st January 2014 —Z2-mFE—HF—H

Cost A 500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment S5 NORE -
Net book amount BRELFE 500

Year ended 31st December 2014 BE-_Z-—NE+-A=+—HLEFE

Opening net book amount ERYIRREFE 500
Disposals HE (500)
Closing net book amount RS E -

At 31st December 2014

R-ZE-NFE+=A=+—H

Cost AR -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment REHEE RORE -
Net book amount BREDFE -

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP

23. BENTERE - KEE

2014 2013

—E2—NF —T=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

At 1st January n—A—H 877 804

Fair value of equity interest in i-Sprint and AN E B RAN-Sprint & E B

its subsidiaries ("i-Sprint Group”) A& ([i-Sprintfe @ |) FTIR B8

retained by the Group (Note 33) B2 A EEMES3) 88,459 -

Share of results of associates it NCIE S (21,973) 563

Share of other comprehensive loss of associate FE(RESE A R E 2 &S (202) -

Dividends received B AR S (582) (486)

Exchange realignment M 3 F 2 (3,010) 4

At 31st December Rt+—A=+—H 63,569 877

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4 =B AR AR
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HEZ—F—MNF+-_A=+—HILFE

\

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (continued)  23. BA& N E)EZE — ANE B (o)

FT-A=t-BR-F-=%

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2014 and |
E+ H - AEEZIELHHERT]

31st December 2013 are as follows: -

T
A

%+ 5%

=gl

7|

Percentage of
nominal value of issued

Country/place ordinary share capital held
of incorporation indirectly by the Company

and operations RARBEEE
Name of associate ALK ERTEBRRAE Principal activities
BENR AR REZER BRI TEXK
2014 2013
“E-mMFE ZT-=
iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 33.3% 333% Provision of engineering and
BERFRBCRP) AR A SR software services
RUTERBERS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering and
EE] software services
PR TR REA R
i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited (Note (i) Hong Kong 48.22% 100% Provision of distributing and
RiE () BHAR 2R () 5 implementing technology risk
management products
R 85 R B HERAM
R ERERER
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd (Note (i) The PRC 48.22% 100% Provision of software
I RZHFRHE AR E TR (HEE)) HE development, distributing,

implementing and supporting
technology risk management

products

REBUFE - i BHER

YRR EEEMES

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd (Note (i) The PRC 48.22% 100% Provision of software
Rl QL R)BHRBEREE AR (FI5EG) + development, distributing,

implementing and supporting
technology risk management
products

REZARE - o8 Bk
TEEMEREEERER
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZEZ—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (continued)  23. B A RS — ANEE (o)

Percentage of
nominal value of issued
Country/place ordinary share capital held
of incorporation indirectly by the Company

and operations RARBEEE

Name of associate SRR ERTERRAE Principal activities
BENAR BB REZER/hE EZES R TEEE
2014 2013
—EBE-MF =—B-=F

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 48.22% 100% Investment holding, provision
(Note (i) (FI#E()) N of developing, distributing,
implementing and supporting

technology risk management

products

RERR - REFEE - D

B R ER

BB EREmES

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 48.22% 100% Provision of distributing,
(Note (i)) (FT#E()) Bk an implementing and supporting
technology risk management

products

REDH - Bl

ERERE IR ERER

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 48.22% 100% Provision of distributing and
(Note (i) (HTE(G)) BRAEL implementing technology risk
management products

R 85 R B R

RBREREmES

i-Sprint Innovations Inc The US 48.22% 100% Provision of distributing and
(Note (i)) (FI#E()) e implementing technology risk
management products

Tﬁﬁiﬁ%&?ﬁ@&?ﬁ

R EIEE M ER

i-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong 48.22% N/A Investment holding, provision
(Note (i)) (HTE(G)) 5 TEA of distributing and
implementing technology risk

management products

REZR  RESHR

EnRiERERERER

Note: ffaT -

@iy  i-Sprint Group is a strategic partner for the Group’s growth in the aspect ()  i-SprintEEREEAR N REG T ENHBIE
of solution business through its expertise. During the year, the Group's BREE Y REMBYE c NER - REER
shareholding in i-Sprint reduced to 48.22% and the Group ceased its control i-Sprint &) A #E #5R L 248.22% - A
in i-Sprint Group, which resulted in a deemed disposal of the Group's % B2 li-Sprint &£ & Ililﬁt?&?ﬁfﬁﬁ
interest in i-Sprint Group (Note 33). As such, i-Sprint Group became associates &R E B Ri-Sprint 52 E 25 (KT E33) ©
of the Group with effect from 12th February 2014. It i-SprintSE B B AL 8 2 B A A E

TEMEZ AT HERAER
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE-_ZT—NE&+_A=+—HILFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (continued)

The financial information of i-Sprint Group, which are material associates
accounted for using the equity method, are as below:

23. BiE N TR - AEEw

R ERE AR 2 B B H 2 R Fi-Sprint 5 &
ZEEERIT

Group

EE
2014 2013
—ZT—QmF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Non-current assets IEMENEE 16,358 -
Current assets mENEE 62,521 -
Current liabilities ik =N (36,046) -
Net assets FEE 42,833 -
Revenue WA 80,206 -
Loss for the year FNEER (46,614) -
Other comprehensive loss Hth2HEEE (418) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAREEIERE (47,032) -

Group’s share of: NEBEL, -

Loss for the year FNEE (22,556) -
Other comprehensive loss Hih2EEE (202) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANRHEEGELRE (22,758) -
Dividend received 2 U pR B - _

The information of iIN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a material

associate of the Group, is as below:

Group’s aggregate share of net assets

A RS —

REE-FHWIEBBRZBENRRERGR
FORFNBERARZERNT

Group

REE
2014
—E-mE

HK$°000
TET TR

HK$'000

of an associate B AR 2 FAELTE 880 877
Group's share of: REBEEL -
Profit for the year FREH 583 563
Other comprehensive income Hip 2w - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FANEEKEETE 583 563
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZEZ—ZF—NF+-_A=+—HILtFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP (continued)  23. BA& N EEZ — ANEBE (o)

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the L E R BN SprintE B R B E R
carrying amount of each of the investments in i-Sprint Group and iN GRFECRFARARSAZERERTEZ
Systems (Macao) Limited is set out below: HERT -
Group
AEH
iN Systems
i-Sprint Group (Macao) Limited
BERGNE (RM)
i-Sprint&E & BRAH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-NFE —T-=F ZT-IF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
Total net assets of associates SN R FEAERRE 42,833 - 2,640 2,631
Portion of ownership interests held AR&EB A~
by Group HEERRS 48.22% 100% 33.33% 33.33%
Group's share of net assets of S NG
associates FEE 20,654 - 880 877
Others EAfh (1,525) - - -
Goodwill [EES 43,560 - - -

Carrying amount of the interests  R4RA BIFSRE TR

in associates in the consolidated REE N AR

financial statements BREE 62,689 - 880 877
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses 7N 52 [ 2 4% 1E B SR H FE 8 ASL Automated
of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of Services (Thailand) Limited&518 o FEEFZHE &
unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from the DNRIZFAR B2 REREE ST (F
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year and BEE N R ABERERE)NAT ¢

cumulatively, are as follows:

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—mEF —T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate FNRMERFENE
for the year A= Y/N o2 7 58
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wz = -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANRHEGIERTE 7 58
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses REPARFEREN—HE
of an associate NS o St ] 597 590
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 24. REBE oS 2E€/MIT H — &

GROUP AND COMPANY SERAEQF
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to SR TAZ HBRERAN TIISIE :

the line items below:

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT FHIT
Group AEME
Loans and receivables BES & EWGIE
Trade receivables FEURE S 30E 179,417 210,963
Other receivables and deposits H A FEUGRIE R IE S 10,662 9,448
Amounts due from customers for AHTIREREFKIEA
contract work 271,058 241,928
Finance lease receivables FEW R E M ERIE 15,199 30,987
Restricted bank deposits ZIREHIRITER 781 48
Cash and cash equivalents W RIREEHEY 130,439 114,661
607,556 608,035
Group AEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IRE BRI AN R 2
EA =N
Trade payables FERE 5578 228,632 224,208
Other payables H b FERRIE 15,967 7,926
Short-term borrowings RHEE 42,000 49,257
286,599 281,391
Company AT
Loans and receivables B MR IE
Other receivables and deposits HEfb B RIS 232,431 237,368
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 3,421 1,120
235,852 238,488
Company N
Financial liability at amortised cost IRESEN AR BB E
Other payables Hith fe 5008 256 175

Annual Report 2014 % Automated Systems Holdings Limited B ) R4t =B AR A A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE—T—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 25. AMIBATZIRE —A&AQ T

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETHRRG + HRAA 1 1
Details of major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 49 to the AEEZ TEM B AR FBHNGAMIER
consolidated financial statements. KMIEE49 ©
26. INVENTORIES — GROUP 26. FE -4 &E
2014 2013
—Z2—NF —T—=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTExT TR
Goods held for resale FHEEEZEY 59,790 57,627
Goods pending for customers’ acceptance BERPEMZED 65,449 66,598
125,239 124,225
Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance FEEECEYMRBEREPEMCENEE
mainly represent computer equipment and software products. AEBRZERETHER °
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of HE-_ZT-—MNF+-_A=+—HItFE
goods sold” amounted to approximately HK$732,265,000 during the ERBAMAIWAATHEREI|ZFEX
year ended 31st December 2014 (2013: HK$811,281,000). K47 A 732,265,0008 T (—ZF — = F -

811,281,000 7T) °

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 27. BREZRIE-FEH

2014 2013

—ET-NF —T—=F

HK$000 HK$'000

TR FHT

Trade receivables — gross FEWE 5 50E— ek 179,899 211,761

Less: provision for impairment W ORE R (482) (798)

Trade receivables — net FEWE 5308 — 58 179,417 210,963
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 AEEBCZAHBRFPEA Y ZHE30BEE
days and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue H o AEERBEEEESRUBEERR
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. BEKIE - SREIRELE FIASEIT

EHEHEE -
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)

An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at the balance sheet
date, based on ageing from payment due date is as follows:

27. BEIRE ZFRIE —AREB»)

FERE ZRIBREREE ARENFRBIHA
ZERER DTN

2014 2013

—E—mF i——

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

Current BNEA 104,010 133,836
Within 30 days 30RHAR 34,516 30,035
31-60 days 31E60K 13,777 23,885
61-90 days 61590k 8,725 9,597
Over 90 days FEHEEIIFN 18,871 14,408
179,899 211,761

As at 31st December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$64,951,000 (2013: HK$67,562,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

R-ZT—mWE+—_A=+—8 EKZ
SR IB 164,951,000/ T (=T — =4 :
67,562,000/ 70) A B EMER TRIE © %
LIRINE S IARS E AT R 082
BURFAR - ZSEKESRIBZERY
MR -

2014

—E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T
Past due less than 90 days AHITNZ90R 47,401 54,675
Past due over 90 days A HAERIBO0 H 17,550 12,887
64,951 67,562

As at 31st December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$482,000 (2013: HK$798,000) of the Group were past due and
impaired. These receivables are individually determined to be impaired,
and full provision has been made on these receivables. The debtors have
defaulted in the scheduled payments after due dates and the Group
performed an assessment and concluded the chance of recovering the
account receivables is low such that full impairment had been recognised
in respect of these receivables.
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Continued) 27. EWE S FIE - AEE (o)

MU E SRR ERIA T I EHEHE -

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2014 2013
—ZT-NF —T—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
HKD BT 150,820 172,725
usb ESi 8,565 12,011
Renminbi (“RMB") ARH 3,291 4,072
Thailand Baht (“THB") Rk 2,696 2,226
Macau Pataca (“MOP") P 4,327 7,618
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") At 9,941 12,868
Others Efth 259 241
179,899 211,761
As at 31st December 2014 and 31st December 2013, the carrying REZZE-—NFE+_A=T—HER=ZT—=F
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. +=A=+—8 BEKES UAIEZEEEﬁgﬁ
HENAEEREE
Movements of the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables AEBEZEWE SHE R EREZSN
are as follows: T~

2014 2013

—E—mF —T—=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHT

At 1st January ®—RA—H 798 793

Provision for impairment (Note 12) RER R (FE12) 12 562

Reversal of provision for impairment (Note 12) AR ERD(MEE12) (328) (175)

Amount written off as uncollectible iy AEENEL £ - (280)
Reclassified to disposal group classified as held BN BEEDEARBE

for sale HE 2 HEER = @n

Exchange realignment M 3 B = an

At 31st December R+-—A=+—H 482 798

FEMGRIE 2 BB 2 3RS R B AT AER
HBRERIEABEERREMARS 24—
2B (HFE12) ©

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been
included as part of selling expenses and other cost of services in the
consolidated income statement (Note 12).

BB ERIR 2 2R RN IR~ g A
SR BRI -

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

RS E A E AT B AR IR R R TELR -

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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28. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their

present values at the balance sheet date are as follows:

28, EWAEHEHE - A EH

UTAIRIEREEEFRNEHE B 2 &IER

Wi B HIRME

2014 2013
—E—NE —E—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Non-current receivables: IR EN EURIE ¢
Gross finance lease receivables R R E T E R 5,438 13,528
Unearned finance income RERELZ g & A (254) (596)
5,184 12,932
Current receivables: FENREWRIE :
Gross finance lease receivables R R E HERIRRTE 10,427 18,944
Unearned finance income REREZ B E A (412) (889)
10,015 18,055
Gross receivables from finance leases: REBERE 2 EUGRIAEEE
Not later than 1 year —FR 10,427 18,944
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FERTER 5,438 13,528
Gross finance lease receivables PRI E TR E SRIEARRE 15,865 32,472
Unearned finance income RBEELZ REE U A (666) (1,485)
Net finance lease receivables Bl mEHERERE 15,199 30,987
The net finance lease receivables EWmEHERIETE
are analysed as follows: RIBUTFEDH
— Not later than 1 year ——FR 10,015 18,055
— Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ——FIERAFA 5,184 12,932
15,199 30,987
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29. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY

29 HhEWHIE - e TN
S RES LV ERD

Group Company
TEH NS
2014 2014
—Z—MF T—= —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FAT
Other receivables Hfh e zia 4,843 1,524 - 34
Deposits Ze 5,658 7,895 8 -
Prepayments Bt IE 13,859 7,551 306 345
Amount due from the ultimate BRI RIRR
holding company 113 - - -
Amount due from the immediate  EEIERATIA R
holding company 13 13 13 13
Amounts due from subsidiaries RIENEIVES - - 230,145 237,321
Amount due from an associate —MEE R BIRER 35 16 2,265 -
24,521 16,999 232,737 237,713

As at 31st December 2014, amounts due from subsidiaries included
interest-bearing loan amounting to HK$6,613,000 (2013: HK$8,144,000)
at 4% (2013: 4%) per annum. The remaining amounts due from group
companies and an associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities.

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

R-Z—MFE+_A=1+—8 WBAF
RABTEAEFRA% (ZF— =5 : 4%)
TR EREG6613,00008T( 8 — =4 ¢
8,144,000/87T) « 82 T 2 R B F] &k —
ERRIRRREER - B REERER -
HARBEEME  REZRAEREQAE
BEEE -

ERTYATFIEREHE

Group Company
AEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-QNFE —ET—=F ZB-0F _"—T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT FHET FHIT
HKD BIT 14,468 9,779 230,472 237,713
THB B 7S 1,053 777 - -
RMB AREE 6,422 4,706 - -
NTD e 651 994 = -
Singapore dollars (“SGD") T - - 2,265 -
usb =y 420 - = -
Others Eftb 1,507 743 - -
24,521 16,999 232,737 237,713
As at 31st December 2014 and 31st December 2013, the carrying REZZE—NF+_A=+—HER=ZT—=F
amounts of other receivables and deposits approximate their fair values. +ZA=+—H8 HttEWKRERIES 2R
HeHEEEN L EEERS -
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CONTRACT WORK - GROUP

As at 31st December 2014 and 31st December 2013, the balance
represented contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

Restricted bank deposits represented fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks that were pledged against performance bonds and
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Bank balances and restricted bank deposits carry interest at market rates
with average interest rates of 0.36% and 1.00% (2013: 0.13% and
0.63%) per annum respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

30.

31.

AN TREREFHE -
%5

R-ZT—ME+-_A=+—Brk_ZT—=F
FTZA=+—H8  BRIEMEEZEOKAR
INE W AR B MERE B AL E T -

ZREBTERRAERR
TEEY -FEEREQF

SRR P F RN AR RITZE T
R ZEFFEEREATRBEREOR
B RIRITRVE AV IR o

SRITRB R ZREIRITFERIEM S F R 5t
B FHFES R AEEF036%K&1.00%
—E—=4% :0.13%}&0.63%) °

—~

ReMRSEEBYWATIIEEHE

Group Company
AEE PN

2014 2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-mFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET TR FHET
HKD BT 98,206 70,811 3,271 970
RMB AREE 1,598 15,296 8 8
NTD etk 13,698 6,672 - -
usb e 7,067 15,658 142 142
Others HAth 9,870 6,224 - -
130,439 114,661 3,421 1,120

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies: SR HIRITFRA TN E A

Group Company

EE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F ZE-@OF ~—ZT-—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT FEx FHT
MOP BT 781 - - -
THB 4k - 48 - _
781 48 - -
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32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 32. D EAREHEZEE
On 11th December 2013, i-Sprint, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the RZE—=F+=_F+—H ARA2EHE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B & Z & EE AR AR

Company, signed a preliminary investment agreement term sheet with
an independent third party setting out the key investment terms to be
determined in respect of the subscription of new shares in i-Sprint (the
“Subscription”). It is expected that the Subscription will highly probably BiE
be completed within one year. Upon completion of the Share Transfer
as described in Note 33 together with the Subscription, the Group’s
shareholding in i-Sprint will be reduced to 48.22%, and the Group
ceased its control in i-Sprint Group. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
of the i-Sprint Group have been reclassified as assets and liabilities held
for sale and presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet at
31st December 2013. The Group has not recognised any impairment
losses in respect of the i-Sprint Group, neither when the assets and

liabilities of i-Sprint were classified as held for sale nor as at 31st

BN B ARI-Sprintll — 2B E = H FR]
—HYBREEBRERS - EPHMRE
i-SprintFT IR ([REEH M EEHFTER
o TEEAREEIRA S F*EWE
BX o FARR D B8 5 (M £33 77 ) & RRE

TH5E 18 » A5 B 7 i-Sprint ) B 42 1% W’J\
£48.22% - MZASE G FHEHli-Sprint&
B o ALt - i-SprintEEMEERBEEEH
PEAREHEEERARE  WBIZ7R
EZZ—=F+-A=+—HZEEEEA
BERA - TRi-SprintE EMBED AR
EHERRN —_Z—=F+=-fF=+—8"
7N £2 [ 3 48 3t i-Sprint £ B #E R AR E A

December 2013. 8o
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the i-Sprint Group classified as REZZB—=F+=ZA=+—0H " i-Sprint5kH
held for sale as at 31st December 2013 are as follows: DEABIEHEZEERABEZ TEZHEIN
N
2013
—T=5F
HK$'000
FHIT
Property, plant and equipment W BE RRE 1,575
Intangible assets EREE 9,675
Goodwill kS 35,000
Inventories FE 173
Trade receivables Y E 5 7R 12,668
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HibEWRIE « 2& RFER TR 3,960
Amounts due from customers for contract work AHIRREWEFPZIE 9,653
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 11,497
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale DERFIEHE HERFIZ BE 84,201
Trade payables FERTE SRIE 3,038
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSTIAE 892
Other payables and accruals HtbhFEARIE R ETEA 8,693
Receipts in advance SEL e 9,347
Current income tax liabilities Eﬂi@ﬁﬁ SHEE 454
Short-term borrowings RHEE 9,506
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale SEAFELREZEEERCBE 31,930
Net assets of disposal group classified as held for sale DEAFIENE 2 HEERI O FEE 52,271
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On 28th January 2014, ASL Security Solutions Limited (“ASL Security”),
i-Sprint, Top Realm Global Limited (“Top Realm”) and Superguard
Global Holdings Limited (“Superguard”) entered into a deed of
share gift and trust pursuant to which ASL Security, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company principally engaged in the investment
holding, owned 100% equity interest in i-Sprint and transferred at nil
consideration 9.44% and 7.90% of the then issued share capital of
i-Sprint to Top Realm and Superguard for the purpose of new employee
share ownership plans to be adopted by Top Realm and Superguard
respectively (the “Share Transfer”). Both Top Realm and Superguard are
special purpose vehicles set up, among other things, to hold the award
shares on trust for the benefit of the participants of the aforesaid new
employee share ownership plans. The transaction was accounted for
as equity transactions with an increase in non-controlling interest of
HK$9,005,000.

On the same date, the Company, ASL Security, i-Sprint, Great Ally
Investments Limited (“the Investor”), Top Realm and Superguard entered
into a subscription agreement pursuant to which i-Sprint issued and
allotted, and the Investor subscribed for 118,973,914 new shares of
i-Sprint (representing 41.67% of the enlarged issued share capital of
i-Sprint following the completion) for a consideration of USD9,850,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$76,833,000) (the “Subscription”).

Upon completion of the Share Transfer and the Subscription on 12th
February 2014, the Group's shareholding in i-Sprint reduced to 48.22%
and the Group ceased its control in i-Sprint Group (its operating results
included in the IT services segment immediate before the disposal), which
resulted in a deemed disposal of the Group's interest in i-Sprint Group.
As such, i-Sprint Group became associates of the Group with effect
from 12th February 2014 and have accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. The fair value of the equity
interests in i-Sprint Group retained by the Group on the date when
control was lost amounting to HK$88,459,000, which is based on the
price by reference to similar transaction, was recognised as deemed cost
of interests in associates.
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RZZ—MF—HA=+/LH + ASL Security
Solutions Limited ([ ASL Security]) * i-Sprint * 7&
AR BERAB([BR]) REEIRIERE
RN R ([T ) RIS IR 68 i R 5 v T 3885 -

HBUE - ASL Security(—RAARIZEM B £
ERFRAERZMBRA - WHA-Sprint
100% 2 15 ) AT (B 5 5|8 5Ei-Sprint 2
BBITARAR9.44% 2 7.90% F 78 FP M (£ -

LA R e 38 B AT ER A T I B AR ) 581 ([ AR 19
i) o TR REFHEAEFPRIE) ST

R AFEBRDFE 22 /\%%xﬁn/\ﬁ
BRBBRMMEBLZBEHRENAR - ZRX
SFERERZH AR - IR fo“Li"jJD
9,005,000/ 7T °

MEE + A2 7]~ ASL Security ~ i-Sprint
Great Ally Investments Limited ([1#& &% |) -
B M AER R R R - Bt - i-Sprint
BT RECE - MiRE ERIE118,973914
& i-Sprint #7 A% 17 (48 & 7 i-Sprint 7 58 X &
ZIRIBRBEITRALIE6T%)  REA
9,850,000 T (#H & 14 476,833,000/ 7T )
([REEE]) -

RZZE—MF-A+ =B TRBRMDEER
REEEE - ANEBERI-Sprint A IR T £
£48.22% AL B M A EEHli-Sprint S
B (HEgEn B2 et AEMEBH
R ED) - AR L& ARE B RI-Sprint
EE o Em o Bt - -SprintE B K AR E
ErHERs BT —MNFEF-_A+=H
AR - WERAERENGSMBRE
ABE - REBRKEISprintE BiF B
ARi-Sprint S BT REB R 2 AR EEE
88,459,000/B TL( HIRIEZZRULH 2B
BEFTE) BERBRIEREE QB 2@
FRAR
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEMB Q8w
The major classes of assets and liabilities of i-Sprint Group as at the date RSB iSprinteBzEERBEZE
of disposal are as follows: LRI
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 1,736
Intangible assets mEE 9,857
Goodwill [EE 35,111
Inventories "E 174
Trade receivables JEWE 5 FIE 10,625
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EhEURIE ~ e RIBE IR 7,121
Amounts due from customers for contract work AHTREREF A 10,420
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 11,530
Trade payables FERTE 5508 (3,928)
Other payables and accruals H T RIE R EAH & A (9,649)
Receipts in advance TRz (10,000)
Current income tax liabilities BUHAFR1SH B & (448)
Short-term borrowings RHEE (9,473)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS B E (895)
Net assets disposed of BEHEFEE 52,181
HK$'000
FHIT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHE A Rz W
Net assets disposed of BEREFEE (52,181)
Non-controlling interests eI 8,974
Expenses in connection with the disposal HEPEREZAY (1,037)

Cumulated translation reserve in respect of the net assets AL EIEHIERFLET HHEE
of the subsidiaries reclassified to profit or loss upon loss BRECZHBARIEEEY

of control ZEER R 451
Fair value of equity interest in i-Sprint Group retained by — ZAN(ERi-SprinttE B AR B2 2
the Group* NABE* 88,459
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries” (Note 9) BT A ALz e (EE9) 44,666
Net cash outflow arising from disposal: HEEEZHEESRHFEHE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED (11,530)
Expenses in connection with the disposal mEHEaEZAY (1,037)
(12,567)
Note: B EE -
* Included HK$45,252,000 of gain attributable to recognising any investment * BRFARKEZGE 2 BERNAINER
retained in the former subsidiaries at its fair value at the date when control is AIREARBEARIRBRE 2 &
lost. 45,252,000/ 7T °
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34. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 34 RAR-—AEBEKRAAT]

Number of
shares Amount
igng - 4=] x|
000 HK$'000
T FHIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREHE0.10BTZEER
Authorised: EERAK :
At 1st January 2013, 31st December 2013 and R-E—=%—HF—A8 "
31st December 2014 —ET—=F
+=R=+—H
R—F—meE
+=A=+-H 600,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At beginning of the year RET] 311,403 31,140
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share TR ETT RS
options BTz AR 460 46
At end of the year TR 311,863 31,186
During the year ended 31st December 2014, 460,000 ordinary shares REZE-ZT—NE+-A=+—HILFE -
were issued under the share option scheme of the Company (2013: nil). EREA R B I AR 5T 2185 17460,000% &

BR(ZB—=F ) -

35. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY 35. B —AEKERAERQT
(a) Group (a) ~5&H
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Special reserve Rl 34,350 34,350
Property revaluation reserve YEE G HE 189,646 154,174
Translation reserve P& 3 R s (896) 2,205
Share-based payment reserve VAR B R S St 2,259 3,548
Retained earnings REEBF 300,764 278,283
526,123 472,560
Movements of each component of the reserves are set out in the RESED 2 EHHNREEREEE -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE—T—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

35. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) ~ 35. fEE — ANEB R A Q B @)

(b) Company (b) AT
Share - Retained
based earnings/
Special payment (accumulated
reserve reserve losses)
DRBAER REER Total
KRl XfifEE  (REER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2013 R-Z2—=f—A—H 95,513 1,916 (2,227) 95,202
Profit for the year FREA - - 17,641 17,641
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends SRUT R LBRR S - - 5 5
Recognition of equity-settled share- RUARDBER S H2
based payments 5 - 651 - 651
Lapse of share options transferred to S =R AF| 2
retained earnings KA AR - 95) 95 -
Final dividend for the year ended HE-_Z——%+=-A
31st December 2012 =t+-HLEFEZ
REARRE - - (15,570) (15,570)
At 31st December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=1+—H 95,513 2,472 (56) 97,929
At 1st January 2014 R=Z—NF—A—H 95,513 2,472 (56) 97,929
Profit for the year FREF - - 234 234
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends YRR SBRR B = - 3 3
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise FABEREE TR 1T 2
of share options L@ - (126) - (126)
Recognition of equity-settled share-  FERUARD AR H 2
based payments X - 216 - 216
Lapse of share options transferred to S =RE ATz
retained earnings KRR - (302) 302 -
At 31st December 2014 RZZT—MmF
+=-F=+—A8 95,513 2,260 483 98,256

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4 =B AR AR Annual Report 2014 G 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e U ERRME

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HEZ—F—MNF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

(i) The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and
the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired in prior years.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium account.

(i) As at 31st December 2014, in the opinion of the directors,
the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution
to equity holders of the Company was approximately
HK$95,996,000 (2013: HK$95,457,000).

36. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date,

based on payment due date, is as follows:

35. @E—AEBERAQT @
(b) AT )

(i)

(i)

ARRZFRIFEERNBEFE
ARRRIBETE R RS BT
7T BE AT 2 A THL {5 B2 P LA R B
BRAAEBEFEZER - RIE
BRE-NN-FREDE(EE
7)) WEREEERAMBETI
B ASABSIAEDIK :

(1) A2RIRE A E LR
BEEANEBBERMEX
NEafE: =%

Q2 ARREEZANZHREE
HEmMIREBERAE
BT MR AN LA Ko B 1 i B B
ZHEA o

RZT—W&E+=_A=+—
B &2F2R4 A#HIETAE
RNRIRARIFE A Z HIBRENA
95,996,000 (= ZF—=
95,457,000/ 7T) ©

36. ESE S FE - AEH

FENE 5 SUER G BRI (T REIHI A 2 B
BATT -

2014 2013

—E2-F —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Current BNEA 148,309 145,817
Within 30 days 30 KA 53,630 44,089
31-60 days 31E60K 17,308 21,380
61-90 days 61290k 1,909 2,590
Over 90 days FEEHEEIIFN 7,476 10,332
228,632 224,208
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE—-Z—FE+_-A=+—

36. TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP (continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

HIEFE

36. ENEZRE-AEH#)
BT TSI E -

2014
—E—mF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR FHET

HKD BT 172,825 132,612
RMB AREE 7,983 11,451
usD E 30,679 67,549
THB ESS 3,839 3,069
NTD ek 12,008 8,333
Others HApth 1,298 1,194
228,632 224,208

At the balance sheet date, the carrying values of trade payables REER  BNESFIEZREERANR
approximate their fair values. BERE -
37. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP 37. HttENFRERETER —
AND COMPANY REERELQE
Group Company
AEE AT
2014 2014
—E—-mEF —E—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FHIT
Other payables H A FERTFIE 4,595 3,135 16 19
Accruals FEEHE R 40,512 39,336 3,049 5,855
Amount due to the ultimate holding /& G4 4ZA% 2 T 318
company - 239 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries KRB A TIRIE - - 240 156
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary & — &[5 Z i B A A
IE 9,230 2,712 - -
Amount due to associates IREE A RIFRIE 2,142 1,840 = -
56,479 47,262 3,305 6,030
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37. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP 37. H#tfE(N B R ES B H —

AND COMPANY (Continued) AEBRAAT @

ERTIATIIEREHE

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

38.

39.

Group Company
AEH b /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E-mFE —ZT—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT FExT FHET
HKD HBIT 38,323 38,262 3,305 6,030
RMB AR 11,346 4,305 - -
SGD s IT 416 - - -
NTD = 1,903 2,062 - -
Others Hith 4,491 2,633 - -
56,479 47,262 3,305 6,030
At the balance sheet date, the carrying values of other payables and NEEH  HihENRIBREAERZER
accruals approximate their fair values. BEEEALBERES -
The amounts due to the ultimate holding company, subsidiaries, a fellow RELIERAT - WEBAR - —HERRME
subsidiary, and associates are unsecured, interest free and are repayable NEIREBE AR FIAREER - B RAE
on demand. BERERER -

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE - GROUP

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to
delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated income
statement upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the service period
stipulated in the respective customer contract.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - GROUP

Short-term borrowings REEE

38. F K3 —

#EH

B SRR N E ATz BR(ERE
MmN EBESARERER)  JIRHERSE
AR 2 23 (RN BB P A ORI H AR
B HREAR A B R R ©

39. EHIfEE - A KHE

2014 2013
—g-mg

—EF—=
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TET

42,000 49,257

As at 31st December 2014, the Group’s short-term borrowings are
interest bearing from 2.37% to 2.73% (2013: 2.30% to 3.27%) per
annum and are wholly repayable within one year. These borrowings
are secured by a standby letter of credit issued by Group, and in return
secured by the assets as detailed in Note 47.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #E=—F—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B & Z & EE AR AR

40. EIEFABH — A EB R ARQ

COMPANY Al
The components of deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in FARGREEERBBRMER ZIELEMEH
the consolidated balance sheet and the movement during the year are as (AE) BEZHSREESHHRET :
follows:
Group Company
rEH NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —T-=F =ZB-0F _—T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FExT FHT
At 1st January W—HA—H (35,138) (28,883) 290 736
Tax charged to other comprehensive & Hth 2 FEl Uz

income R IR (7.010) (6,600) = -
Tax credited/(charged) to BirA BRI

consolidated income statement (30B ) FiIA (FisE16)

(Note 16) 2,267 (568) 333 (446)
Exchange realignment M 3 B (5) 21 - -
Reclassified to disposal group EOBEDEARE

classified as held for sale HeEZHEHR - 892 - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 3 - - -
At 31st December Rt+—_A=+—8H (39,883) (35,138) 623 290

The investments in the PRC and Thailand incorporated operations give
rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of
profits by way of withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2014, no deferred income tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Thailand. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in the
PRC and Thailand for which deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$3,922,000 at 31st December
2014 (2013: HK$3,492,000).
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HEZ—F—MNF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND

COMPANY (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2014, the Group had
total tax losses of approximately HK$44,824,000 (2013: HK$22,476,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred income tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$20,085,000 (2013:
HK$1,438,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining approximately HK$24,739,000 (2013:
HK$21,038,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of
which approximately HK$17,527,000 (2013: HK$13,621,000) will expire
within 1 to 5 years, approximately HK$7,202,000 (2013: HK$6,792,000)
will expire within 6 to 10 years and approximately HK$10,000 (2013:
HK$625,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the
year are as follows:

40. EIEFABH — A EB R ARQ

Cile))

ARTRIEE 8 Th IR A R R IE F 512 B A At

BRI IERTUE A T AR IR E AR ERAIE
WFERAE - R-S—NE+—_A=+—
A AEBEEHIEEBBREL 544,824,000
BT (=T —=4 : 22,476,000/ 7C) 7] A
BB AR ER - BEAMSHEECHE
78 &5 18 920,085,000 T ( =B — =4 :
1,438,000/ 7T ) FERR o EIFA AR BETERI AR 2%
IR - B0 #3682 T 2 £924,739,000 7%
T(ZZF—=4 : 21,038,000/ 7T ) EERIE
EATSREE + £ 4917,527,000%8 70(=
=T — =4 : 13,621,000&7T) ¥R —E 1
MEEE - M#97,202,0008 (T — =4 :
6,792,000/ 70) #7878 2+ F N FI HA K B
FREA%910,00008 7T ( —F — =4 : 625,000/8
TT) e

BEAATSEARAEERFENRRARE
PEOERITRAN - ARSEERAERER
—WIEE RIS AR - ELEPTSH
BEMEEEHMSHABRATREHE - RNF
N REMEREERBE(REER—H
HERE SN

Group Company
rEE Y|
Accelerated  Revaluation Accelerated
tax of IES tax Tax
depreciation  properties losses Total  depreciation losses Total
MEHERE  WEER  HEFE & mEHENE  HEFE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEL TATL FHL TAL FHL TAL FHL
At st January 2013 WZE-=F—-F-H (6,131) (23,950) 1,198 (28,883) 124 612 736
Charged to other comprehensive BEmEEMARR
income - (6,600) - (6,600) - - -
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A BERMETA/(15)
income statement (Note 16) (Hiz16) 393 - (961) (568) 28 (474) (446)
Reclassified to disposal group ENABENEARE
classified as held for sale HEZHEAR 892 - - 892 - - -
Exchange realignment EH A% 21 - - 21 - - -
At 31st December 2013 and W_E-=F+-F=1+—-H
Ist January 2014 k=Z-lE—-f—H (4,825) (30,550) 237 (35,138) 152 138 290
Charged to other comprehensive ~ BEMZERADNBR
income - (7,010) - (7,010) - - -
(Charged)/credited to consolidated ~ RFAIBRER(NG) /2 A
income statement (Note 16) (Mi316) (810) - 3,077 2,267 (121) 454 333
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAF 3 - - 3 - - -
Exchange realignment i 5 R (5) - - (5) - - -
At 315t December 2014 WE-mE+=-A=1+—H (5,637) (37,560) 3314 (39,883) 31 592 623
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #E=—F—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP AND 40. BEEEFEHR -~ SEBERE A
COMPANY (continued) Gile)
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: BERTISH 2 DMTI T
Group Company
TEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-F —E—=4F —E—NE —ET—=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET AT
Deferred income tax assets RSB E
—to be recovered after more than  — iR iB@121E A 1%
12 months o] 3,345 320 623 290
Deferred income tax liabilities REFSHAE
— 1o be recovered after more than ~ — i/ B8 121E A 1%
12 months e (43,228) (35,458) - -
Deferred income tax (liabilities)/ AR (BE),
assets, net BEFEE (39,883) (35,138) 623 290

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 41. BBIRFESTE

() AATZEREE

(a) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 8th August 2002. Under the Scheme, the directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time. Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the
date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant.
There is no general requirement that an option must be held for
any minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors
of the Company is empowered to impose at its discretion any such
minimum period at the time of grant of any particular option. The
period during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion, save
that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.
The Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HE-_ZT—NE&+_A=+—HILFE

41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) A1, BIRAEET 8l
(a) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued) (a) AT ZEBREE(®)
The following table discloses details of the share options held by TRBEEEHERE(BEESE)IREX
employees (including directors) under the Scheme and movements FEEEZBRERZSEEAEEC
in such holdings during the year ended 31st December 2014: T—E+-_A=+—BItFEZ&
BIEIE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=fF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of exercise of
price options price options
R IS
TEE BRESE 178 FERRIES R
At 1st January »w—A—8 HK$1.11 11,555,000 HK$1.11 13,235,000
111387 111587
Exercised during the year FRITE HK$1.09 (460,000) - -
1.098 7T
Lapsed during the year FRKI HK$1.11 (2,436,000) HK$1.10 (1,680,000)
11187 11087
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H HK$1.11 8,659,000 HK$1.11 11,555,000
11187 111587
Exercisable at 31st December IR+ =—A=+—H HK$1.11 5,616,000 HK$1.11 3,850,000
{314 11187 11187
Weighted average remaining TR 7.3 years 8.5 years
contractual life BHFH 73%F 854
The options granted on 19th March 2012 will be vested equally on RZTZ—ZF=A T+ ARHOER
each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. BEAREBSNE— F_RFE=
The options granted on 2nd May 2012 will be vested equally on BEERSENRE -N_T—_4F
each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date, AAZHEDEREERE LA
or vested immediately in full in the event of a special dividend of ME— FREZRFEREED
the Company being declared. BB KA RNRERENRE - BB

PR S BB
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #E=—F—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint

On 10th July 2013, the Board resolved to adopt an employee share
ownership plan of i-Sprint (the “i-Sprint Scheme”), to grant awards
to employees of i-Sprint up to 49,962,192 existing shares of i-Sprint,
representing approximately 30% of the issued share capital of
i-Sprint, which was held by ASL Security. The awards were granted
in the form of:

(i) 26,979,584 restricted share units (“RSUs"), representing
approximately 16.2% of the issued share capital of i-Sprint
which were i-Sprint shares denominated in units conferring
rights to the grantees to receive i-Sprint shares when the
RSUs vested at no consideration; and

(i) 22,982,608 share options, exercisable into approximately
13.8% of the issued share capital of i-Sprint, which confer
rights to the grantees to elect, at their discretion, to acquire
i-Sprint shares at an exercise price of SGD0.046 (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.287) per i-Sprint share, or at an exercise
price per i-Sprint share to be determined by the Board (as the
case may be).

The i-Sprint Scheme was valid and effective for a period of seven
years commencing on 15th July 2013 and expiring on 14th July
2020. After such period, no awards shall be granted but the
provisions mentioned under the i-Sprint Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects.
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HEZ—F—MNF+-_A=+—HILFE

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint

(Continued)

All RSUs and options granted under the i-Sprint Scheme will
become vested subject to the i-Sprint Group achieving certain
specified financial performance targets during the three years
ending 31st December 2014. Subject to the fulfillment of the
respective vesting conditions, all the awards will be vested by 1st
May 2016.

Upon a change of ownership of i-Sprint or an initial public offering
of i-Sprint shares, all unvested RSUs and options (with which the
condition relating to specified financial performance targets of the
i-Sprint Group having fulfilled) will vest immediately. The grantees
shall have the right to exercise their options within 14 days being
notified of the abovementioned event, and all unexercised options
will be forfeited thereafter.

The RSUs shall be deemed to have been accepted by the grantee
at no cost upon the execution of the acceptance letter of the grant
letter of the RSUs within 28 calendar days from the date of grant.
The option shall be deemed to have been accepted by the grantee
upon the execution of the acceptance letter of the grant letter of
the option with a remittance of SGD1 to i-Sprint also within 28
calendar days from the date of grant.

Upon the completion of the Share Transfer and the Subscription
on 12th February 2014, i-Sprint Group became associates of the
Group (Note 33), all unvested RSUs and options (with which the
condition relating to specified financial performance targets of the
i-Sprint Group having fulfilled) vested immediately and the i-Sprint
Scheme was cancelled on the same date.
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41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cContinued) 41. BB IR AETHEl )

(b) i-SprintZ{EE MR 5 &)

TREERE-F -MER-F-=F+=
A=+ B EIRE-Sprintit 815282 &
PR R 15 S8 15 T 2 28,2 A6 D0
FHRAEME

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint
(Continued)

The following table discloses details of the RSUs awarded pursuant
to the i-Sprint Scheme and their related weighted average fair
value on the date of award during the year ended 31st December
2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
—E-IF —T-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
fair fair
value on Number of value on Number of
the date i-Sprint’s the date i-Sprint's
of award shares of award shares
R A REEE) B HA
DIREF S i-Sprint T i-Sprint
DREE RHEE “REE R
At 1st January w—H—H HK$0.23 22,982,609 - -
0.2378 T
Awarded during the year FRLEE - - HK$0.23 22,982,609
0.23%7L
Cancelled during the year FRNFH HK$0.23 (20,590,419) - -
0.2378 T
Forfeited during the year FR2U HK$0.23 (2,392,190) - -
0.23# T
At 31st December Rt+=—A=1+—H = - HK$0.23 22,982,609
0.23%7T
The fair value of the shares awarded during the year ended 31st HE-ZT—=F+-A=+—HILF

December 2013 on the date of award is measured by reference to
the business valuation carried out by professional valuer by using
the income approach. The key assumptions used for calculation are

as follows:
Average revenue growth rate 17%
Discount rate 17%
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41. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 41. IR fEst 8l
(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint (b) i-Sprintz{EE R 5ET8(4@)
(Continued)
The following table discloses details of the share options held by TEFEBEHE T NFR-_T—=
i-Sprint’s employees under the i-Sprint Scheme and movements F+ZA=F+—HIEFEISprintiE B
in such holdings during the year ended 31st December 2014 and Ri-Sprintat B &V AR - KATHE
2013: BERRE RS -
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
DIREF IR
TEE BREZE 1I{EE FERRIES R
At 1st January w—A—H HK$0.287 15,321,739 - -
0.28758 7T
Granted during the year FERFEL - - HK$0.287 15,321,739
0.287% 7T
Cancelled during the year FREH HK$0.287 (13,283,948) - -
0.28738 T
Forfeited during the year FRZI HK$0.287 (2,037,791) - -
0.287% T
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H - - HK$0.287 15,321,739
0.287%7T

Exercisable at 31st December AR+ =-A=+—H Notapplicable Not applicable  Not applicable ~ Not applicable

718 TEA TEA T TER
Weighted average remaining IEF TS Not applicable 6.5 years
contractual life BHFH TEA 6.5
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #E=—F—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(b) Employee share ownership plan of i-Sprint
(Continued)

In respect of the share options granted under the i-Sprint Scheme
during the year ended 31st December 2013, the estimated fair
values of the options on the date of grant were calculated using
Black-Scholes model. The estimated fair value was HK$0.07. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Fair value of shares at the grant date HK$0.31
Exercise price HK$0.28
Expected volatility 41%
Option life 7 years
Risk-free rate 1.8%
Expected dividend 53%

The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company for the closing share price for the period
of 3 years before the date of grant.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$1,825,000 (2013: HK$1,727,000) in relation to equity-settled share-
based payment transactions under the Company’s Scheme and i-Sprint
Scheme.

No RSU or option under the i-Sprint Scheme has been granted during

the year ended 31st December 2014.

No consideration received during the year from employees for taking up
the shares under the options of the Company’s Scheme and the i-Sprint
Scheme. (2013: HK$141).
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 #Z2_ZF—WN&+_-_A=+—HILtFE
42. CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS 2 REERSHSIWA(ZH)
2014 2013
—E ZT—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
Profit before income tax R TS A5 AL A 29,589 23,594
Adjustments for: FCEEE
— Share of results of associates (Note 23) — [E(REGE AR EE
(PBFEE23) 21,973 (563)
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 22(a)) —\EERHE(MME223) 988 3,116
— Depreciation and amortisation of property, —WE - BERRETER
plant and equipment (Note 20(a)) 45 (B EE20(a)) 15,019 17,329
— Gain on disposals of property, plant and — Hj%#%% BB &
equipment (Note 9) 2 W (MHEE9) (37) (150)
— Gain on disposals of intangible assets (Note 9) —HEEFEEZ kA
(BiF5E9) (827) -
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9) —HEHBARZIKE
(M$329) (44,666) -
— Fair value gain on revaluation of investment —EMREYEZAREE
properties (Note 21) Wezs (BREE21) (6,658) (6,600)
— Fair value loss on deferred consideration —EEEREZ AREE
payable (Note 9) EE (M) - 16
— Inventories written off (Note 12) —MEEEE (ME12) 5,952 -
— (Reversal of provision)/Provision for obsolete —MREFE(EERD),
inventories (Note 12) B (MIRE12) (154) 303
— Interest income (Note 8) — FILS A (Hf3E8) (69) (156)
— Interest expenses (Note 11) — S H (FEET1) 1,414 1,633
— Equity-settled share-based payment expenses — LR AEEMT AT 1,825 1,727
— Losses on deregistration of a branch — R ITZIEX 426 -
— Provision for impairment of amounts due from — A TRREKREFPFIE
customers for contract works (Note 12) REEE(E12) 7,303 -
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables —EWE B RIERE
(Note 27) Bt (Pat27) 12 562
— Reversal of impairment of trade receivables — BN E Z R IERE
(Note 27) BERE (H7E27) (328) (175)
Changes in working capital: HEEEY
— Inventories -FE (10,943) (21,945)
— Trade receivables — W E HIE 33,905 13,453
— Finance lease receivables — BE TR E R IE 15,788 9,302
— Other receivables, deposits and prepayments —E A EUMGRIE
e MIEMHRIE (10,935) (1,483)
— Amounts due from customers for contract —EHIRERER
work wIA (37,200) (26,725)
— Restricted bank deposits —ZRHIERITFER (733) 3,939
— Trade payables —ENESHIE 5314 (4,532)
— Other payables and accruals — HAth ERTRRIE K BT B R 10,428 (10,300)
— Receipts in advance —raliEs 3,301 (5,549)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BB ZREWA(ZH) 40,687 (3,204)
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For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE—T—NE+_-_A=+—HILFE

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 43, EEERIE
Group - as lessee AEBE-EREBEA
As at 31st December 2014, the Group had commitments for future R-Z—NF+_A=+—8 ' XEERE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in TR EE S EROEN T BB E TR
respect of certain of its office premises and computer equipment which EYERBMERE 2 RRSERL S TR
fall due as follows: NN
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E=5F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Within one year —FR 7,950 5,502
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FERAFA 2,590 2,782
10,540 8,284
Leases for office premises and computer equipment are negotiated for MAEMERERRE AN D BT HZ—
an average term of one to three years and three to five years respectively ZoFR="FRFER X HERHEHR
and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. REE °
Company - as lessee AT —ERBAEA
2014 2013
= ik —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Within one year —FNRN 42 -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FELREFA 33 -
75 -
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44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREIE
Group rEE

2014 2013
= ik —T=F

HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FHT

Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant ~ REGASBEHRENDETL
and equipment contracted for but not provided BARBEZE -

in the consolidated financial statements s R 2 AR X 1,249 -
Company PN
The Company does not have significant capital commitments. PAN/NIRI 3 N W\ E S

45. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 45. Rk R& XA S5

Group rEE
At 31st December 2014, the Group had contracted with customers and RZE—WF+=—A=+—0 A~EEDH
an associate in respect of land and buildings under operating leases as T REFEERORTS R—EBE A
follows: RIFTRIAAT -
2014 2013
—E2—QmEF —EF=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR FHET
Not later than one year —FR 1,837 2,594
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —F@EAFR 135 1,513
1,972 4,107
Company NN
At 31st December 2014, the Company had contracted with a related R-ZE—NF+_A=+—H  KRAREHR
party in respect of land and buildings under operating leases as follows: T RAEF 7 E ML E—RIEA LT
T
2014 2013
—E—mEF =
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz FHT
Not later than one year —FR 324 -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FEERREFA 135 -
459 -
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46

47.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B & Z & EE AR AR

. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2014, bank deposits held as security for
banking facilities and performance bonds amounted to approximately
HK$781,000 (2013: HK$48,000) (Note 31). As at 31st December
2014, performance bonds of approximately HK$46,485,000 (2013:
HK$43,990,000) have been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group
to customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee provided by the Company to vendors as
security for goods supplied to the Group amounted to approximately
HK$44,524,000 as at 31st December 2014 (2013: HK$44,512,000). The
amount utilised against goods supplied as at 31st December 2014 which
was secured by the corporate guarantee was approximately HK$342,000
(2013: HK$1,074,000).

No provision for the Company’s obligation under the corporate
guarantee has been made as the directors considered that it is not
probable that the repayment of amount payable to vendors would be in
default.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS — GROUP

As at 31st December 2014, the Group pledged leasehold land
and buildings with a carrying amount of HK$259,650,000 (2013:
HK$224,400,000) (Note 20) and investment properties with carrying
amount of HK$50,200,000 (2013: HK$43,000,000) (Note 21) to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31st December 2014, the Group's restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$781,000 (2013: HK$48,000) were pledged to secure
the banking facilities and performance bonds of the Group (Note 31).
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R-ZT—MNE+—-A=+—8 - NAETF
RAERIFRITRE KB LAREZ L EH
£781,000/70( —F — =4 : 48,000/5 L)
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BITREAEEGL TEFIEAGNEITRZE
AR B4 546,485,000 T(— T — =4 :
43,990,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE—FE+_-_A=+—H8 AQFMA
BHELIEARMASEHREERZ AR
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20) & BR T € 5850,200,00078 70 2 & & ¥ %
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. BEALTRZ
As at 31st December 2014, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 66.95% of the RZZB—NF+=-_A=+—8 " BFEBX
Company’s shares. The remaining 33.05% of the Company’s shares are XA A A B 2 66.95% * 2 33.05%
widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Company is Teamsun. B EMALFTEA o KRR REIEBRA
RIREBRAK
(@)  Transactions with related parties () HEEALTZZS
2014 2013
—E-0OF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Nature of transaction TEME
Ultimate holding company: BAERAR
Sales by the Group* AEBHE 224 867
Purchase by the Group* AEBEEE- 2,300 7,754
Other income charged by the Group REBEAMMPA - -
Expenses charged to the Group REBTNZRAX 291 292
Fellow subsidiaries: FERMBAT :
Sales by the Group* REBEEE = 3,850
Purchase by the Group* REBEEE 1,256 19,745
Expenses charged to the Group REBZN2HAEZ = 12
Immediate holding company: BEEERAR
Sales by the Group* REBEHE 9 114
Purchase by the Group* REBEHEE = 252
Expenses charged to the Group REBEBZ R 2AE - 125
The associates: BENT
Sales by the Group REEHEE 64 44
Purchases by the Group AEEEE 5,576 4,381
Staff costs charged by the Group REREB 2z ETHR 13 -
Administrative expenses charged RERBU 21T
by the Group - 169
Rental income charged by the Group REREFM 2 B2 WA 174 30
Management services income charged by the ZK& EUEL > & I8 IR
Group WA - 118
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 48. FEALTR S ()

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal EnEREEERMEREPNER —BER

commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and ZIEEEEETETRS ©

vendors.

(b)  The Group's balances with related parties are set out in Notes 29 (b) AEBEEEA LT ZEREGRE LM
and 37. F29837 ©

() Key management compensations are disclosed in Note 14 and 15. (0 FEEBABRERKFE14RISARE

=

Note: B & -

* The related party transactions in respect of sales to and purchase from the * Bl Ll AR AR HE REBEUAKLE
ultimate holding company and purchase from fellow subsidiaries above FEMBATEE 2 EEEA LT SHER L
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions THRBIE VAT FIRE 2 BRER 558
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by ERG o BIEEMHRAEAAZRBETEAT
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the directors’ report. WRZANRESRERME -

49. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 49. TEWB R T ZFH1E
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December R-ZE—NF+_A=+—HBE_T—=F
2014 and 31st December 2013 are as follows: +ZA=+—8  ARRZEEMNEARF
=3 .
CLUNNE
Percentage of
Country/place of nominal value of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued issued share capital
establishmentand  and fully paid share capital/ held by the Company
operation registered capital KR
Name of subsidiary TR R BETR BIRA Principal activities
WEAR AR BE AR/ BRBA/ EHER BRADM FTEXH
2014 2013
“E-mE  Z%-=
Automated Systems (H.K.) Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
Limited (Note 1) 5 HK$55,350,000 and solutions and provision of hardware
BBHZR(EE)ERAR ANon-voting deferred shares services (including installation and maintenance
(Fst1) VETERR services) and software services (inclucing
55,350,000 7T software development, consulting and
MER BRI professional services)

RARR HEEMERRBATER
RERHRE(QRRERRERY)R
FHRR(BERERY  BRREXRB)
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49. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 49. TEMB AR 2#F B
(Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December RZE—NFE+=_A=+— —T—=F
2014 and 31st December 2013 are as follows: (Continued) +ZA=+—8 &R EZIEWE Gk

BT : (88)

Percentage of
Country/place of nominal value of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued issued share capital
establishmentand  and fully paid share capital/ held by the Company

operation registered capital ANFEE
Name of subsidiary RTAN BETR BIRA Principal activities
WRARER fg : BRRA/ERER ERAAL TEXRK
2014 2013
~2-mE  ZB-=F%

ELM Computer Technologies Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and solutions
Limited &5 Ordinary shares and provision of hardware services
B R BERAR 12,000,000 7 (including installation and maintenance
EER services) and software services (including

software development, consulting and
professional services)
HETMERRBAIER
RERHRE(ARRERRERK) R
TR (aFRnRE  BRREXRR)

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau MOP10,000 100% 100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
BERG(RM)ERAR &R Ordinary shares and solutions and provision of hardware
JRFI10,0007T services (including installation and maintenance

EER services) and software services (including

software development, consulting and
professional services)

RERR  HEBRERREAARR
REBHRB(ARRERRERE)R
FHRH(AETHRSE  BRREERY)
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49. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 49. TEMB AT 2#F B
(Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December RZE—NFE+=_A=+— —T—=F
2014 and 31st December 2013 are as follows: (Continued) +ZA=+—8 &R EZIEWE Gk

BT : (88)

Percentage of
Country/place of nominal value of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued issued share capital
establishmentand  and fully paid share capital/ held by the Company

operation registered capital ANFEE
Name of subsidiary RTAN BETR BIRA Principal activities
WRARER fg : BRRA/ERER ERAAL TEXRK
2014 2013
~2-mE  ZB-=F%

ASL Automated (Thailand) Thailand THB50,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
Limited B Ordinary shares and solutions and provision of hardware
%4£50,000,00070 services (including installation and maintenance

LRk senvices) and software services (including

software development, consulting and
professional services)

REBR  HETHERRBAIER
REBHRE(ARRE RRERKE) R
TR (aFRGRE  BRREXRY)

Guangzhou Automated Systems The PRC HK$30,000,000 (Note 2) 100% 100% Sale of computer products and solutions and
Limited HE 30,000,000/ 7T (izE2) provision of hardware services (including
BEMREXEEENRERAR installation and maintenance services)

and software services (including software
development, consulting and

professional services)
HEERERRBATRR
REBHRE(ARRERRERE)R
RURE(DERAAY  BRREERE)
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49. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

49. T EMB AR ZFH B @)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December
2014 and 31st December 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAF &R

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment and
operation
EMRLR
BECER/ B

Nominal value of issued
and fully paid share capital/
registered capital

BETR

BRRA/ ERES

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company
KRR
BRA
EHAM
2014 2013
“e-mE  —g-If

Principal activities

E23 3

ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* USD1 Ordinary share "100% 100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
HBRAAS 1ETERR and solutions and provision of hardware

services (including installation and maintenance

services) and software services (including

software development, consulting and

professional services)

REBR  HETHMERRBAIER

RERHRE(RRE RRERK) R

TR (aFRnRE  BRREXRY)

ELM Technologies British Virgin Islands USD1 Ordinary share "100% "100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERUES 1ETEER REER
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands# USD2 Ordinary shares "100% "100% Property holding
RRRARE e iilid WERE

Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands USD2 Ordinary shares "100% "100% Property holding
ERRAHE b yilld WERE

Express Profits Development  British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares "100% "100% Property holding
Limited ERRAEE bE -l ESL
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands HK$0.1 Ordinary shares "100% "100% Investment holding
HEHE 0BT ERR REAR
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49. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December
2014 and 31st December 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

1. During the year, a Taiwan branch under Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
was deregistered and a loss of HK$426,000 was recognised.

2. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC as a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st December
2014 was HK$30,000,000 (2013: HK$30,000,000).

A The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry
practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

1 Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year (2013: same).
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Z—N A=+—BRk=-Z2—=%
ZA=t—H ARFZEEMBARF

1. RAFRH - BBRF(FB)BERARET—
MAEESITE R - W HEREH426,000/8
ﬁ o

2. BENREXEEREERRARA NP M
BINEBEGCE -BE_T—WNF+A
=+—HZEHE AR A30,000,000%5 T(=
ZT— =4 : 30,000,000 7&7T) °

A BEEERER(IIFRAXEREE)LE
P 7 1 MR B AL B SRR A B AT AR
GBS FEERAGINE LRERS
SIS HRES 2 (EfR DR ©

# HERTNEBLE
! ARBEEFHEZMBAR -

BEERE LRAFIAATNMELREE
FEAFEEEIEANTEREEFENE
ZED - EER R HMHTE A RNFE
TRIBERITE -

RAFEHEER - BEMNBARETEMNE
BEH(ZF—=%F: fAR) °



Particulars of Investment Properties
REV=FE

For the year ended 31st December 2014 HZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

Particulars of the Group's investment properties at 31st December 2014 areas R=-Z—E+=-A=+—H KEEBEY
follows: EFHBOT

Location Gross floor area (sq.ft) Use Tenure

i B BERBR(TAR) ik £

Units 1to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor 11,744 sq.ft Commercial Medium Lease
Topsail Plaza 11,744 FHR [EES FRERTEAY
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

B

R

WM

ZOE158

%55

121275 R15E 2157 8B L

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor 125 sq.ft Commercial Medium Lease
Topsail Plaza 125 F AR [EES HRHERFRAY
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

WH

ZOET15R

#|8E5

NP4
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of
Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

SHFREBARL D NN - B AR R AR LN

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza
No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

No.11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
Room 1801, Block B, Centre Plaza
No.161 Linhexi Road

Tianhe District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510620)

Tel: (86) 20 2881 6633

Fax: (86) 20 2881 6631

BB

BERG(HB)ARAF
HEYDH
ZOE119%
E|EES 158
: (852) 2601 6998
%E (852) 2601 6936

WM BB AR A
EEDH

21155

E|EES 1612

T ¢ (852) 2541 9900
{85 :(852) 2541 1338

ZildE (BB )RR AR AR

HEYDH
ZIVE115R
Z|EE510186- 7%
: (852) 2608 6226
%E (852) 2645 8069

B &) R4 = A O(ACOE)
HEDH

21155

E|EESH 1518

& ¢ (852) 2601 6998
{8H : (852) 2601 6936

P E A its

BEMREXRESRAR IR
BN EMANTERE1615%

PR ESBE1801E
(B34 : 510620)

3% © (86) 20 2881 6633
fEH : (86) 20 2881 6631

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited — Shanghai BEMBEEEEERBERAR— &
Room 2709, 27/F, China Insurance Building, 166 East Lujiazui Road T ST R R M R B 16655
Pudong District, Shanghai, China FRRBAE271£2709F

(Postal code: 200120) (#84%% : 200120)

Tel: (86) 21 6100 5583 BEEE  (86) 21 6100 5583

Fax: (86) 21 6100 5581 f8E : (86) 21 6100 5581
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of Major Subsidiaries,
Associates and Relevant Centers

BBRGEEEGRLR - T2ME - BE QR RAEPLER

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd I RZHAARREREEAA
11/F, Tower A Technology Fortune Center IERTEERE

No. 8 Xueqing Road EE 8GR

Haidian District, Beijing, China B EROARETTE
(Postal code: 100082) (Zp4% - 100082)

Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009 E 55 1 (86) 10 8273 6009
i-Sprint Innovations China (Zhuhai, CoE) TR G E AL
Unit 4-1, 4/F, Block B-2 WM RERRE R 19%
Southern Software Park 7 BN EB2AR U 1E4-1E
No.1 Software Road (24 : 519080)

Zhuhai, Guangdong, China FE:E ¢ (86) 75 6339 5286
(Postal Code: 519080) ¥ : (86) 75 6339 5577

Tel: (86) 75 6339 5286
Fax: (86) 75 6339 5577

MACAU P

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited BB RASORF)BERAA
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpcao No.180 SRPIR T A B 18055

Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo REDEERLIMEORE
14 Andar O-R, Macau EiE (853) 2878 6392
Tel: (853) 2878 6392 f#E : (853) 2878 6390

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited BERGRHLCRF) AR AT
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpcao No.180 JRPIR & A& 5 1805%

Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo R ERO14EORE
14 Andar O-R, Macau & ¢ (853) 2878 6392

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 fEE : (853) 2878 6390

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

THAILAND 2

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building 283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Fl. Unit 0901, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 EiE ¢ (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207 {£5 : (662) 185 3207
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of Major Subsidiaries,
Associates and Relevant Centers
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ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building 283/42 Home Place Office Building,
Unit 0902, 9th FI. Unit 0902, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 EiE ¢ (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207 {£H : (662) 185 3207
SINGAPORE 03

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

750D Chai Chee Road 750D Chai Chee Road

#0801 TechnoPark @ Chai Chee #0801 TechnoPark @ Chai Chee
Singapore 469 004 Singapore 469 004

Tel: (65) 6244 3900 % iE ¢ (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900 fEE : (65) 6244 8900
MALAYSIA FERA R

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd.

V-SQ @ PJ City Centre V-SQ @ PJ City Centre

5-13A-01, Jalan Utara 5-13A-01, Jalan Utara

46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya 46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688 E5E 1 (60) 37932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688 {5 : (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn. Bhd. i-Sprint Technologies Sdn. Bhd.
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre V-SQ @ PJ City Centre

5-13A-01, Jalan Utara 5-13A-01, Jalan Utara

46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya 46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688 % &E ¢ (60) 37932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688 f£5 : (60) 37931 5688
UNITED STATES %E

i-Sprint Innovations Inc i-Sprint Innovations Inc

197 Route 18 South 197 Route 18 South

Suite 3000, East Brunswick, NJ 08816 Suite 3000, East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: 1201 604 3545 54 0 1201 604 3545

Fax:1 732422 0178 {55 : 17324220178
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A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEERARAAZEEEBRAA"

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998  Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
FEDBRIVE 11 REIRE S 1512
E5E:(852) 26016998  BHE:(852) 26016936
B : http://www.asl.com.hk
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